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During this exceptional year of 2022, various unstable economic
factors had struck both the domestic and global market, causing
significant uncertainties to the fluorosilicon chemical industry and the
overall market. Such uncertainties had also brought both
opportunities and challenges to the Group. Through our advanced
technology, high product quality and a comprehensive industrial
chain, the Group firmly seized all these opportunities and challenges
arisen from market volatility and brought substantial growth to the
Group's financial performance, helping the Group achieve the best
financial results in the Group’s history, a satisfactory response to the
35th anniversary of the Group.
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) Business Review
— RPEHBIEELREEE . Breakthrough in delivering the best performance in
history

202F MGFABEETERANEE - M In 2022, market adjustments created exceptional opportunities.
HHETAZE0HE  KEERDMIE The Group had long been prepared for these remarkable
B NEEXENEXEENRE  &eH2Em opportunities. Since the Group's comprehensive layout of
AR TISETE R - {172 9515 3 B 2R A industrial chain was fully capable of satisfying all needs from
PREKSE REBEETRABER - F different markets, the Group would seize these opportunities
W RERERAZEE AR 20,027,988,000 when they appeared, and contributed significant growth to the
JU R R2641%  NARIHEE AL Group's financial performance. During the year, the Group's
i A 3E B A R ¥ 3,855,539,000 7T+ [F] bt 1 revenue reached RMB20,027,988,000, representing a year-on-
£85.82% ° year growth of 26.41%. Profit attributable to owners of the

Company reached RMB3,855,539,000, representing a year-on-
year growth 85.82%.
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During the year, a number of product markets of the Group
performed well, among which the PVDF industrial chain
products were the most remarkable. Driven by the strong
demand from the downstream new energy sector, the Group’s
PVDF industrial chain products have become the most
noteworthy in the market. With advanced technology,
comprehensive industrial chain and large production scale, the
Group has become a key PVDF supplier to the downstream
clients in the new energy sector, and PVDF industrial chain
products have become an important growth component for the
Group. Meanwhile, the Group’s other products, through
persistent efforts, overcame all kinds of challenges, such as the
pandemic, international situation, constraint on production
capacity increase, and allocation adjustment, to achieve diverse
success and contribute significant improvement to the Group’s
overall performance.

Progress in technological development

During the period under review, the Group established
Shandong Dongyue Research Institute Co., Ltd. for the
optimization of the technological management system and the
coordination of 6 R&D centers of the Group around the world
to provide the Group's scientific research innovation and
business promotion with all-rounded support. As a result, the
potential of technological innovation was gradually released.
Currently, the number of R&D expertise in the Group has
increased to over 800, of which more than 40% are expertise
with doctoral and master degrees. During the year, the Group
successfully established cooperative relationships with more
than 60 universities and research institutes domestically and
around the world. We established 22 joint laboratories, and
carried out 88 cooperative projects. At the same time, the
scientific research of the Group had achieved fruitful results,
with 142 new product grades added during the year. The
market promotion of new products was in good condition. The
revenue from new products and high-end products reached a
record high. In addition, the Group received 78 newly
authorized patents, and we organized and participated in the
completion of 23 various standards, including 5 national
standards, 3 industry standards and 15 group standards, during
the year. The Group’s R&D expense during the year was
approximately RMB1,310,535,000, representing a year-on-year
growth of 56.22%. The R&D expense has increased to various
degrees for 7 consecutive years.
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Creation of new increase through project construction

2022 was a harvesting year for the new projects of the Group.
During the year, the Group completed a total of 10 new
construction, reconstruction and expansion projects, and a total
of 141 projects in quality improvement, energy saving,
consumption reduction, and automation improvement. Among
them, the new 10,000-ton/year PVDF project that drew the
most attention in the market was completed in the second half
of the year, and the “300,000 tons/year organosilicon monomer
and 200,000 tons/year organosilicon downstream product
processing project” of Dongyue Organosilicon were also
completed and put into operation to generate economic
benefits during the year. The Group has built many projects in
recent years. The adoption of new technologies, new processes
and new equipment has played an important role in improving
the safety, management, operating efficiency and product
quality of the Group, providing a solid foundation for the Group
to achieve high-quality development.

Safeguarding production efficiency by safety and
environmental protection

During the period under review, the production and operation
of the Group remained stable and efficient, with the average
capacity utilization rate of our facilities reaching over 90%. Such
production efficiency is the result of the Group’s long-term
adherence to safe and environmental-friendly production
measure, which has provided a stable guarantee for the
operation of the Group’s entire industrial chain, and enabled
the Group to increase market share in a shortage market.

In addition, due to the rapid changes in the pandemic during
the year, prevention and control became more challenging. To
ensure the efficiency of production and operation, the Group
properly formulated a contingency plan and coordinated with
multiple parties during the severe pandemic. All employees
devoted their utmost effort against all challenges to ensure
normal production and operation, and maintained high-
efficiency production for the Group during the pandemic.
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V.

VI,

Enhanced Structure of Assets and Liabilities

In recent years, the remarkable operating condition and
abundant cash flow had helped the Group complete a number
of special establishments and enhance the overall product
quality. Meanwhile, through lowering our bank loan facility,
adjusting account payables, the Group’s debt situation
maintained in healthy position. During the year, the Group’s
asset and liability structure had further improved. Financial cost
decreased to RMB15,032,000, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 81.25%. Debt ratio was 24.96%, representing a
decrease of 2.64 percentage points compared to 2021.
Operating in low leverage had further lowered the Group's
financial risk.

Creation of a compliant management system

During the period under review, the Group focused to promote
compliant operation mechanisms such as compliance risk
assessment, compliance review, compliance assessment and
evaluation. The Group established a new compliant
management system, practising the operation policy “compliant
management enables stable and sustainable development” of
Dongyue, while setting rules and regulations to build a solid
foundation for the construction of the compliance system to
safeguard the sustainable and healthy development of the
Group.

Prospect

Although the Group achieved the best financial performance in
history in 2022, hidden risks still existed in the market. During the
fourth quarter of 2022, some of the Group’s product market had
trended downward with declining product prices. With various factors
that may impact the market, such as expanded production capacity,
adjustment in the downstream market, and changes in the foreign
trading markets, we expect more uncertainties in the market for
2023. Therefore, the Group should be prepared for all potential risks
with prudent operations in 2023. In this regard, the Group will
introduce the following plans to cope with the upcoming market
changes:
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Full support to technological innovation

Technology is an important competitive advantage in the
market. The Group places great importance to independent
research and development to create value for the Group. In the
future, the Group will continue to increase scientific research
efforts, promote research and development of new products
and new applications, ensure adequate resources required for
research and development innovation, and fully support
technological innovation. The Group will place specific focus on
R&D, new products and new applications to find breakthrough
and add value to the Group.

Raising awareness and our standard of safety and
environmental protection

Safety and environmental protection are the basic guarantees
for normal production and operation. The Group has always
maintained high standards and strict requirements in terms of
safety and environmental protection. The Group will adhere to
the upgrade on high standards of safety and environmental
protection, and achieve safe, stable, long cycled, fully-utilized
and high-efficiency operation for all devices. In terms of safety,
the Group will further increase the updates and automation of
the safety equipment, and eliminate potential safety hazards by
means of information technology. In terms of environmental
protection, the Group will adhere to green development and
promote environmental governance towards the goal of a low-
carbon ecological park. In addition, to adhere to the concept of
sustainable development, undertake social responsibilities, and
focus on environmental science research, the Group will
establish an environmental science research institute to develop
corresponding solutions for customer needs and social
environment, and determine environmental goals, governance
standards and targets, and the data for the effective control on
new pollutants.
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Promoting the implementation of the new project
development plan

In 2023, the Group will continue to promote the
implementation of significant project development plans. The
most important ones are the research on high-end fine
chemicals and the value-added innovation of comprehensive
utilization of by-products. In addition, the Group will also ensure
the increase of planned construction capacity, improvement on
quality, energy-saving renovation, safety and environmental
protection, comprehensive utilization, and the operation of
supporting projects in orders. The implementation of the
projects above will play a key role to improve future production
efficiency and the production scale of the Group.

Improving management level and strengthening internal
control system

In recent years, the Group has comprehensively improved its
management level through various measures such as risk control
management, compliance management, and improvement of
process systems. The Group also standardized and supervised
the implementation of policies through measures such as
internal audit, inspection and supervision, etc. In the future, the
Group will continue to promote the operation and optimization
of the compliant management system, and implement the
management concept of “compliant management enables
stable and sustainable development”. In terms of discipline
inspection and supervision, the Group will create an excellent
atmosphere of compliant operation and in compliance with law
to ensure the healthy development of the Group. In addition,
the Group will also optimize the assessment system, and give
incentives to those who have innovative contributions,
professional value, and capability for advanced management, as
well as talents in junior positions, so as to ensure to spot on
outstanding talents.
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5. Empower internal strength, conserve resources, cost
cutting and budget control

“Empower Internal Strength” is the most effective method to
cope with the changes of external environment. To deal with
the severe market environment, the Group will strengthen
technology breakthrough, promote operating efficiency on
production equipment, and cut costs to strengthen our market
competitiveness. In addition, the Group will also place stringent
budget control to improve efficiency on expenditures with strict
and standardized rules to help maximize profit.

6. Gradual withdrawal of real estate business to define future
development direction

The Group has been cautious with its real estate business since
it started to be engaged in this segment in 2011. According to
the prevailing industry situation, the Group has determined to
gradually withdraw from the real estate industry since early
2020. Since then, the Group’s real estate business has almost
come to an end and the Group has no plan to continue to
expand its business in the next step. The Group will continue to
focus on the development of its principal business of “fluorine,
silicon, membrane and hydrogen” and further expand related
businesses both upstream and downstream of the industrial
chain, so as to refine and deepen its business in the fluorine and
silicon industry and lay the foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development in the future.

2023 will be a year full of challenges that will test the resilience,
mentality, determination and capability of the Company. To confront
huge challenges, we will devote our maximum effort on new
development in accordance with the strategy and development plan
formulated by the management. Meanwhile, we will maintain a state
of urgency, cautiousness and responsibility, and work hard for the
creation of a golden industry, comprising of “fluorine, silicon,
membrane, hydrogen”. Together with our effort to thrive satisfactory
financial performance to pay back all the long-term trust and support
from our investors.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022 9
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Financial Review
Results Highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded revenue
of approximately RMB20,027,988,000, representing an increase of
26.41% over RMB15,843,947,000 in the previous year. Gross profit
margin slightly decreased to 32.53% (2021: 32.93%) and the
operating margin was 19.81% (2021: 23.01%). The Group recorded
profit before tax of approximately RMB5,125,055,000 (2021:
RMB3,244,209,000), and net profit of approximately
RMB4,176,117,000 (2021: RMB2,681,545,000), while consolidated
profit attributable to the Company’s owners was approximately
RMB3,855,539,000 (2021: RMB2,074,843,000). Basic earnings per
share was RMB1.73 (2021: RMB0.98).

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.60
(2021: HK$0.34) per share to the shareholders whose names appear
on the shareholder’s registrars of the Company on 20 June 2023.
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Segment Revenue and Operating Results

Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating
segments, of the Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021:

BZ2022512A310LEE HZE2021F12A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 For the year ended 31 December 2021
3 ¥R gERNE Yegs B RERETIE
Operating Operating
Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
ARBTT AR%TR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
8T Fluoropolymers 6,487,010 1,989,578 30.67% 4,825,266 1,449,771 30.05%
Bl Organic Silicon 6,648,326 463,465 6.97% 4,267,829 1,267,885 29.71%
VR H Refrigerants 4,361,050 1,021,356 23.42% 3,337,155 637,632 19.11%
—8FR B82%  Dichloromethane, Polyvinyl
(TPvC]) Bfgedn Chloride (“PVC") and
Liquid Alkali 1,624,811 460,302 28.33% 1,537,795 136,612 8.88%
Hit Others 906,791 32,627 3.60% 1,875,902 154,135 8.22%
&a Consolidated 20,027,988 3,967,328 (CEICAN 15843947 3,646,035 23.01%
EEBEDW Analysis of Operating Results
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R - Heb o HINMEERATE  ERED M
B BRE - BMESBERKNLER DPEE
FE - EEE0TME - ®AH - —8F Lt - PVC
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During the period under review, due to the different changes on
supply and demand of our products, their respective market prices
also recorded changes in different degrees, which led to variations on
sales revenue and performance results for each segment of the
Group. Particularly, in terms of external sales revenue, the
fluoropolymers, refrigerants, and organic silicon segments increased
significantly. In terms of segment results, the fluoropolymers,
refrigerants, dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali segments
recorded relatively high growth, while the organic silicon segment
recorded an obvious decline.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022 11
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Fluoropolymers

During the period under review, the external sales of fluoropolymers
segment was RMB6,487,010,000, representing an increase of
34.44% as compared with the same period of the previous year
(2021: RMB4,825,266,000), accounting for 32.39% (2021: 30.45%)
of the Group’s total external sales. The segment results recorded a
profit of RMB1,989,578,000, representing an increase of 37.23% as
compared with RMB1,449,771,000 in the same period of the previous
year.

During the year, due to the developing progress of the lithium battery
industry in the PRC, the PVDF market, an important business product
segment of the fluoropolymer materials, continuing its flourishing
momentum from 2021, recorded relatively high average product
prices. In addition, the expansion of the PVDF product production
capacity also contributed to the revenue and performance results.
Therefore, the external sales revenue and performance results of the
fluoropolymer materials segment further increased year-on-year.
However, judging from the overall market situation of the year, the
price trend of PVDF products went from high to low, and unable to
maintain at the high level compared with the beginning of the year.

The Group relies on the internal supply of R22 for the production of
TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group for the production
of polymers products such as PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with
high level of resistance to temperature changes, electrical insulation,
high aging tolerance and chemical resistant level that is used as a
coating material and can also be further processed into high-end fine
chemicals which can be widely applied in the chemicals, construction,
electrical and electronics and automotive industries) and HFP (an
important organic fluorochemical monomer, which can be used to
produce various fine chemicals). Furthermore, the refrigerants
segment of the Group supplied R22 and R142b as the raw materials
for the production of a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine
chemicals, including FEP (modified materials of PTFE, produced with
HFP added in TFE, mainly used in the lining for wire insulation layer,
thin-walled tube, heat shrinkable tubes, pumps, valves and pipes),
FKM (Fluorine Rubber, a specialised fluorinated material, which is
mainly used in the fields of aerospace, automotives, machinery and
petro-chemistry because of its superior mechanical property, and
excellent oil, chemical and heat resistance), PVDF (fluorocarbon made
with R142b to produce VDF, mainly used as a fluorine coating resin,
fluorinated powder coating resin and lithium battery electrode binding
material and VDF), in which Huaxia Shenzhou has been engaging.
Other fluorinated fine chemicals formed another major production
category of Huaxia Shenzhou.
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Refrigerants

During the period under review, the external sales of the refrigerants
segment increased by 30.68% to RMB4,361,050,000 from
RMB3,337,155,000 in the previous year, accounting for 21.77%
(2021: 21.06%) of the Group's total external sales. The segment
results recorded a profit of RMB1,021,356,000 , representing an
increase of 60.18% from a profit of RMB637,632,000 in the same
period of the previous year.

During the year, some major products of the refrigerants segment
performed well. Particularly, R22 was in shortage due to quota
restrictions, while the downstream market development had led to
rising demand, resulting in a stable price level. Since the R142b
product was related to the PVDF industry chain, its demand was
strong due to the impact of the lithium battery market. In addition,
during the period under review, the expanded production capacity of
several refrigerant products also contribute to the revenue and
performance results of this segment.

The Group has the largest production capacity of R22 in the world.
Being the Group's backbone refrigerant products, R22 is an important
refrigerant among all kinds. Besides, R22 has been one of the key raw
materials for the production of the fluoropolymers (i.e. PTFE, HFP and
other downstream fluorinated chemicals) and R125. R125 and R32
are the key refrigerant mixture for other types of green refrigerants
(such as R410a) to replace R22. Currently, R410a has been the
principal replacing refrigerant which has been widely applied in
inverter air conditioners and other green home appliances. R134a is
broadly used in the coolant and air-conditioning systems in
automobiles, while R152a is another key refrigerant product of the
Group which can also be used as blowing agents, aerosols and
cleaning agents. Apart from the fact that R142b can be used as
refrigerant, temperature controller medium, and intermediates of
aviation propellant, it can also be one of the main raw materials for
the production of VDF.
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Organic Silicon

During the year, the external sales of the organic silicon segment
increased by 55.78% to RMB6,648,326,000 from RMB4,267,829,000
in the previous year, accounting for 33.20% (2021: 26.94%) of the
Group's total external sales. The segment results recorded a profit of
RMB463,465,000, representing a decrease of 63.45% from a profit
of RMB1,267,885,000 in the previous year.

During the period under review, the production expansion project of
the organic silicon segment was officially completed and was placed
into operation to create economic benefits, thus significantly increased
its external sales revenue. However, due to the impact of factors, such
as international economic environment, national industrial and
environmental policies and additional production capacity in the
industry, on the organic silicon market during the year, the price of its
main products recorded a significant decline, resulting in a decline in
the performance results of this segment.

This segment mainly included the revenue generated from the
production and sales of DMC (upstream organic silicon intermediates
that are used as raw materials to produce deep processed mid-stream
and downstream silicon products, such as silicon oils, silicon rubber
and silicon resins), 107 Silicon Rubber, Raw Vulcanizate and Gross
Rubber (collectively referred to as “Silicon Rubbers”, deep processed
organic silicon rubber products, where Raw Vulcanizate is a key
material for producing Gross Rubber), and other by-products and
other high-end downstream products, such as Gaseous Silica and
“Industrial MSG”
applied in aviation, automotive, electronic, construction and other

Silicon Oils. Named as , organic silicon is widely
industries, mainly in the form of additives, treatment chemicals
stabilisers, lubricants and sealants and is a key ingredient in industrial
processes. The Group initially produces silicon monomers with silicon
powder and internally generated chloromethane and further processes
them to become silicon intermediates (mainly DMC), with certain
portion of which the Group produces for Silicon Rubbers and other
organic silicon products. The Group can also produce and generate
other by-products and high-end downstream products, such as
Gaseous Silica and Silicon Oils through its production processes.
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Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

During the year under review, the segment’s external sales increased
by 5.66% to RMB1,624,811,000 from RMB1,537,795,000 in the
previous year, accounting for 8.11% (2021: 9.71%) of the Group's
total external sales. The segment results recorded a profit of
RMB460,302,000, representing a year-on-year increase of 236.94%
(2021: profit of RMB136,612,000). The products of this segment are
chemical commodities, which are greatly affected by economic
changes. During the year, the market for caustic soda, the main
product of this segment, was booming, and the price of the products
rose, which played an important role in the growth of the segment’s
performance.

This segment included the revenue from production and sales of two
major auxiliary products (dichloromethane and liquid alkali) of
Refrigerants Segment of the Group and PVC products. Liquid alkali is
a basic chemical product from the production of methane chloride
(essential chemical for the production of refrigerants and organic
silicon products), and used in the textile, power and materials
industries. Methane chloride includes dichloromethane, which is
mainly used to produce antibiotics and as a foaming mode for
polyurethane. The Group is engaged in the production of PVC (a
widely used thermoplastic polymer applied in the construction
industry to replace traditional building materials). The production of
refrigerants products generates a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which
is one of the basic raw materials for PVC production. Therefore, the
Group's PVC production can ensure production synergies, increasing
economic value generated from a self-sufficient business chain.
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Others

During the period under review, the external sales of the segment was
RMB906,791,000, representing a decrease of 51.66% as compared
with RMB1,875,902,000 in the previous year. The segment results
recorded a profit of RMB32,627,000 (2021: RMB154,135,000),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 78.83%. The decrease in the
results of this segment was mainly due to the decrease in the Group'’s
real estate business. The Group has been cautious with its real estate
business since it started to be engaged in this segment in 2011.
According to the prevailing industry situation, the Group has
determined to gradually withdraw from the real estate industry since
early 2020. Since then, the Group’s real estate business has almost
come to an end and the Group has no plan to continue to expand its
business in the next step. As such, the results of the real estate
business decreased during the year, resulting in a decrease in the
results of this segment.

This segment included the revenue from the production and sales of
other by-products of the operating segments of the Group, such as
Ammonium Bifluoride, Hydrofluoric Acid and Bromine, and real estate
business, etc..

Distribution and Selling Expenses

During the year under review, the distribution and selling expenses
increased by 48.24% to RMB498,767,000 from RMB336,451,000 of
the previous year. The increase in distribution and selling expenses
was due to the increase in revenue from external sales.

Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, the administrative expenses increased
by 8.81% to RMB993,740,000 from RMB913,264,000 of the previous
year. The increase in administrative expenses was due to an increase
in staff remuneration as a result of the growth in results.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs decreased by 81.25%
to RMB15,302,000 from RMB81,606,000 of last year. The substantial
decrease in the Group’s financing costs was due to the reduction in
the amount of the Group’s loans. As of 31 December 2022, the
Group had repaid all loans.
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Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's aggregate capital
expenditure was approximately RMB3,923,933,000 (2021:
RMB4,803,248,000). The Group's capital expenditure is mainly
allocated for the construction of the new production lines.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operational cash flow. As at 31 December
2022, the Group's total equity amounted to RMB18,493,477,000,
representing an increase of 18.26% as compared with that as at 31
December 2021. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank balances
and cash totalled RMB5,315,994,000 (2021: RMB5,102,552,000).
The increase in the Group's bank balance and cash is attributable to
the increase in cash flow from operating activities. During the year
under review, the Group generated a total of RMB5,082,541,000
(2021: RMB3,914,053,000) net cash inflow from its operating
activities. The current ratio” of the Group as at 31 December 2022
was 2.00 (31 December 2021: 2.11).

Taking the above figures into account, together with the available
bank balances and cash, the unutilised banking credit facilities, bank’s
support and the Group’s sufficient operational cash flows, the
management is confident that the Group has adequate resources to
settle any debts and to finance its daily operational and capital
expenditures.

Capital Structure

Save for (1) the repurchase and cancellation of a total of 1,501,000
ordinary shares of the Company and (2) the disclosed in the section
headed “"Employee Option Scheme” in this report, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities during the year under review. The
number of issued shares of the Company was 2,253,689,455 as at 31
December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has no balance of borrowings
(2021: RMB624,100,000). The gearing ratio?® of the Group was
-28.75% (2021: -28.64%). The negative gearing ratio as at 31
December 2022 represents the Group is “net cash” positive (i.e. has
more cash & equivalents than its debt) which is usually a good sign.
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The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. The
Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest rates and floating
rates. The weighted average effective interest rates on floating rate
borrowings and fixed rate borrowings for the year ended 31
December 2022 were 3.91% (2021: 4.30%) and 4.35% (2021:
1.17%) per annum, respectively. As at 31 December 2022, none (31
December 2021: 89.55%) of the Group’s borrowings bear variable
interest rate.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in RMB only.

Notes:
(1) Current Ratio = Current Assets + Current Liabilities

(2) Gearing Ratio = Net Debt + Total Equity
Net Debt = Total Borrowings — Bank Balances and Cash

Group Structure

During the year under review, there has been no material change in
the structure of the Group.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's bank deposits of
RMB131,302,000 (2021: RMB129,611,000) were used for deposits of
bills payable and supervision deposit from presale of properties. In
accordance with the requirements of the PRC property industry, the
property companies are required to deposit supervision deposits in
their escrow accounts, which cannot be used until the completion of
construction and the provision of residential mortgage loans for the
customers. As at 31 December 2022, the relevant bank deposits were
RMB87,958,000 (2021: RMB124,145,000).
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

The Group’s functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly United States
dollars) were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from
overseas customers and when settling purchases of machinery and
equipment from the overseas suppliers.

In order to reduce the risk of holding foreign currencies, the Group
normally converts the foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while
taking into account its foreign currencies payment schedule in the
near future.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The Group had 7,065 employees in total including 6,642 males and
423 female as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 6,824). The Group
implemented its remuneration policy and bonus based on the
performance of the Group and its employees. The Group provided
benefits such as social insurance, employee option scheme and
pensions to ensure remuneration competitiveness.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible
for the management and operation of the Company’s businesses and
has the general authority in this regard. Certain information of the
members of the Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 63, was appointed as the chairman,
chief executive officer and executive director of the Company in July
2006. He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “"Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over
35 years of experience in the chemical industry. He is also the
chairman of Dongyue Chemicals and Dongyue Polymers etc., and a
director of Dongyue F&S and Dongying Dongyue Salt, all of which are
the Company’s subsidiaries. Mr. Zhang currently serves as Vice
President of the China Institute of Private Sector, Vice President of the
China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material Industry,
Vice Chairman of the 11th China Federation of Industry and
Commerce, Vice Chairman of the 12th China Civil Chamber of
Commerce, Member of the Standing Committee of the 11th and
12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Shandong
Province, Vice Chairman of the 12th and 13th Federation of Industry
and Commerce of Shandong Province and a representative of the
10th Party Congress of Shandong Province. Mr. Zhang has obtained
the honorary titles of National Outstanding Builder of Socialism in the
Non-Public Economy (Fourth Session), “100 outstanding private
entrepreneurs during the 40 years of reform and opening up”,
Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry (First
Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in the
International Market, National Outstanding Demobilized Soldier, and
Most Outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong magazine
“Capital CEQ" (" BEARA & ").
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Mr. FU Kwan, aged 65, was appointed as the executive director of
the Company in July 2006. Mr. Fu is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and the president of Macro-Link Group. Mr. Fu
served as a police commissioner of Liling City, deputy secretary of the
Party Committee of the Commune, secretary of the township party
committee, deputy director of the Liling City Economic Commission,
director of the Municipal Foreign Trade Bureau and the Party
secretary, deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import
and Export Group (HiF 4 TE R # H O£ @), and associate leader
of social working team of province station at Liuyang City. Mr. Fu
served as the member of executive committee, standard committee of
All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce, the director of
participation and deliberation of politics committee of All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the deputy chairman of the
tenth All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce, and the deputy
chairman of the eleventh of China Chamber of Commerce. He also
served as the eleventh, the twelfth and the thirteenth CPPCC
member, the member of the social and legal committee of CPPCC,
and the chairman of Hong Kong China Chamber of Commerce. He
was appointed as deputy chairman of the board of Central South
University and Beijing Foreign Studies University. He was selected for
several times as “Outstanding builders of socialism with Chinese
characteristics”, “Top ten Entrepreneur in China”, “China Economic
Person of the Year”, “100 outstanding private entrepreneurs at the
40th anniversary of China’s reform and opening-up”, “Persons of
China Private Sector for the 40 Years” and other honors. In addition,
Mr. Fu is the director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development
Co., Ltd. (FrERUEIREZEERMBMR AF]), a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Fu is also the chairman and
executive director of Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (£ & 7R
B R A 7)), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Fu owns a direct 4.25% and an indirect 90% interest in
Macrolink Holding, which wholly owns Macrolink International.
Macrolink International is a substantial shareholder of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited.
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Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 59, was appointed as the executive
director of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Wang has worked for
the Group since September 1996 and is responsible for technology
R&D and corporate management matters. During the period, he
chaired the overall preparation works for incorporation of
fluorosilicone companies as well as organic silicon companies. He then
acted as the general manager of fluorosilicone companies, silicon
companies and chemical companies of Dongyue. Mr. Wang is also the
chairman of Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a
company listed on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He
has over 30 years’ experience for manufacture and management in
the chemical industry. He is currently the president of the Group, a
director of Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co.,
Ltd. (LU REARKEEM B AR A7) and the director of the
subsidiaries of Dongyue Group. Mr. Wang also received various
awards such as the nationwide outstanding chemical engineering (&
£t T 18 5 & 5 I ¥E %) from Petroleum and Chemical Industry
Federation (/A A F1 {6 T T # # &), Outstanding Contribution
Entrepreneurs (£ i} E Bt & % %) and Shandong Outstanding
Entrepreneurs (LI ERAEH T EXK). Mr. Wang holds a master degree
in business administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng, aged 48, was appointed as the executive
director, vice president and chief financial officer of the Company in
May 2017. Mr. Zhang was the financial controller of the Group from
2006 to 2007. He has served as the financial controller and general
manager of MacroLink Mineral Co., Ltd. (FTEER BB R 2 7)) from
February 2008 to February 2016. Mr. Zhang is also the director of
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co. Ltd (a company listed
on the ChiNext of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Zhang
graduated in the Hunan University in 2003. He is also a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a registered
tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience
in accounting and finance.
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Mr. ZHANG Jian, aged 50, was appointed as the executive director
of the Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since
February 2006. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in
the investment banking and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a
bachelor degree in Economics and Law from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics and a Master degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang
is currently an executive director of New Silkroad Culturaltainment
Limited (a company listed on the HKSE) and Macrolink Capital
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the HKSE), the vice-chairman
of Keda Industrial Group Co. Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange). He is also an executive director of Sichuan Hongda
Co., Ltd. (W) I| RERD BBR A7) (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange), and Sailun Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange) and a director of Macrolink
Culturaltainment Development Co., Ltd. (3758 S0 {b bk 387 3 R I (5
BBR/AF]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING),
ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD, aged 69, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting
is a certified public accountant and is the partner of Messrs Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). Mr. Ting is
currently a non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings
International Limited and an independent non-executive director of six
companies listed on the HKSE, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies
Company Limited, Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad
Culturaltainment Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited, Texhong International Group Limited and China SCE Group
Holdings Limited.

Mr. MA Zhizhong, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in March 2021. Mr. Ma has over
37 years of teaching experience. Since July 1998, Mr. Ma has been
working at Zibo University and Shandong University of Technology as
the head of the legal office and he was appointed as a professor of
the law school of Shandong University of Technology in January 2018.
Mr. Ma is also a qualified PRC lawyer since September 1992. Mr. Ma
holds a bachelor’s degree in politics from Qufu Normal University and
a master of laws from Shandong University.
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Mr. YANG Xiaoyong, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. Yang has
over 30 years of experience in fluoropolymer and organic silicon
industries. Mr. Yang served at China Bluestar Chengrand Research
Institute of Chemical Industry as chief engineer and director of
National Organic Silicon Engineering and Technological Research
Centre and National Synthetic Resin Quality Supervision and
Inspection Centre, and the chief secretary of the Organic Silicon
Professional Committee of China Association of Fluorine and Silicon
Industry and so forth. Mr. Yang is currently the honorary president
and the chief engineer of the Expert Committee of China Association
of Fluorine and Silicon Industry. In addition, Mr. Yang is currently an
independent director of Henan Hengxing Science & Technology Co.
Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, an independent
director of New Asia Man Silicon Chemistry Co., Ltd. (¥7anshfE{b £
f& 5B PR A7) and an independent director of Hubei Jianghan New
Materials Co., Ltd. CS3L T B3 # BHIR D BR A 7).

Senior management

Mr. LI Yuwen, aged 55, obtained a bachelor’s degree in English from
Beijing Foreign Studies University and the title of senior political
scientist of professor level. He has worked for the Group since March
2002 until now, currently serves as the deputy president of the Group.
He excels in management, innovation and corporate culture
development, and has promoted the management reform of the
Company under the support and guidance of the Group’s
management. He is the author of Management Revolution ( (‘&2 #Y

F1an)), etc.
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Company secretary

Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai, aged 41, is a full time company secretary of the
Company. She joined the Group on 20 March 2015. Ms. Chung is
primarily responsible for company secretarial matters of the Company.
Ms. Chung has 20 years of work experience in accounting, corporate
finance and strategic investment. Prior to joining the Company, Ms.
Chung had worked in the audit and financial advisory divisions of a
leading international accounting firm; merger and acquisition team of
a Hong Kong listed company; finance and accounting; and strategic
investment divisions of two listed companies in Hong Kong
respectively. Ms. Chung holds a bachelor degree of business
administration, majoring in professional accountancy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and a bachelor degree of laws from
the University of London. Ms. Chung is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
financial statements. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
136.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (six months ended 30 June
2021: Nil).

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.60
(the “Final Dividend”) (2021: HK$0.34) per share in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2022, to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company (the “Register”)
on 20 June 2023, subject to the approval of the members of the
Company at the Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM").
The Final Dividend is after excluding the applicable PRC income tax.

The dividend policy adopted by the Board is intended for the
Company to maintain adequate cash reserves to meet its operational
and capital requirements, fund its future growth and enhance
shareholder value if and when dividends are recommended subject to
applicable laws, rules and regulations and the articles of association of
the Company. According to the dividend policy, the declaration of
any dividends will depend on the following factors. including actual
and expected financial performance of the Group, the distributable
reserves of the Group, the working capital and capital expenditure
requirements of the Group, the liquidity position of the Group, the
overall economic situation, and any other factors that the Board
considers relevant. The Board has considered the relevant factors
when recommending the final dividends for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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The dividend policy shall not constitute a legal binding commitment
of the Company to pay dividends in any amount or ratio. The Board
will review this policy from time to time, and may at anytime change
this policy at its sole discretion as it deems appropriate and necessary.

The AGM of the Company will be held on 9 June 2023. A notice of
the AGM will be published and dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company in due course.

Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending
and voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 6 June 2023 to 9 June 2023, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all
share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m. on 5 June 2023.

The Register will be closed from 16 June 2023 to 20 June 2023, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend,
all share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30
p.m.on 15 June 2023.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 139.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as computed in accordance with the
Companies Law (2003 Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to
RMB3,730,263,000 of which HK$1,352,213,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB1,196,613,000) has been proposed as Final
Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year, the Company repurchased, on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE"), a total of 1,501,000 ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Buyback Shares”) at a price range of
HK$10.58 to HK$11.1 per share. The aggregate consideration for the
Buyback Shares is approximately HK$16,403,120, which was funded

IFFEE - RATIENESBHERRMG © 5515 from internal resources of the Company. The Company had
J(al N repurchased the shares on the HKSE during the year ended 31
December 2022 with details as follows:
BRKRE
Price per Share
BEROEE BEXNE BREXNE FRfS BARME
Number of Total
APz E Shares Highest Lowest Consideration
Month of Purchase Bought Back Price Paid Price Paid Paid
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
20221 A 1,501,000 11.10 10.58 16,403,120
January 2022
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The Buyback Shares were validly cancelled on 25 February 2022. The
Directors performed the share repurchase in accordance with the
share repurchase mandate granted by its shareholders at the annual
general meetings and in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The share repurchases were carried out
having considered the market conditions and financial arrangements,
the Directors believe that the share repurchase would enhance the
value of the Company and it shareholders in the long term.
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Other than as disclosed above and under the sections “Employee
Option Scheme”, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Employee Option Scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee option
scheme (the "Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be valid and
effective for a term of five (5) years. The purposes of the Employee
Option Scheme are (i) to recognize the contributions by certain
employees or consultants of the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, the trustee will purchase
existing Shares from the market out of cash contributed by the Group
of not more than HK$800,000,000 in total at all material times and
hold such Shares on trust for the relevant employees or consultants of
the Group selected by the Board (the “Selected Employees”). The
Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion grant to any
Selected Employee the right to purchase the relevant Shares (the
“Option”). The Selected Employee may, when exercising the Option,
elect the number of Shares which he wishes to (i) be transferred and/
or (i) sell and receive the difference, if any, between the sale price of
the Shares and the exercise price of the Option.

The cash dividends derived from the Shares under the Employee
Option Scheme will form part of the residual cash of the trust fund
which can be used to purchase Shares subject to instructions given to
the Trustee. Further details of the Employee Option Scheme are set
out in the Company announcement dated 27 December 2018.
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On 9 July 2021, the Board has resolved to grant Options to a total of
1,372 selected employees to purchase a total of 62,570,000 Option
Shares at an exercise price of HK$4.27 per Option Share, with an
exercise period of 5 calendar years commencing from 9 July 2021 and
expiring on 8 July 2026, both dates inclusive. Further details of the
grant of the Options are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 9 July 2021. A total of 62,570,000 Options have been fully
exercised by the selected employees.

After the grant, 42,784,000 Shares in the amount of
HK$530,649,000 are still held by the Trustee under the Employee
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2022, in which 25,974,000 Shares
in the amount of HK$230,541,000 have been purchased during the
year ended 31 December 2022. No Options have been granted under
the Employee Option Scheme during the reporting period.

Under the Employee Option Scheme, up to 31 December 2022, the
Company have contributed HK$797,823,000 in total to purchase
existing Shares from the market since the set up of the scheme.

The Employee Option Scheme is not a share option scheme and is not
subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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Enhancing the Group's production capacity of PVDF (a type of
fluoropolymer that is climate resistant and highly machinable
with excellent mechanical properties, which can be used as
weather-resistant coating materials, adhesives for lithium
batteries and photovoltaic backplanes) and its raw material
(being R142b collant)

(b) REAZEPTE(-BRELREEER 85 W2k
M{tERNakaaNBAF) RERNH (BR22 /2 98
HER

Enhancing the Group's production capacity of PTFE (a synthetic
fluoropolymer with high level of resistance to temperature
changes, electrical insulation, and aging and chemical
resistant) and its raw material (being R22 coolant)

( WRAEEN-R2ELE

Replenishing the general working capital of the Group

FisE 1

KA R B i B ) R B 6 AR 0% M &5 4 h 20,0008/ 4 &) PTFE
EERE - H A — %0 10,0008/ FE1E2022 FEZ - AT » 2022
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2,000,000 796,841 1,203,159 2005124318

31 December 2025

800,000 517,190 282,180 2025F 12 A31H
(W)

31 December 2025

(note 1)

510,000 510,000 0 2002F12A31H

31 December 2022

Note 1:

The Company intended to increase the production capacity of PTFE by 20,000-ton/year
using the net proceeds from the placing of new shares, half of which, being 10,000-ton/
year has already been achieved in 2022. However, due to the complex changes in the
PTFE market and weaker downstream demand, significant uncertainties exist in the PTFE
market, and accordingly, the outstanding 10,000-ton/year PTFE project will be postponed
from 31 December 2022 to 31 December 2025, in order to enable the Group to conduct
market deployment at the appropriate time to reduce the impact of market changes on
the Group, thereby reducing operational risk.
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Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng

Mr. Wang Weidong (President)

Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on 21 June 2022)

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Ma Zhizhong
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at
each of the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every 3 years. Mr. Zhang Jianhong, Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Ma Zhizhong will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has entered or has proposed to enter into any service contracts
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance, to which
the Company, its fellow subsidiaries, its subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Employee Option
Scheme” in this report, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire benefit by means of the
acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to 25.
Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to
the duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the
results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set
out on pages 43 to 63.

Environmental, Social and Governance practice

Details of the environmental, social and governance practice of the
Company are set out on pages 64 to 128.
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Name of Director

RERTE
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BEEA hEER?
Mr. Fu Kwan Corporate interest?
RERE EniEn

Mr. Zhang Jian

SREIE KL
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng
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Beneficial interest

Beneficial interest
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EmiEm

Beneficial interest

HEEBBRAR ZE-_FFR

Nature of interest

Corporate interest®

Disclosure of interests

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

% 7 25 46 BA A% 10 B4 B
Number of Shares
or underlying Shares

HEBRTREABSE
% of issued
share capital

258,948,451 (L) 11.49 (L)
7,147,636 (L) 0.32 (L)
520,977,818 (L) 23.12(L)
91 (L) 0.00 (L)

750,000 (L) 0.03 (L)
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(1) BEEFHFLBEEN BRREREEREA
Dongyue Team Limited #) & Z## 2% + #5R %5 A 1%
18 A7 Dongyue Team Limited 54 #) 258,948,451
BB (D P R R 2w o

(2) 5% 5 I 1D % A& 150,000,000 % A% 17 (L) Bt Macrolink
Overseas(FTEMBIR N2 EMB AR EERE -
if1370,977,818 AR A& 13 (L) Bl e ¥ 22 Btk B B E 2 4%
B MIEMBERARNERELE2EHES - 3
EWBERMERTREERS - MNERZR
Bl RARBELEDFIHEE 93.4% [ 2.83% °
o REDABELERENELTEER
7 59.76% 1. 33.46% HE2S ©

B EXATHEZEI  R2022F12831H AR
AENMNEEREIBTRABRESES AN E
AEERAR R B S EE MRS EE (TEREHFR
HEEFIEXVIR) ARG, - HERG RE#EES
BHTAREES MEGROIEXVEETRES
DEBEME A NE KRB R TREESAR (BIER
BESMBAEKRNEEREREERREEETD
S RORR)  SRIREH R EE 65155 352 1678
BN ZIE T B MR RIA R - RIRIKIZ
ESTRIENE AN T LR FTHERSSAR o

(b) EERFRRHEMALTHARG  HERORE
ERNERERAR

7202212318 MARAEZESEREE
TTBRABFA  TH AT (WIEARANHE
EXEETHRABR)RERAIHRMN B
B ERRENBRIEESREBEGDSE
336 158 FIF B M B B A SRR B 5 & H
EIEHIEXVESE 2 RE 3D IBIESARMAR
AR BEMNEESAE

Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
258,948,451 Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(2) These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
and 370,977,818 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
33.46%, respectively.

(3) L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the then
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the HKSE.

(b) Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests and
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company, the following persons
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Name of Shareholder

EEME

Nature of interest

IR S AHBA IR D &L B
Number of shares
or underlying Shares

HEBRTREBDL
% of issued
share capital

Macrolink Overseas ERERT 150,000,000 (L) 6.66 (L)
Beneficial interest’
T EE By B B B 370,977,818 (1) 16.46 (L)
Macrolink International Beneficial interest’
ERER 150,000,000 (L) 6.66 (L)
Corporate interest’
e ERER' 520,977,818 (L) 23.12 ()
Macrolink Industrial Corporate interest'
EERL Y R 520,977,818 (L) 23.12.(L)
Macrolink Holding Corporate interest’
&=A R 520,977,818 (L) 23.12 (L)
Cheung Shek Corporate interest'
X Ez+ R 520,977,818 (L) 23.12.(L)
Ms. Xiao Wenhui Corporate interest’
Dongyue Team Limited B2 258,948,451 (L) 11.49 (L)

Beneficial interest?

BT Notes:

1. % Z [ 19 F A 150,000,000 A% A% 15 (L) B Macrolink 1. These Shares in which 150,000,000 Shares (L) are directly held by
Overseas(FTEMBEIBRNEEMB AR EEEAE Macrolink Overseas (a wholly owned subsidiary of Macrolink International)
370,977,818 M A& {7 (L) Bl F 7 2 Bt B [ B 5 45 and 370,977,818 Shares (L) directly held by Macrolink International which
B O MHEBRERHAFTEREELERE - 3 in turn is wholly owned by Macrolink Industrial. Macrolink Holding, a
EMEXRTEBIER2EHRE M ERITR company owned by Cheung Shek as to 93.4% and by Mr. Fu Kwan as to
Al EAREBELEDBIES93.4% % 2.83% 2.83%, respectively, wholly owns Macrolink Industrial. In addition, Mr. Fu
AN REDRBBEAARENELTHERE Kwan and Ms. Xiao Wenhui directly own Cheung Shek as to 59.76% and
H59.76% K 33.46% #E3f ° 33.46%, respectively.

2. BEFFELPAEEMN BN REZLEAEFE 2. Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in
Dongyue Team Limited #) 100% # z * & %t 4 1 Dongyue Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the
1% A5 Dongyue Team Limited 5 /8 # 258,948,451 258,948,451 Shares (L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

AR (D P BB s o
3. L: A 3. L: Long Position
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() MR2022F12A31BRAEEEMKE DT

() Interests in other members of the Group as at 31

R December 2022
HEBHEAR
BRITRA
ARAAMBLAAEH ZHBARNEIERREE EEnE A ERE D

Name of the
Company'’s subsidiary

Name of substantial shareholder
of such subsidiary

% of issued share
capital/registered
capital of

Nature of interest such subsidiary

IWRREREMH AR AT HERN R E AR AR NG| 16.78

(TRERE]
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Zibo Juyue Commercial Limited Corporate

Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue F&S")
NEERELEFICITERAR] TREREZ BRI AR QA NGl 49
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chifeng Zhongxing Information Corporate

Chemicals Co., Ltd. Technology Co., Ltd.
REERFEEERA A TRIE R E (= SR AR A A NS 20
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd. Chifeng Zhongxing Information Corporate

Technology Co., Ltd.

IR E SO UM R A R A A L BRSORIFT A R A R A A NG 49
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe Fluorine Shandong Wenhe New Materials Corporate

Chemicals Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
BREEHEMESHREIGRAR  KREFHKREBRAF NGl 30
Ycheng Boyu Real Estate Marketing Dalian Zhongyu Investment Co., Ltd.  Corporate

Planning Co., Ltd.

B ENFEEEI  BARREEREZITHA
BT 202296128318 BEETEEMA
T (WA RBNEE K EEZTHRAE) RAEAH
A&7 S AE B IR D P B AR IE B 5 AR E & HI 5B XV
B05E 2 K 5B 3 9 BRI SUZR M AR A B BE MO (E ] # e
SOXE - KEEKEEREN AR A EERS
MTIRAEETMNEMKERARBRERT LRE
BRI 48 B AR AN B 10% sk A _EAERS o

BRAmEMBEEI  REAREEAREAH
RN B Sl AL AR EL PR B % ) B4 B BSCR S AR LB
BAREMELMBERGH -

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2022, no other
person (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company) had any interest or a short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member
of the Group.

Saved as disclose in this report, there was no other contract of
significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year and
up to the date of this report.

37

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022



EEEHE

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EERHEURBENER

REZ2022F 12 A31BHIEFE AR EEH
ERERASEESEE N EETERF A
FEHFHEMESOER

EEEHN

REZE2022F 12831 BIEFE - WEET VST
FEAEB2HNTMEATD EKEBANEIE
MITHA L) -

FEHEBAREF

AERBARETEHERLEFPERENBELE
EBEOLAT

BE
— AMERY 4.38%
— hARHEY (GHEE) 13.71%
SHE
— BRARP 3.67%
— AARF (AHETE 10.77%

BRES  HENWEARBEEHOREAD
AR AR 5% ML AR A E i+ B m A R
P A -

RERXS

REBWHZE2022F 12 A31 B ILFEHEITAR
B S EmARA(T EmARAL) B 14AER
BEERMNBEEZSMOT :

38 HE£EARAF -B-_H£4H

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors of
the Company was interested in any business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 4.38%
— five largest suppliers combined 13.71%
Sales
— the largest customer 3.67%
— five largest customers combined 10.77%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company'’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

Connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had entered
into connected transaction that is subject to be reported under
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
HKSE (the “Listing Rules”) as below:
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Continuing connected transactions for the year 2022

BRETHETRMHLEREER
RUEERS (MEE1)

FERIREINEERDNA
RUEGFRERETRENE
IThE((EELRREHE])
(HEE2)

> B AR A5

Sale and purchase of raw materials and product 93
and provision of ancillary services with
Dongyue Hydrogen (Note 1)

Financial services master agreement for provision of 320
deposit services and loan services by Marco-link
Holding Group Finance Company Limited (the
"Renewed FS Agreement”) (Note 2)

On 28 July 2022 , Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and Technology
Group Co., Ltd (“the Transferor”, direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into the equity transfer agreement with Zibo
Qilu Jishi Start-up Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“the
Transferee”), pursuant to which the Transferor agreed to transfer
34,330,000 shares in the Shandong Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy
Materials Co., Ltd. (“Target Company”) to the Transferee at an
aggregate consideration of RMB537,607,800 (equivalent to
approximately HK$645,129,360).

Considering the Transferee is a limited partnership whose general
partner is a company controlled by a director of the Company and
accordingly, the Transferee is a connected person of the Company
and the entering into of the equity transfer agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the announcement
date 28 July 2022.

Continuing Connected transaction

Details of the continuing connected transactions conducted by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 not falling under
Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

FELR
Annual Cap

(AREEBET)
(RMB million)

02F5BRHE
2022 Actual
(ANREBETL)
(RMB million)

91.03
(HEFELR)
(Sale annual cap)

39 32.19
(BEFELR)

(Purchase annual cap)

309.89
(RERHA
202157 A9RK
EESRRBHR)
(under the Renewed FS
Agreement dated
9 July 2021)

320 309.89
(RERHA
2022512 A
R RRBHR)
(under the Supplemental
FS Agreement dated
12 May 2022)
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Note 1:  On 2 August 2022, Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and Technology Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology”, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries, and Shandong
Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Hydrogen”)
entered into the Raw Materials and Services Sale and Purchase Framework
Agreement, pursuant to which Dongyue Fluorosilicon Technology and its
subsidiaries have agreed to (i) supply the Dongyue Raw Materials and Ancillary
Services to Dongyue Hydrogen for its production and operations and (ii)
purchase the Hydrogen Raw Materials and Products and Ancillary Services from
Dongyue Hydrogen for the Group’s production and operations for a term up to
31 December 2022.

Dongyue Hydrogen is a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
entering into of the Raw Materials and Services Sales and Purchase Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement dated 2 August
2022.

Note 2:  On 9 July 2021, the Company and Macro-link Finance entered into the Renewed
Financial Services Master Agreement , pursuant to which Marco-link Finance has
agreed to continue to provide Dongyue Polymers with deposit services on
normal commercial terms in its ordinary and usual course of business for a term
of one year from 22 July 2021 to 21 July 2022 with an annual cap at
RMB320,000,000.

On 12 May 2022, the Company and the Macro-link Finance entered into the
Supplemental Agreement to amend the existing Renewed Financial Services
Master Agreement, pursuant to which the term of the agreement was extended
to expire on 21 July 2024, with the annual cap of RMB320,000,000.

Marco-link Finance is a connected person of the Company, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Marco-link Holdings Limited, which indirectly holds
approximately 23.12% of the issued share capital of the Company. In addition,
Marco-link Holdings Limited is indirectly controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan (an executive
Director). Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 12 May 2022.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company and the auditor has
confirmed the requirements set out in rule 14A.56 in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions.
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Related party transactions

The details of the related party transaction during the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in the note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in note 36(a), 36(b) (equity-
settled share-based payments) and 36(c) to the consolidated financial
statements are also the connected transactions (including the
continuing connected transactions) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules which have been complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of
the connected transactions (including the continuing connected
transactions) are set out in the section “Connected transactions” of
this report.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float of the
issued shares of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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Tax relief and exemption

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s
securities.

Permitted indemnity provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their offices, provided
that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 28 March 2023
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and
maximizing returns to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”), while at the same time fulfilling their corporate
responsibilities. To this end, we strive to promote and uphold the
highest standard of corporate governance.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company with the adoption and improvement of the various
procedures and documentation which are detailed in this report. To
the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has
adopted and complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the
“Code") during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this report, except for deviation regarding the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer, the details of which have been
disclosed in the relevant paragraphs below in this report.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates
the authority and responsibility to the Group’s management for the
management of the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board’s Committees. The composition of
the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of
expertise, skills and experience which can meet the requirements of
the business of the Group.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022 43



TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

HZE2022F 12 A3 B IEFEREEAFEHE -
BWITEBSRARRICEERAZEGREBRMBE
FAER2022F 6 A21 Bttt 4h - EFSHRBEL
EEMEE  HENAN\ZEFAN - EXESHT
R

HITES

RBREE (TERTHABE)
HELE

THREE (BH)

KRBT E (GIEEFEEIBE)
RNEHAE (R20224F6 A21 B#tt)
R

BYFHTES

TRESE
BREELE
BEREE

EEMEABENAFRE20E28[EENE
EEEABREE] & -

ot

ARBIEZRBIUFNPTES  HEFETAH=
D2 RBEMES EHARA( EWHRLD
FIN0ERMBRE  ARBIRD—BBUIFNTE
ERABBEEERERIGH AN BEENERE
EANB - EFECRERBUFRTESTIES
T HEDEHNFEER - RIEEHRRAE 3136
PREtEs  EF 8RR 2RBUIFNTESH
RBIAL -

44 FHEEEERAT —B--EFHK

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, except that Mr. Zhang Bishu who was an executive director
and a member of the Corporate Governance Committee of the
Company, passed away on 21 June 2022, there was no change in the
structure of the Board, which currently comprises eight Directors and
its composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors (“EDs"):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Wang Weidong (President)

Mr. Zhang Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on 21 June 2022)

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
Mr. Ma Zhizhong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
“Directors’ and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 20 to
25 of this annual report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board. At
least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise pursuant to
Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE
(the “Listing Rules”). The Board has received from each INED an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that all the
INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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During the year under review, the Board was met regularly to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial performance
of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and
interim results, as well as corporate governance, business operations,
financial, capital and remuneration. During the year under review, six
Board meetings and an annual general meeting (“AGM") were held.
The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the AGM
is set out as follows. In addition, certain matters relating to entering
of the continuing connected transaction, share repurchase,
announcements of positive profit alert and inside information were
dealt with by written resolutions of the directors.

During the year, the attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings is set out as follows:

BITESE: EDs:

REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 6/6 v
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan 4/6* X
THRLAE Mr. Wang Weidong 6/6 v
RIS A Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 6/6 v/
RMEHRAE (R 202246 A21 B#itt)  Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on 21 June 2022) 3/6 X
REEE Mr. Zhang Jian 6/6 v/
BYFHTES: INEDs:

TRBEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 6/6 v/
BEELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 6/6 v
EEmgsE Mr. Ma Zhizhong 6/6 v
* BELAEZARRNBEERTHERALFE=TSESE - * Mr. Fu Kwan appointed representative to attend the Board meetings on his behalf

during his absence.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022 the Board has dealt with
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual and
interim results, risk management, dividend policies, corporate
governance, capital, financial, investment and remuneration. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day operations of the Group to the
senior management under the supervision of the Board. In addition,
on 14 December 2022, the Chairman held the discussion with all the
INEDs without the presence of other EDs to exchange views on
matters concerning the business development and internal control of
the Group.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held regularly and as required by
business needs. At least 14 days’ notice of regular Board meetings (or
reasonable notice for all other meetings) is normally given to all
Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists the Chairman
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least
3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as
stipulated under the Listing Rules, the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them
from potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they
discharge their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors are
provided with written materials to develop and refresh their
professional skills. During the year, the Company organized for the
Directors an in-house training on the Listing Rules.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional
development during the year under review:

HITES: EDs:

REREE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
BELAE Mr. Fu Kwan /
FHREE Mr. Wang weidong v/
RIS A Mr. Zhang Zhefeng v/
REERE Mr. Zhang Jian v/
BYFBTES: INEDs:

TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
BEBLE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
BEBREE Mr. Ma Zhizhong v/

ESHECXEERTNER

EERAERSEELEERANERERILT)
WENEME - Bl EEERLZEGRE (HFE
B EHNARTNEEERABERERARARR
ERETTAMARE NN BBRE -

Directors’ responsibilities in corporate
governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord,
the corporate governance committee is responsible for, among others,
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Company’s compliance with the Code and the
relevant disclosure in this report.

More details are set out under the relevant paragraphs of the section
headed “Corporate Governance Committee” of this report.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which
would make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
including the appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the
Company. The Board considers that the Director(s) is expected to have
expertise in relevant area to make contribution to the Company and
to have sufficient time to participate in the decision making process of
the Company.

All EDs of the Company did not enter into service contracts with the
Company. In addition, other INEDs (except Mr. Ma Zhizhong) signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of approximately
two years commencing from 1 January 2022. Mr. Ma Zhizhong
entered into the letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of two years commencing from 11 March 2023.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”),
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance
with the provisions of the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM under the
Articles.

Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code C.2.1 of Part 2 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same position provides the Group with stronger and
more consistent leadership and allows for more effective planning.
Further, the Board considers that this structure will not impair the
balance of power, which has been closely monitored by the Board,
which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board
has full confidence in Mr. Zhang and believes that the current
arrangement is beneficial to the business prospect of the Group.
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Gender diversity at board level

Appendix 14) of the Code stipulates that the board should achieve
gender diversity no later than 31 December 2024. The Company is
single gender (male) board and is currently selecting suitable female
candidate(s) to become board member(s). The Board is endeavor to
achieve the board gender diversity by appointment at least one female
director on the board by 31 December 2024.

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit
Committee, a Nomination Committee, a Corporate Governance
Committee and a Risk Management Committee, each of which has its
specific written terms of reference, which have been available on the
Company’s and the HKSE's websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee). To further enhance independence, all the committees
(except the Corporate Governance Committee) include a majority of
INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee to consider
the remuneration for Directors and senior management of the
Company. The remuneration committee comprises Mr. Yang
Xiaoyong (Chairman) and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen who are
independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Zhang Jianhong who is
an executive Director.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held. In addition, the matter relating to
amendment of terms of reference of remuneration committee was
dealt with by written resolutions on 30 December 2022.

During the year, the attendance of each member is set out as follow:

ZEGKE - Committee member:

BEBEE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
TRE:E Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
SRR A Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/

E.m%tt/ETEJzizozziuﬂm AIEHBEER
TEERAEBMSEEEABNFH - I
ia@ﬁaﬁhﬂr%ﬁﬁ?%%&$%m@m
BAEMFMH - BiREEBRETHRLOER
BERAEBFHEREER -

SEEEAE(EARRER)NEE2022%12
A31HLEFERNFMEESZIMT :

During the meetings the remuneration of the EDs and the Group's
senior management for the financial year ended 31 December 2022
were approved. In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the
remuneration for the Directors and the Group’s senior management
and the Group’s remuneration related matters.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management (who
are not the directors of the Company) by band for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

8,500,001 % 9,000,000 8,500,001 to 9,000,000 1

BB ETRANETNBETHENS @ E S5
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BsE11 5212 -
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
financial statements.
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Audit committee

The audit committee of the Company was established on 16
November 2007 in accordance with the Listing Rules. The existing
audit committee comprises Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman),
Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Ma Zhizhong, all being independent non-
executive Directors.

The audit committee met with the management on 24 March 2023,
to review the accounting standards and practices adopted by the
Group and to discuss matters regarding internal control and financial
reporting including the review of the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2022 before proposing them to the Board
for approval.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

ZEgKE Committee member:

TRE%E Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 3/3
BEBEE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 3/3
BEREE Mr. Ma Zhizhong 3/3

ARRINEZBRMEAEEERERABTE L
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The external auditors of the Company and the related management
of the Group also attended these meetings.
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During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
2022, the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set
out as follows:

o perform pre-audit meetings in respect of the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022;

. discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the
annual/interim reports, accounts and the related results
announcements, before recommending them to the Board for
approval;

o approve the remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its relevant terms of
engagement in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2021; and

o review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

On 14 December 2022, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit
meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2022. The Audit Committee also had a meeting with
management on 24 March 2023 to review the accounting standards
and practices adopted by the Group and to discuss matters regarding
internal control and financial reporting including the review of the
Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022 before
proposing to the Board for approval.
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Nomination committee

The Company established a nomination committee with written terms
of reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment
of new Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr.
Zhang Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the nomination
committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
were appointed as the members of the nomination committee.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2022 and the attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

BRHEERR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEGWXE Committee member:
REBRLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/
TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen v/
HERBELA Mr. Yang Xiaoyong v/
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During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the
composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the
Board for consideration, the diversity of the Board, the re-election of
the directors at AGM, the recommendation of the measurable
objectives that the Board should adopt for implementing the Policy as
well as reviewed the independence of the INEDs.
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In addition, a summary of the Policy for the diversity of the Board is
set out as follows:

A.

Policy Statement

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board. A truly diverse Board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

1. The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree
annually measurable objectives for implementing diversity
on the Board and recommend to the Board for adoption.

2. The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a
diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experiences,
knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age and
gender.

Monitoring and Reporting

1. The Nomination Committee will report annually, in the
Corporate Governance Report, on the Board’s
composition under diversified perspectives, and monitor
the implementation of the Policy.

2. A summary of the Policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing the Policy and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives will be
disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Review of the Policy
The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as
appropriate, and recommend any proposed changes to the
Board for approval.
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The Board has adopted the following measurable objectives during
the year ended 31 December 2022:

o Inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
academic, research or working experience (outside of PRC);

o ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors; and

o inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries.

During the year, the Board achieved the measurable objectives by
which the Board had included candidates with overseas academic,
research or working experience in other industries in the selection of
Directors. The Board is also endeavor to achieve the board gender
diversity by appointment at least one female director on the board by
31 December 2024, in compliance with the Appendix 14J) of the Code
and Rule 13.92.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Company established a corporate governance committee with
written terms of reference on 21 March 2013 to be responsible for
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the relevant disclosure in the report
on corporate governance code and other related matters. Mr. Zhang
Jianhong was appointed as the chairman of the corporate governance
committee and Mr. Wang Weidong and Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed
away on 21 June 2022) were appointed as the members of the
corporate governance committee.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022 55



EXRER®|E
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

PEEARZESNEEEENEIT T —X&:% -  The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting during the

FRERMHEBREHTAT year under review. The attendance of each member is set out as
follows:

ZEENE Committee member:

SRR A Mr. Zhang Jianhong v/

THRLEE Mr. Wang Weidong v

RMEIAE (R202246 A21 B#fitt)  Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on 21 June 2022) v

REE2022F 12 A3 BB EE £{TH 2% During the meeting held in the financial year ended 31 December
BN ERIESES eI ER - TR EERT 2022, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to the
BEARTETOEEATE Y SFEIEX B AN Company's compliance with code provisions of the CG code and the
AN EEABRERTER - Company’s policies and practises on corporate governance.

56 HE&EEERAR ZB-FFH



TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

EREEEES

RATR2015E8 A 13AKIEAREREEZEE S -
WEIVEmMBESHE  BRAAQRARABRER "
e EmiEEEE Wikt EH - T REL
EREZEARREEZESETEAGEBELER
FEEREEEZTARKBREEZEENKE -

RiEERZE@ROBFENRTTMASHE -
EREMHEREREIINT -

Risk Management Committee

The Company established a risk management committee with written
terms of reference on 13 August 2015 to review and advise the risk
management and internal control of the Company and other related
matters. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen was appointed as the
chairman of the risk management committee and Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
and Mr. Ma Zhizhong were appointed as the members of the risk
management committee.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the year
under review. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HE BT

ZEEERNH

Number of

Committee meeting

attended/held

ZEEXE Committee member:

TRERE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 2/2

BEBEE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 2/2

BEREE Mr. Ma Zhizhong 212
REZE2022F12 A3 B I EESET 2% During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December
o BN ENESES U ER st hER T 2022, the members discussed and reviewed matters relating to the

BRARBAREEERLBRIAEERIENLD
EEANAREERE (HBIEARFRE) -

Company’s internal control measures and policies and its
implementation, and the internal control report (prepared by the
independent consulting firm), before recommending them to the
Board for approval.
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Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows. The external
auditors are responsible to form an independent opinion, based on
the audit, on the financial statements prepared by the Directors and
report the opinion solely to the members of the Company as a body
and for no other purpose.

Risk management and internal control

The Board of Directors is responsible for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to accept
in reaching its strategic objectives and to ensure that the Group has
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The Board of Directors has
supervised the management’s design, implementation and monitoring
of risk management and internal control systems. The Board
confirmed that it is responsible for establishing risk management and
internal control systems for the Group and will continue to monitor
the system and ensure to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company and its
principal subsidiaries at least once a year.

The Company’s Board of Directors, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee have also confirmed that they have
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and its principal subsidiaries, covering all
important monitoring aspects of the Group, including strategic,
financial, operational, compliance monitoring and whistleblowing

policy.

The Company has set up internal audit function. The Company has
also conducted procedures of risk management, which mainly include:

1) identify risk and form risk list;

2)  Based on the possibility of various types of potential risks and
the concerns of the management of the Group, combined with
the risk of financial losses, make risk assessment on the impact
of operational efficiency, sustainable development capacity and
reputation, and prioritize them;
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3) Identify risk management measures for significant risks, conduct
evaluations of the design of risk management measures, and
improve the deficiencies through formulating measures;

4)  Develop risk management manuals for risk management,
identify the responsibilities for the management, Board of
Directors, Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee
in risk management, and continuously monitor risk
management;

5)  The management has reported to the Audit Committee and
Risk Management Committee on the review and assessment of
risk management, major risk factors and related response
measures; and

6)  The management has established a whistleblowing policy and
system for employees and those who deal with the Company
including but not limited to customers, suppliers and agents, to
raise concerns, in confidence and anonymity with the audit/risk
management committee about possible improprieties in any
matter related to the Company. The Company has also
established policy and system that promote and support anti-
corruption laws and regulations.

However, risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to reach a business
goal, and to make reasonable, not absolute, warranties of no
significant misrepresentation or loss.

Set out below is the Company’s procedures and internal controls for
handling and distributing inside information:

o The Company acknowledges its obligations under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The first principle
is that the information should be immediately published when
the Company is aware of and/or when the related decision is
made, unless such inside information falls under the Safe
Harbour Provisions under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

o In dealing with the matters, adhere to the Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information promulgated by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and the “Recent
Economic Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of
Listed Issuers” issued by the SEHK in 2008; and

. Unauthorized use of confidential or inside information has been
expressly prohibited in the internal system.
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The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems during the year under review and considered
them to be effective and adequate. The Board will continuously
improve and monitor the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems.

External auditor's remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total remuneration for the
audit services provided by the external auditors amounted to
HK$2,900,000 (approximately RMB2,566,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the total remuneration for the
permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors
amounted to approximately HK$800,000 (approximately
RMB708,000) which is for the review of the interim financial report of
the Group for the six months period ended 30 June 2022.

The re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee and
endorsed by the Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders
at the forthcoming AGM.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having been
made specific enquiry, the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the Relevant Period.
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Shareholders’ rights

Procedures for the Shareholders to convene extraordinary
general meetings ("EGM")

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
(the "EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general
meetings can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the
Board or the Company Secretary at the registered office, which is
presently situated at Vistra (Cayman) Limited, P.O. Box 31119, Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently
situated at Unit 21, 26/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt
Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. The EGM Requisitionists must state in
their requisition the businesses of the EGM to be transacted and such
requisition must be signed by all the EGM Requisitionists.

Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition
is in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to
convene the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered
Shareholders in accordance with all the relevant statutory
requirements. According to the Articles, the EGM shall be held within
two months after the deposit of the requisition. If within twenty-one
days of the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to
convene the EGM, the EGM Requisitionists may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by them as a result of
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists by
the Company.

Procedures for the Shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact
information to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 21, 26/F,
Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong.
The request will be verified and upon confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will request the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration
of the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

o At least 14 clear days’' notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

o At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal
constitutes a special resolution of the Company in EGM or an
ordinary or special resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a
Director, please refer to the procedures made available on the
Company’s website www.dongyuechem.com.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Unit 21, 26/F, Tower 1

Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road

Admiralty, Hong Kong

Email: carriechung@dongyuechem.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.
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Investor relations

Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

o the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; and

o updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company'’s website to enable the Shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to information about the
Group; and

o Investor can raise comments to the Board through our investor
relations consultant or the Company Secretary whose contact
details are disclosed in this report and the Company’s website.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to

answer questions raised by the Shareholders.

Change in the constitutional documents of the
Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there
has been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

The People’s Republic of China, 28 March 2023
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About the report

This report is a true reflection of how Dongyue Group has actively
fulfilled its economic, social and environmental responsibilities and in
addition, has achieved comprehensive, coordinated and sustainable
development. Statements concerning future business plans,
development strategies, and any other future endeavors herein do not
constitute a substantive commitment of the Company to investors.

. Time frame

The report covers from 1 January to 31 December 2022, while
partial contents are beyond the above time frame.

o Publication cycle

ESG report of Dongyue Group Limited is an annual report and
will be published on annual basis.

o Scope of report

The report covers the headquarters of Dongyue Group Limited
and its subsidiaries including: Dongyue Fluorosilicon Science and
Technology Group Co., Ltd., Shangdong Dongyue Chemical
Co., Limited, Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.,Shandong
Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Huaxia
Shenzhou New Materials Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Organosilicon Materials Co., Ltd, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak
Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co.,
Ltd., Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue
Wenhe Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd., Shandong Dongyue Union
Property Co., Ltd., Huangtai Dongyue International Trade Co.,
Ltd., Hong Kong Trulene International Trade Co., Ltd.,
Shandong Boda Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Zhangjiajie
Xinye Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., Zibo Herun Shuiwu
Company Limited and Shandong Mingyue Technology Co., Ltd.

o Basis of preparation

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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o Description of References

For ease of presentation, “Dongyue Group Limited” is expressed
as “Dongyue Group”, “the Group”, “the Company” and “we”,

“our” or “us” in the report.

o Explanations on Information

Historical information cited in the report is the final statistical
information. In case of any discrepancy between financial
information and annual report, the latter shall prevail. Unless
otherwise stated, Renminbi is used in the report as functional
currency.

o Availability of Report

The report is prepared in Chinese and English, which can be
downloaded electronically from:

The website of HKSE http://sc.hkex.com.hk

The website of Dongyue Group Limited
http://Awww.dongyuechem.com/

Board Statement

The purpose of this statement is to explain the governance and
supervision responsibilities of the Board of the Dongyue Group with
respect to ESG related work.

Dongyue Group Limited has always believed that corporate
governance and risk management are essential components of
sustainable corporate development. In the process of sustainable
development, the Group continues to enhance its concern and
commitment to the three dimensions of ESG, integrating corporate
development with society and the environment, contributing to good
industry development, driving environmental improvement with its
own resources, developing together with society and creating value
together.
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The Group has put in place a management structure for its ESG,
which is led by the Board of Directors, organized by a working group
and implemented by relevant functional divisions. The Board focuses
on the sustainable development performance of Dongyue Group
Limited, formulates the overall ESG strategy of the Company, receives
reports on ESG management work, reviews management results and
follows up on the formulation and achievement of ESG work targets.
The ESG working group, as a division of the Group'’s Investor Relations
Department, is responsible for the day-to-day implementation and
execution of ESG work and the management of risks related to
various aspects of ESG. Based on the domestic and international
economic and social macro environment and the Company’s
development strategy, the Company also conducts regular
assessments of important ESG issues, discusses the risks and
opportunities of the Company in relation to ESG, and considers the
management and enhancement of key issues as an annual ESG
priority. At the same time, the Company organized internal and
external events to enhance communication with stakeholders. The
Group publishes annual ESG reports in compliance with the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange’s guideline documents on ESG, and the Board is
responsible for the review and validation of ESG reports.

In 2022, the Board has conducted major review and supervision on
the core tasks of the following key issues, including green product
R&D, production safety, product and service quality, production
capacity enhancement and technology innovation, sustainable supply
chains, integrity and compliance operation, etc.

This report discloses in detail the progress and effectiveness of the
ESG work of Dongyue Group Limited in 2022, and was submitted to
the Board for consideration and approval on 28 March 2023.
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ESG Management

Dongyue Group continues to optimize ESG management and
establish ESG management system to promote sustainable
development of its business. Meanwhile, we maintain regular
communication with our stakeholders, including customers,
employees, investors and value chain partners, and respond to
their requests in a timely manner to continuously improve the
standard of ESG governance.

1.1

ESG management system

Dongyue Group attaches great importance to ESG
governance and continues to improve its sustainable
development management system and governance
structure. It has established an ESG management system
which is led by the board of directors, organized by a
working group and executed by relevant functional
divisions, and clarifies the work responsibilities at each
level, so as to effectively manage non-financial risks such
as environmental, social and corporate governance, and
achieve sound operation and sustainable growth of its
business.

RAEFESH

HEEFEATENERLAR - REANBBETHONE  HE

ERR g REAMEETREERZ
The Board of the Company reviewed and decided on major social responsibility matters,

REE

Decision-making

on the annual ESG report.

including formulating relevant strategies and guidelines and performing special reviews

AAEREEBRBRIEFTENME - AEHAARESCEEIF  ERREE

B HEREA

HEE

Organization

WE - ESGAERUEIE - ABFHREIIEESE -
The Company established a special task group in the investor relations department for
coordinating ESG management related tasks on a daily basis, including the preparation

of the annual ESG report, collection of ESG performance indicators and organization of

training and promotion.

NAEBEEAPIRD FARBERAESCGHENR TR - MM ARERSE -
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Execution

Respective functional departments and subsidiaries of the Company were responsible for
the centralized management of ESG issues, and regular reports of relevant management

initiatives, performance indicators and best practices and organizing all types of ESG

activities.

CRESEESGEEER
Figure: The ESG Management System of Dongyue Group
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1.2

Communication with Stakeholders

Dongyue Group attaches great importance to
communication and cooperation with stakeholders,
actively expands communication channels, responds to
the expectations and requests of stakeholders in a timely
manner, and fully understands the impact of its operation

on stakeholders.

®RESEFNFEBLTBERS

Table: The Stakeholder Communication Mechanism of Dongyue Group

FRAERS
Stakeholders

BUFEREERE

Government and regulators

BRR

Shareholders

BEEREGERH

Customers and partners
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HEEER

laws and regulations

Promoting local economic development
Driving local employment

Production safety
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Expectations and requirements Ways of communication and response
ERZRERRBEKRERER o ¥t
TR 7 A B R s HEERR
mEM T BLE o  HB[ER
TREE s MEEBBL
Implementing the national policies, o Filings

Offering advice and suggestions

Special subject report
Inspection & supervision

I B ©  RARE
amEd . HEER
. EER

Returns on investment
Compliance operation

Company announcement
Special subject report
Field investigation

HOEEH) s  AKAR
IR s HEERE
BEERERS o R
HBITEHER o AMBIE

Fulfilling the contractual obligations in
accordance with the law

Integrity operation

Quality products and services
Promoting industry development

Business communication
Customer feedback
Exchange & discussion
Negotiation & cooperation
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F=AERES
Stakeholders

B

Environment

BT
Employees

PERAR
Community and the public

M EER

Expectations and requirements

o ABRHK

o ENRERE

o  [RiELRE

e  EHRESML
o  KERER

o Emission compliance
o Energy conservation and emission
reduction

o Protecting the ecology
o Addressing climate change issues
o Water resources management

. NS

o BEER
o FBNEF
o BIXR¥ER

o Rights and interests protection
o Occupational health
J Salaries and benefits
o Career development

HENDNRERIR
o ZHERRFXE
ERAFFERA
o Improving the community environment
o Participating in public welfare
undertakings
° Open and transparent information

L[]
—

BEEEELTX

Ways of communication and response

TEESR
HRIWX
AT RE
HUR B

Work report

Filing and submission
Investigation & inspection
Policy monitoring

BIREASE
ERHE
REBBFA

Workers' congress
Collective consultation
Democratic communication platform

NS

UNGIYNCS

BREIZMm

Company website
Company announcement
Interview & communication
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BEAMEEAE 1.3 Materiality analysis
REEEL2RBRESHALFINCGRE With reference to the requirements of the Environmental,
e RERWMEESDEK - BiBHS Social and Governance Reporting Guidelines of the Stock
U - ¥ 75 0 B4R A5 M ESG T {ER AKX Exchange of Hong Kong, Dongyue Group understands the
HEFHA - THRNSEEEE AR concerns, expectations and demands of stakeholders on
ARFAEERORETE - BEEFK the sustainable development of the Company through the
I F S AERE 5 BT A R T T A BN collection of questionnaires, business review conclusions
BEMHE ERZERBREEME and ESG work effectiveness benchmarking, identifies and
ANBEEL2E  UREFERE 2@ determines the materiality of issues of concern of
WKERR HERERER B stakeholders, and serves as an important reference for the
FzEBRE Y] - extent and boundary of disclosure of issues to ensure a
more accurate and comprehensive disclosure of
environmental, social and governance information and to
respond to the concerns of stakeholders.
FESZEEE BEEEZE HeESHE
Moderately Material Issues Highly Material Issues S etf®
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Production Safety
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Productand s.erwce Quality
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e
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Responding to ° overnance Issues
EEEERRAT chmate.change
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N K& B B orporate
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. e v
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Water resource Pollution Management AARBE|BBE
management Talent Attraction and Development
ﬁﬂ%ém%ﬁ
Communif
Communication
and Engagement
4.90 5.10 530 550 570 5.90
HRESENEEN

Materiality to Dongyue Group

REEE2022 FESGEREBELERE
Figure: 2022 ESG Materiality Matrix of Dongyue Group
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2.

Responsible Operation

Dongyue Group strictly uphold honesty, trustworthiness,
integrity and self-discipline, strictly control the quality of
products, focus on optimizing the service experience, and
solidify the foundation of responsibility. Meanwhile, the Group
attaches great importance to responsible procurement,
strengthens the management of supply chain, and strives to
build a high-quality supply chain.

2.1

Reinforcement of Anti-corruption Efforts

Dongyue Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations, such as the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Supervision Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery, the Group has formulated internal
business rules and regulations covering all subsidiaries,
such as Dongyue Group Risk Management Manual and
Dongyue Group Regulations on Anti-fraud Management.
The Group insist on a zero-tolerance attitude towards
corruption and fraud, and have established a supervisory
mechanism with a well-defined structure and
responsibilities to ensure the effective implementation of
the company’s anti-corruption work and to create a
corruption-free and honest working environment.

We continue to optimize the two-level discipline
inspection and monitoring system of the Group and its
subsidiaries, and gradually formed a working mechanism
of “discipline inspection identifies problems — the
management department looks for solutions — and the
compliance management formulates new systems”. The
branch secretary is the leader of each unit's second-level
discipline inspection and monitoring team, which monitors
the members and key positions of each division to achieve
efficient and comprehensive supervision and
management. At the same time, the Group opens up a
variety of communication channels, such as mailboxes,
e-mail boxes and telephone numbers for whistle-blowing,
to strictly crack down on fraudulent reporting, disciplinary
violations, corruption and other misconduct. In 2022, the
Group launched the “Qingfeng Dongyue” WeChat
account to provide services integrating whistle-blowing
channels, promotion of laws, compliance culture and
warning and education. During the reporting period, we
received a total of 10 reports of problems through the
reporting channels, such as the “Qingfeng Dongyue”
WeChat account and the whistle-blowing mailbox, and
interviewed 1,280 front-line cadres and employees, with a
resolution rate of 100%.
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2.2

The Group continues to promote daily anti-corruption
publicity and training, focusing on integrity warning and
education to enhance employees’ awareness of anti-
corruption. In 2022, we conducted a number of
specialized integrity culture education and integrity
compliance training for Board members, management of
the Company and professional positions, and strictly
required relevant personnel to participate in the training.
We organize visits to Zibo cadre integrity education base
for leading cadres and members of key positions and carry
out specialized training on cadre duty risk prevention and
control, through a combination of online and offline
formats, to promote the Group’s system processes and
laws and regulations. In addition, we have launched the
“Legal Journal and Compliance Classroom” section in the
"Qingfeng Dongyue” WeChat account and publish no
less than two issues per month to promote laws and
regulations and the awareness of compliance, so as to
enhance the staff’s awareness of integrity and anti-
corruption. During the reporting period, the Group's total
number of anti-corruption training hours reached 423,900
hours, with over 7,000 participants, anti-corruption
training hours per employee reached 60 hours, and no
corruption cases occurred.

Strictly Control the Quality of Products

Dongyue Group strictly controls the quality of products,
continues to promote the optimization of quality control
system and management process, and continuously
enhances the efficiency and precision of quality
management, and strives to deliver better and safer
products to the community.

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the relevant laws
and regulations such as the Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and based on the strictly
execution of internal systems such as Quality System
Management Manual, Quality Management System,
Measures for the Implementation of Quality Management
Assessment. We further revised and issued a number of
management measures in 2022, including the Quality
Inspection Management System, Product Operation
Environment Management System, Procurement Quality
Control System for Group Equipment, and Product
Identification, Tracing and Protection Management
System, to strengthen quality control throughout the
entire life cycle of material and equipment procurement,
production and manufacturing, quality inspection, product
transportation and delivery.
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Standardized Quality Control

Dongyue Group persists in leading high quality with high
standards and implements standardized management of
the entire product life cycle to minimize abnormalities in
the operation process and operation behavior and to
ensure product quality. In November, our subsidiary
Dongyue Organosilicone Materials Co., Ltd. was awarded
Good Standardization Practice Certificate (AAAA) by
China Association for Standardization, which is the best
recognition of our standardization work and product

quality.
( )
BRERNOIRES
AAAA
B BELRFITAEE
Figure: Good Standardizing Practice Certificate
\ J
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Dongyue Group strives to enhance the standardization of
product management through information construction.
In 2022, the Group introduced information-based
inspection means in the raw material standards, central
control product indicators and finished product stability
sections to realize controllable inspection sections and
ensure timely inspection of raw material, central control
and finished product information and indicators, accurate
information and compliance with standards.

o Quality of raw materials: Through information-
based means, we are able to capture statistics and
analyze key raw material indicators such as Silicon
dioxide content of fluorite, calcium and magnesium
ions of raw salt, and iron and phosphorus content
of silicon blocks to strengthen the control of key
raw material control indicators and improve the
efficiency of raw material quality inspection.

o Stability of Products: We strengthen the control
and supervision of key control indexes of solid
products, such as the relative density of polymer DF-
203F standard, the nitrogen adsorption specific
surface area of organic silicone, and the content of
calcium fluoride in chemical AHF reaction residue, to
effectively improve the stability of different batches
of products in the production process.

Product Quality Inspection

Dongyue Group strictly complies with national, industry
and enterprise quality inspection standards and
requirements, formulates the Quality Inspection
Management System, establishes standardized and
systematized product inspection procedures, strictly
controls the inspection process, strengthens product
quality control, and ensures the quality and safety of the
products supplied. In 2022, the highest quality ratio of
products of the Group’s subsidiaries exceeded 98%.In
accordance with the Nonconforming Product Control &
Management Program, the Group strengthens the post-
processing of nonconforming products to ensure that
customer deliveries are completed with the highest
quality. During the reporting period, there was no active
or passive recall of the Company’s products due to
product quality issues.
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X 02FREEETBAREMRE Table: The share of top product quality grades of
EREHBMELEER subsidiaries of Dongyue Group in 2022

LWEREERESY> TR Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.

BRAAE 98.68% 98.61%
| BR B A A A R Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New

BRAAE Material Co., Ltd. 98.49% 97.83%
IR R RN R Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon

BRAR] Materials Co., Ltd. 100% 100%
IWREEETHRAR Shandong Dongyue Chemicals

Co., Ltd. 100% 100%
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2.3 Enhancing Service Experience

Dongyue Group insists on the concept of “customer-
oriented”, with high quality products as the connection,
providing customers with high quality and high level of
service, and pursuing long-term, stable and mutually
beneficial relationships with customers.

The Group has enhanced its customer service
management system, prepared the “Dongyue Group Sales
Management Regulations” covering the whole sales
process of pre-sale — in-sale — after-sale, guided and
regulated the service behaviors of employees in each
section, and realized the closed-loop management of
service. We listen to customers’ opinions, establish a
bridge of communication with them, and hold customer
satisfaction surveys at least once a year. In addition, the
Group amended the “Customer Feedback Information
Management System” to enhance the response process
for customer complaints, after-sales services, customer
sample retention and special requests to fully guarantee
the quality of customer services. In 2022, Dongyue Group
and its subsidiaries received 17 complaints from
customers. We actively resolve customers’ problems by
taking the initiative to contact customers in a timely
manner to identify the causes, organizing technical
personnel to communicate with and guide them remotely,
and sending professional staff to provide on-site guidance
for debugging, etc. Our complaint resolution rate is
100%.

The Group believes that protecting information security
and data privacy is fundamental to creating a superior
user experience. The Group strictly complies with the
relevant laws and regulations such as the Data Security
Law of the People’s Republic of China, newly revises the
Information Automation Work Management System of
Dongyue Group, continuously strengthens the
construction of information security technology and safety
operation system, refines information management
technology, and effectively manages and controls the
Group's information security risks. In 2022, the Group had
no incidents of customer privacy leakage.
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2.4 Enhanced Responsible Procurements

Dongyue Group has formulated internal systems such as
Supplier Management System and Material Procurement
Process of Dongyue Group to strengthen the
oA management of supplier admission, auditing, withdrawal
and communication, and is committed to creating a
sustainable supply chain that is honest and compliant,
open and transparent, and green and healthy. In 2022,
the Company further revised its supplier management
system and processes, refined the supplier admission
criteria, and formed an investigation team with the Supply
Audit Department under the Group Audit Department
and the Supplier Management Department to carry out
audits on supplier admission. During the reporting period,
the share of suppliers who completed the refined
admission audit was 68.6%, and the quality passing rate
of major raw material procurements reached 97.23%.

The Group's suppliers are divided into three categories
based on the range of products supplied: suppliers of
major raw materials, suppliers of packaging auxiliary
materials and suppliers of production machinery and
equipment. As of the end of the reporting period, the
Group had 934 suppliers, of which 271 were certified by
the quality management system (ISO 9000), 180 were
certified by the environmental management system (ISO
14000) and 161 were certified by the occupational health
and safety management system.

HERELES

Geographical Distribution of Suppliers
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Figure: Distribution of Dongyue Group’s suppliers by region
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Research and Development Innovation

Dongyue Group deeply implements innovation and initiation
development strategy, establishes scientific and efficient R&D
management system and innovation mechanism, and
continuously improves scientific research efficiency. With our
own high-quality research and development resources and the
support of cooperative research and development platform and
intellectual property rights system, the Group has accelerated
the transformation of technological achievements and
comprehensively guided the upgrade of fluorosilicon industries.
In 2022, the Group invested RMB1,311 million in research and
development.

3.1 Establishment of Research and Development System

The Group has established an internal research and
development management structure and set up a central
research institute, a collaborative innovation research
institute, a global innovation research institute and a
research operation management office, forming an
innovation work management system with well-defined
authority and responsibility and smooth operation, which
has effectively improved the efficiency and quality of
product innovation and research work. The Group has
established a high quality innovation team and a team of
outstanding engineers. As of the end of 2022, the
number of the Group’s scientific and technological
research and development personnel reached 807, of
which 43% were PhDs and masters. With our solid
scientific research strength, we won 1 Special Award for
Technical Invention of Shandong Province, 1 First Prize for
Provincial Scientific and Technological Progress and 1 Gold
Prize for China Membrane Industry Patent in 2022.
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Incentive System

Dongyue Group adheres to the concept of “reflecting
values with benefits and using wealth to reward
intelligence”, formulates and optimizes relevant
innovation incentive measures such as Incentive Scheme
for Technological Innovation in Dongyue Group, Patent
Innovation and Award System and Group Innovation
Contribution Award Selection Management Measures
(Trial), classifies and formulates annual science and
technology innovation evaluation targets, and encourages
the Group and individuals to actively undertake scientific
and technological research and product innovation. In
2022, the Group awarded more than RMB2.34 million for
product innovation, capacity enhancement and research
and development achievements. For the scientific and
technological personnel who made outstanding
contributions, the Group granted “"Dongyue Most
Outstanding Scientific and Technological Workers
(Team)”, "Dongyue Patent Star”, “Dongyue Best New
Talent” and other honorary titles.

Cooperative Platform

Focusing on extending, supplementing and strengthening
the industrial chain, Dongyue Group takes the initiative to
develop cooperation and innovation, and deepens and
expands the construction of industry-academia-research
platform. The Group and Tsinghua University, Shandong
University, Beijing University of Chemical Technology,
Sichuan University, the Lanhua Institute, Chinese Academy
of Sciences, Shanghai Institute of Organic Chemistry,
Chinese Academy of Sciences, more than 40 universities
and research institutes organizations to carry out
cooperative development, commissioned research and
development projects, and has achieved a series of
cooperative results.
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Qingdao University of Science and Technology
Project for the development and industrialization of
key catalyst systems for bulk polymeric base
materials. The Group cooperated with Qingdao
University of Science and Technology to develop
two degradable and environmentally friendly
dispersants for the production of high-performance
polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) dispersion resins and
concentrates respectively and formed a complete
production process of degradable dispersants.
In 2022, the Group's industrialized production line
for high performance PTFE has completed
debugging and is in industrial production.

“Four grades of collaboration” working team. We
set up a “four grades of collaboration “working
team with the Foreign Experts Management Office
of Provincial Department of Science and Technology,
the Municipal Science and Technology Bureau, and
the Huantai County Science and Technology Bureau
to coordinate and plan the reorganization of State
Key Laboratories, and actively cooperate with the
Shanghai Jiao Tong University team to organize and
prepare the construction plan of the new State Key
Laboratory of Special Fluoropolymer Products and
Functional Films. With the help of the Laboratory,
Dongyue has successfully resolved the difficulties of
stabilization of a number of indicators of lithium-
grade polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) products, and
has successfully broken through the foreign
technological monopoly.
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Dongyue Group is committed to the transformation and
application of scientific research results, accelerating the
construction of the transformation and application system
of scientific and technological achievements, forming a

ENEES o whole process management mode from market
development to product commercialization and
production, and providing power and energy for industrial
upgrading.
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Application Project Product Pilot Product
and market evaluation research scale-up commercialization
development and start-up and and and production
development sample
delivery
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Figure: Flowchart of Scientific Research Innovation Transformation Application
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Dongyue Group adheres to the industry positioning of
new energy, new environmental protection and new
material, and achieved a number of significant scientific
and technical results in 2022.

J PVDF

Dongyue Group upgraded copolymerization of
hydrophilic water film grade and lithium-ion grade
PVDF products, and conducted research on
polymerization formula system, polymerization
regulation technology, post-processing technology
design, metal ion contents control and automation
enhancement, etc., and developed hydrophilic water
treatment film grade application products, which
solved the problem of large hydrophobicity of PVDF
pure water treatment film products. This product
upgrade not only breaks the monopoly of foreign
technology and solves the problem of domestic
production bottleneck, but also helps the
development of China’s new energy industry and
escorts for the realization of the goal of carbon peak
and carbon neutrality.

° PTFE

Dongyue Group further optimizes and innovates
PTFE products to completely replace the
perfluorooctanoic acid, an environmental organic
pollutant produced during the process of the
production of products, so as to achieve zero
emission of perfluorooctanoic acid, while
comprehensively improving the technical
performance of products in terms of molecular
volume, tensile strength and elongation at break,
thus contributing to the creation of an environment-
friendly industry.

° Perfluorinated ionomer membrane for chlorine
Dongyue Group introduces DF2808, a new
generation of perfluorinated ion-exchange
membrane for low-pore pressure chlorinated, which
inherits the safety and reliability of previous
generation ion membranes with significant cell-
voltage-reduction and advantages such as excellent
low energy consumption performance and eco-
friendly.
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Intellectual Property Rights Protection

Dongyue Group always adhere to the principle of
combining technological innovation and intellectual
property rights protection, continuously increase the
efforts of intellectual property rights protection, and
enhance the ability of creating, using and managing
intellectual property rights. In accordance with the
Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China, Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other relevant laws
and regulations, the Group has formulated a series of
intellectual property rights protection systems such as the
“Intellectual Property Rights Management System of
Dongyue Group” to practically regulate the patent
management of the Company.

The Group has set up the intellectual property rights
management department, with specialized personnel
responsible for the management of intellectual property
rights, undertaking patent application, protection, trade
secret protection and intellectual property rights file
management of the Group. In addition, the Group
regularly organizes and participates in the study of the
laws and regulations on the protection of intellectual
property rights, professional knowledge training and
industry seminars and exchange meetings, etc. to enhance
the employees’ mindset and awareness on the protection
of the Group’s intellectual property rights and to protect
the interests of the Company in a practical manner.

By constructing the intellectual property rights system,
Dongyue Group has significantly improved the
management level of intellectual property rights,
effectively increased the number of high-quality and high-
value patents, and realized the increase of patent
applications in terms of quality and quantity. During the
reporting period, the Group obtained a total of 88
patents. As of 31 December 2022, the Group owned 525
valid patents, of which 44 were utility model patents and
22 were Patent Cooperation Treaty (PCT) patents. The
number of invention patents increased from 407 at the
beginning of the year to 459, representing a year-on-year
increase of 12.8%.
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3.4 Leading Industry Development

Dongyue Group implements the standardization strategy
and actively standardizes its innovative achievements to
provide the necessary basis for the industry development
while enhancing the core competitiveness of its products.
As of the end of 2022, the Group had completed 97
standard projects, including 29 national standards, 10
industry standards, 5 regional standards and 53 group
standards.

In October 2022, the “Polytetrafluoroethylene Resin for
Heat Exchanger Tubes” standard drafted and published
by Dongyue Polymers was awarded the Special Award for
Innovation Contribution by China Fluorosilicon Industry
Standard. This standard is the only existing standard for
polytetrafluoroethylene resin for heat exchange tubes in
the industry, which provides the downstream fluoroplastic
tube processing industry with a raw material technical
indicator and a basis for inspection methods, unifies the
inspection methods for manufacturers and downstream
users, and is of great significance in improving product
quality and raising the barrier to entry for high-end
products.

N
WA W BREREARISIENE
| sEmmeuse .. ,mmm_ '
TR TS R g
[RABEARNACHHE | REXBAFERMIS SR
Figure: “Polytetrafluoroethylene Resin for Heat Exchanger Tubes”
standard was awarded the Special Award for Innovation Contribution
J
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Safety and Health

Dongyue Group regards safety production as one of the top
priorities of the enterprise, hence, the Group improves its safety
management system, strengthens its risk prevention and control
management efforts, and accelerates its work on strengthen
safety by technology to ensure production safety and workers’
health.

4.1

Management of Safety System

Dongyue Group adheres to the concept of philosophy of
“safety and environmental protection is the top value of
Dongyue”. It complies with the Safety Production Laws
and other national laws and regulations and established a
safety management system that covers all aspects and
processes of production and operation. The Group has
formed the Production Safety Committee (hereinafter
referred as “PSC") consisting of Chairman as director,
President as vice director, all department heads and
general managers of all subsidiaries as members, and the
percentage of general employees in the PSC is 6.7%. PSC
conducts regular quarterly meetings to summarize,
analyses and deploy the Group's safety priorities to ensure
the effective operation of the safety management system.
In addition, the Group has been promoting the
implementation of systematic, standardised and
informative safety management to strengthen the
foundation of safety management.

System Development

In 2022, the Group revised and issued 112 management
procedures and system documents of the Group, including
the “Safety Operation Procedures Management System”,
“Safety Production Accident Emergency Treatment Card”,
“Accident and Incident Management Control Program”
and “Management System of Major Hazardous Sources of
Hazardous Chemicals”, as well as 20 internal assessment
standards to ensure the achievement of the Group's
production safety objectives in terms of standardising
safety operation processes, improving safety accident
emergency disposal measures and enhancing safety
supervision and management of major hazardous sources
of hazardous chemicals.
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Capacity Building

In order to further enhance the standard of safety
management, the Group has actively facilitated the
development of safety management capabilities. In 2022,
the safety management team of the Group has been
restructured, a professional competence centre comprising
eight professional teams in safety, process, equipment,
electrical instruments, infrastructure, environment,
occupational health and firefighting. Each professional
team convenes regular monthly meetings to analyse,
examine and discuss the current condition of safety
management, and through regular supervision and
evaluation, inspect the resolution of safety problems and
the implementation of safety measures to effectively
enhance safety management capability. In 2022, the
professional competence centre has resolved an aggregate
of 34 safety-related professional issues.

Information Construction

In 2022, Dongyue Group stepped up its efforts to
informatize safety management and established an
integrated platform for safety information management
to meet the requirements of the Ministry of Emergency
Management and the Provincial Department of Emergency
Response, realizing the unified and joint management of
five major companies and five factories.

o Production Automation: The Group has further
enhanced the level of enterprise automation control,
promoting the replacement of people with
machinery and strengthening safety through
technology. As of the end of 2022, the process
automation rate of the Company’s continuous
production facilities had reached 98%.
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Process Alarm Information Management
Platform: A major breakthrough was achieved in
the construction of the Group’s process alarm
information management platform, which enabled
real-time monitoring and centralized management
of process alarms in each company. The Group is
authorized to communicate with the OPC Alarm
and Event Specification (OPC-AE), enabling the
exchange of data between the Distributed Control
System (DCS) and the alarm management platform,
enabling real-time collection, automatic archiving
and centralized storage of alarm data. In 2022, the
number of process alarms was decreased by 31.9%
year-on-year.

Early Warning and Emergency Management
System for Work Safety and Environmental
Risk Monitoring: The Group has updated and
upgraded its early warning and emergency
management system for work safety and
environmental risk monitoring, and applied the data
maintenance and modeling of 3D maps to the
newly established personnel identification module
of the safety information system to achieve precise
risk monitoring to human beings.

Hazardous Materials Detention System in the
Park: The Group upgraded its information system
for hazardous chemicals detained in the park,
incorporating GPS positioning information
technology to monitor the movement of vehicles
transporting hazardous chemicals in real time,
registering detained vehicles, assigning responsible
personnel to investigate the reasons for their
detention, and providing timely traffic management
to enhance traffic safety and efficiency in the park.
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4.2 Security Risk Prevention and Control

Dongyue Group adheres to the working policy of “safety
first, prevention as the main focus”, strengthens the
prevention and control of risks at source and procedural
control, enhances the awareness and standard of safety
risk prevention of the Group by strengthening the safety
management of production and the park, organizing
regular safety potential hazards, specialized safety
inspections and emergency drills. In addition, the Group
adheres to the management principles of unified
leadership, hierarchical responsibility, “the contractee shall
be responsible, while the one in charge be held
accountable, the employer shall be responsible “and
continues to strengthen the safety management of
contractors to minimize the safety risks of outsourced
projects.

The Group strictly executed the construction of a “Dual
System” of risk grading and hidden danger screening, to
strengthen the rectification efforts of hidden danger
screening, while increasing risk detection. In order to
ensure the orderly implementation of safety risk
prevention, control and management, the Group has set
up a leadership team for the risk classification and control
system, with specific responsibilities at each level, and
formulated detailed work plans and processes. Among
them, the general manager serves as the team leader and
is responsible for the construction of the “Dual System”
and the formulation of relevant systems and
implementation plans; the deputy general manager of
production and the chief engineer of technology serve as
the deputy team leader and are mainly responsible for the
deployment and protection of materials in the
construction work and for the supervision and assessment
of the implementation of risk control and the screening
and management of hidden danger, while the person in
charge of each workshop department carries out the
specific work of implementing risk prevention and control.
Members at all levels work closely together to ensure that
the Group’s safety risk management is scientific and
effective.
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Safety Production

Dongyue Group highly values safe production and
operation, it takes safety production management as the
main support to ensure effective safety management by
putting safety responsibilities into practice. The Group has
established and implemented a production safety
responsibility system covering all departments and
positions, requiring all staff to sign a Safety Target
Responsibility Letter and to conduct regular assessment of
the responsibility system to enhance the awareness of all
staff of their responsibility for production safety and to
ensure that safety work is carried out in practice. In 2022,
the Dongyue Group invested over RMB67,000 million in
safety production, with no graded safety production
accidents occurring during the year, 1,720 hours lost due
to work-related injuries and no work-related deaths of
employees for many consecutive years.

The Group regularly conducts professional internal audits,
group-level monthly process inspections, company-level
monthly process inspections and other specialized
inspections, covering process safety information, safe
operating procedures, and process hazard analysis. For
non-conforming inspection items, the Group will go
through a cycle of Plan, Do, Check and Act to ensure that
the rectification recommendations are effectively
implemented. In 2022, the Group identified a total of
96,926 potential hazards and achieved a 98.57%
rectification rate during the year.

o Joint Safety Compliance Check: In cooperation
with experts from the China Chemical Safety
Association, safety inspections were conducted in
eight major areas of the Group’s production
operations, including chemical management,
storage, transportation and loading and unloading,
and all major potential hazards identified were
rectified.

o Facility-specific Safety Inspections: Specialized
inspections were carried out on equipment and
facilities such as safety accessories, loading and
unloading trucks, hydrochloric acid desorption,
water treatment equipment and high voltage
electrical boxes, with a 97% rectification rate of
potential hazards.
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o High-risk Work Potential Hazard Screening: A
high-risk operation control and improvement
program and a specialized rectification project for
potential hazards were launched, and risk screening
was introduced to high-risk tasks and on-site
vendors to comprehensively sort out potential
hazard-prone sections.

o Individual Potential Risk Screening Campaign:
We conducted 553 individual inspections of
potential risk of department heads to identify and
promptly report safety issues based on our daily
work.

Park Safety

Dongyue Group reviewed and revised 15 systematic
documents in accordance with laws and regulations, such
as the Group’s Security and Guarding Workflow, the
Code of Conduct for Security Management at the Gate,
the Group's Internal Security Management Assessment
Guidelines, and the Regulations on Traffic Safety
Management in the Park, to further clarify the
responsibilities of the departments for security prevention
and to establish a system of responsibility for security
prevention at each level; the rules and regulations for
assessing the security of the Park are refined, and the
procedures for assessing and punishing wrongdoing are
standardized. In 2022, the Group further promoted traffic
management, actively maintained safety facilities and
removed potential security hazards, with no major security
issues or traffic safety incidents occurring in the Park.

Emergency Dirills

Dongyue Group has enhanced its emergency
management system, continuously improves its
comprehensive emergency plans, special emergency plans
and on-site disposal programs for accidents, increases
emergency drills and practical training, and
comprehensively improves the company’s emergency
management and response standards. In 2022, the Group
conducted 395 safety and emergency drills, including 120
fire drills, with over 7,000 participants.
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o Emergency Drill for Power Interruptions at the
Factory. In January, the Group conducted an
emergency drill on power interruptions at the
factory. The drill focused on the response and
notification of the alarm system in the event of a
circuit failure, as well as the establishment and
operation of the emergency command team and
the on-site emergency response of the workshop
after receiving the alarm. The emergency drill
achieved timely notification to the alarm system,
rapid and accurate judgement of fault points,
correct operation steps for reversing the gate, and
smooth cooperation between the staff on site.

o First Aid Emergency Exercise on Electric Shock.
In May, the Group carried out an emergency drill for
first aid in case of electric shock, where employees
learnt how to disconnect from the power source
after an electric shock and carried out a drill to call
the police and perform CPR. The drill effectively
clarified the responsibilities of personnel in the event
of an electrical shock, improved coordination
between emergency response teams and enhanced
the overall emergency response capability and
emergency awareness of all staff.

o Fire Drill. In November, the Group jointly launched
a firefighting activity with the Huantai County Fire
and Rescue Team, and carried out fire drill activities
together with firefighters, allowing staff to have
“zero distance” access to firefighting, experience
firefighting and learn firefighting.

Contractor Safety

Dongyue Group has persistently focused on the safety
control requirements for suppliers and contractors and has
formulated a number of contractor safety management
systems, including the Dongyue Group Contractor
Management System and Contractor Environmental
Management System, in accordance with the relevant
requirements of the Production Safety Law. The Group
strengthened safety supervision throughout the entire
chain and cycle, from contractor admission qualification
checking, contractor admission, construction process,
direct operation links to project acceptance, making full
use of the signing of safety responsibility agreements,
admission publicity, manual on-site supervision and the
establishment of a contractor safety education account to
change risk control from passive inspection to proactive
prevention and to build a solid barrier for contractor
safety. In 2022, there was no serious accidents or above
involving contractors of the Company.
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4.3 Occupational Health Protection

Dongyue Group strictly follows the Occupational Disease
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and has
established a comprehensive occupational health
management system. A series of management systems
have been formulated and strictly executed, including the
Safety Operation Procedures Management System, the
Management System for Safety in Restricted Space
Operations and the Accident Management and Control
Program, so that the prevention of hazards, accident
handling and supervision and inspection are governed by
rules.

The Group conducts on-site monitoring of occupational
hazards to detect potential hazards in a timely manner
and reduces the exposure of personnel to occupational
hazards by continuously improving the level of automation
of installations and level of intelligence, and by achieving
strict enclosed isolation measures. The Group equips
safety and protective equipment and facilities for positions
and key areas that may pose health hazards to employees,
and provides employees with appropriate protective
materials to protect their personal safety and health. In
2022, the Group spent a total of RMB8.152 million on
labor insurance supplies. In addition, the Group will
conduct regular occupational physical examinations and
establish an occupational health file, and in 2022, the
Group has achieved 100% coverage of medical
examinations for its employees.

In order to safeguard the health and safety of workers
engaged in high-risk special operations, the Group
launched the supervision and management of special
operations. Through on-site examination, operational
supervision, inspection of special operations with permits
and punishment for working without permits, the Group
has been able to raise the awareness of safe production
and safe operation standards of workers engaged in
special operations such as working in height, melting and
soldering and thermal cutting, and effectively prevent the
occurrence of safety accidents. As of the end of the
reporting period, the staff certification rate for special
operations had reached 100%.
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4.4 Safety Culture Construction

Safety culture publicity is an important part of safety
production work. Dongyue Group has persisted in carrying
out diversified occupational health education and training
for employees over the years to continuously enhance
their safety awareness and improve their self-protection
ability. Through organizing “three-level safety training and
education” for new staff, regular online and offline staff
safety retraining, training and assessment, the publication
of EHS alarm on the “Polymer EHS Monitoring” WeChat
account, the collection of safety mini-videos and safety
speech competitions, the Group has gradually established
a comprehensive training system that integrates training,
WeChat public education and safety activities.

In 2022, Dongyue Group conducted the following safety
culture construction activities:

o Safety Mini-Video Filming Campaign. In August,
the Group organized the 3rd “Safety Mini-Video”
contest and received a total of 40 safety mini-videos
submitted by its staff. Through the filming of mini-
video, employees spontaneously elaborate on safety
knowledge and promote safety skills and practices,
so that safety promotion can be heard, learned,
remembered and implemented.

o Thematic Education on Road Traffic Safety. In
November, the Group conducted traffic safety
training for all staff, and invited officers from
Tangshan Squadron of Huantai Traffic Police to
explain common traffic safety hazards in the form of
a "case study” and play the educational film. The
thematic training enabled the staff to firmly
establish the awareness of traffic safety by resisting
traffic violations and participating in traffic in a
civilized manner, which played a positive role in
preventing and reducing traffic accidents.
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® 2022FBTIWERRIFIIENR Table: Employee Occupational Safety Training
Performance in 2022

EE By 2022 F
Indicators Unit Data for 2022
BT ABRE2EERI/NEE INEE A 26.8
Training hours for all staff on production safety hour/people
REARE 5 SREEAB(BERNL) ANEIDN 26.0
By employment  Senior management(Directors and above) hour/people
grade FEEEAB(KEXE) ANSYON 26.0
Middle management(Managers) hour/people
ERET (X2BRAES  R2E¥MEET T@EI) KA 27.5

Ordinary employees (Safety management personnel, Safety  hour/people
Operations Certification Personnel, Ordinary employees)

BT AT R EEREIIRE N 12.6
Number of safety production training sessions per employee time
REBRE D SREEAR (BERIAL) R 12.5
By employment  Senior management(Directors and above) time
grade FEEEAS (KEXE) PN 12.5
Middle management(Managers) time
EBET(Z2EEAR  R2FXNMEERT - BBET) X 12.8

Ordinary employees (Safety management personnel, Safety  time
Operations Certification Personnel, Ordinary employees)
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Transition risks  Policy risks

Green and Low Carbon

Dongyue Group believes that environmental management and
green and low carbon are fundamental to sustainable corporate
development. In accordance with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and other laws and
regulations, the Company has combined its advantageous
resources to promote sustainable development in the fields of
climate change response, green product development, energy
efficiency and resource conservation measures, optimized its
environmental protection standardized management system,
strived to reduce carbon emissions generated in the course of
business development and fulfilled its responsibility as a
corporate citizen in environmental protection. In 2022, the
Company did not have any general or above environmental
incidents.

5.1 Responding to Climate Change

Dongyue Group regards the management and control of
climate change risks as an essential capability for corporate
development. We are actively responding to the national
targets of “Carbon Peak” and “Carbon Neutrality” by
identifying and assessing climate risks through our risk
management system and taking corresponding measures
to address the identified risks.

Exposure to climate change risk

BEEYHEBREE RN
B REBEBKNHT
PR A B e A% 5 38

AEREREZRERELVBENERT - |17
BEMEMERNE - BEERERZCBRNIE
Brig & - BEBRCMERCHOFREXEBLC

B HBABEERNOMH 2 -

REEEBNNBERBRZ(CHROER - BEBAR [ FIA AT
RGAMNBELEINEMLE  MAREREREER  EEKEEMHELS
Against the national targets of Carbon Peak and Carbon Neutrality and
the trend of energy transformation, all industries are facing greater
challenges to reduce energy consumption in their operations. With the
dynamic update of the climate change policy and the continuous growth
of the Group’s business, fostering a new trend of clean and low-carbon
industries has become a necessary way to comply with the trend of green
development and promote sustainable development.

Dongyue Group strives to reduce the risks brought about by policy
changes, actively undertakes the responsibility of being one of the “first
power generation enterprises to be included in the pilot carbon trading
scheme”, strengthens energy consumption control requirements and
enriches the supply of green products.
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Customers and the market are highly concerned about the company’s
performance against climate change and the carbon footprint of its
products, especially with regard to the increasing demand for higher
production standards for refrigerants. If the Dongyue Group ignores the
resulting increase in emissions and the carbon footprint of its products, it
could lead to the loss of potential customers and affect investors’
estimates of the Company’s market value.

':WWEEE%%%Eﬁﬂ%iﬁﬂﬁ@?&i?ﬁfﬁﬂ?&iﬁﬁ% BN - R
CPER - RR - BEABERRSE - BLBTHE AR EamEEM
TEI BELENEE - AIRERITESMERLIMBFIER - HRFN

ERLER TN E -
Climate change is affecting the intensity and frequency of many types of
climate, such as heavy rainfall, hurricanes, dust storms, freezing
temperatures and extreme heat and cold. These hazards will pose a threat
to human life and health and to the daily operations of the Company,
and may result in damage to the workplace and financial loss, adversely
affecting the Company’s production capacity.

o Opportunities from climate change

According to the changes in the internal and
external environment, Dongyue Group will
formulate corresponding measures and plans in
conjunction with the above risks in order to mitigate
the impact of climate change on the Group’s
operation and enhance its climate risk management
capability, specific measures include but not limited
to:

o We are always aware of national environmental
protection and energy-related laws,
regulations, and regulatory requirements, and
have developed comprehensive risk
management measures to optimize and
improve our management practices and
minimize the risk of non-compliance.
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o We are actively responding to the national call
for “Cabon Peak” and “Carbon Neutrality”,
incorporating the HKEx's ESG reporting
guidelines, proactively identifying our own
emission sources and planning to set and
disclose emission reduction targets.

o We will strengthen our ability to integrate
resources in all segments of the industry chain,
develop and select appropriate emission
reduction paths, gradually bring up a group of
professional carbon emission management
personnel during the cooperation period, train
professional teams for new management and
control topics, and enhance the competitiveness
of enterprises.

° We will focus on renewable power trading,
facilitate the consumption of electricity from
renewable energy sources, and continue to
enrich the practice of market-based green
power trading to reduce carbon emissions.

J We will raise the awareness of the technical
means of low-carbon operation and improve
the technology and equipment through
industry cooperation and communication in
order to enhance the efficiency of energy
utilization.

o We will continue to monitor market changes
and industry trends, maintain effective
communication with stakeholders and develop
green products that satisfy their needs.

Based on the above management practices,
Dongyue Group will continue to be concerned
about the direction of climate change and
dynamically update the corresponding assessment
results and measures to enhance its ability to cope
with climate change risks.
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In order to better cope with climate change, Dongyue
Group has strengthened its greenhouse gas emission
management, set environmental targets and regularly
tracked and updated the achievement of these targets, so
as to reduce carbon emissions and climate change risks in

the course of its operations.

RE

Greenhouse gases

#E— Scope 1

#HE— Scope 2

RERBEHRE (W) Emissions of greenhouse gases
(tons)

ARBEITEURERE Greenhouse gas emission per

B

[:2:]
=
WE (W, AR¥ET  RMB10,000 of operating

20204 20214 2022 F

2020 2021 2022

1,608,890.24 1,686,437.12 1,449,811.39

1,477,953.34 1,566,950.00 1,080,718.50

3,086,843.58 3,253,387.12 2,530,529.89
3.07 2.05

BEKA) income (tons/RMB 10,000 of
operating income)

5 Notes:

(1) BB W E S E AR EE B E RSt (1 The scope of data collection is the scope of the consolidated
KEEF o financial statements in the annual report of Dongyue Group.

(2) BEREENE(HEB1)KE MEHER (2)  The emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 1) were from transport
KRR CGESm) BB o Sm RIB s B am BE ik vehicles and the consumption of fuel (petrol). The emission factors
EHF2REBEBBMAEZZERATIN2020 petrol and transport vehicles refer to the “Appendix Il: Reporting

FIATNEZCIAEEFERSR - LB RER

) 2 (8= RERREBIEFEER
#3l) e
/m:ﬁ%}#ﬁﬂlg(ﬁgfﬂwz)IQ?I\%EWE’J ®

A REBEERREDTEN(EERSE
REHNAE R ERAREEREERE
(2022 FEETHR) ) R R IR 2L 5 P9
?\E (IPCC) T 2% #9¢2006 & IPCC B SR
REEVIRIEM)ETHRHE - 2022F * |
E;EKl%ﬁl:/ﬂ:ﬁﬁ%mﬁziﬂﬂm\ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ
EHRENHERAST2BEEHEERE
T BEFRANESNSEERETE
0.5703 - AR EEE&HE 2R EREH
RBERFER TR -

HEEBBRAR ZE-_FFR

Guidance on Environmental KPIs” in “How to Prepare an ESG
Report” issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited in March

2020.

The emissions of greenhouse gases (scope 2) were from
consumption of purchased electricity. And it is accounted for in
accordance with the Guidelines on Accounting Methodology and
Reporting of Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Power
Generation Facilities (2022 Revised Edition) issued by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the PRC and the 2006 IPCC
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories published by
the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). In 2022,
Scope 2 GHG emissions of the Dongyue Group, i.e. emissions from
purchased electricity, are calculated by adopting the latest national
grid emission factor, which is 0.5703 lower than the regional grid
emission factor adopted last year, resulting in an overall decrease in
total Scope 2 GHG emissions of the Dongyue Group.
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5.2 Enhancing Energy Efficiency

Dongyue Group strictly controls the utilization of energy
in the process of production and operation, and fully
integrates its own practical and intelligent equipment to
create the best operation combination of “intelligence +
management” through the refined management goal of
“improve in one year, catch up with the advanced in two
years and create first-class in three years”.In 2023,
Dongyue Group plans to achieve the target of not
exceeding 0.278 tons of standard coal per unit product of
Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co., Limited, 0.860 tons of
standard coal per unit product of Shandong Dongyue
Polymers Co., Ltd, 0.205 tons of standard coal per unit
product of Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials Co.,
Ltd. and 0.805 tons of standard coal per unit product of
Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Company
Limited.

Building on its existing initiatives, the Company continues
to focus on equipment effectiveness and low energy
consumption product design, and is committed to
improving energy efficiency in all aspects of its daily
operations in order to achieve its energy consumption
reduction targets.

o Equipment Updates: In 2022, Dongyue Group will
support the construction of new projects by using
the new one to offset the old one, including but not
limited to the construction of five sets of
incinerators, four sets of reclaimed water reuse
equipment, and the renovation of the power plant’s
spare boiler desulphurisation tower and other
environmental protection facilities to scientifically
manage the efficiency of resource use.

o Business Training Program: The joint training
centre invited national and provincial experts and in-
house trainers to conduct eight training sessions for
relevant professionals, combining the focus of
inspections and daily management requirements
with new requirements and standards for energy
management and online monitoring, and improving
the professional capacity of environmental
management staff through analysis and
interpretation.
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. Four-standard Integrated Audit: In 2022, an
internal audit of the environmental protection
system was conducted. A total of 46 issues were
identified in this audit, all of which focused on
environmental management and effectively raising
staff awareness of energy utilization efficiency.

In 2022, Dongyue Group and 3C companies will work
together to complete the connection between the online
platform of the enterprise and the 6.0 platform of the
Environmental Protection Bureau, realizing the regular and
automatic aggregation of data from online emission ports.
Meanwhile, the Company is also working with the
Information Office to promote environmental information
management. The main parameters of environmental
protection facilities are gradually unified through DCS
(Distributed Control System) to an information
management and control center, which provides the
environmental protection department with the
opportunity to monitor the operation status of
environmental protection equipment and the pollution
emission data of enterprises, realizing the purpose of
automatic and visual environmental monitoring and
further promoting the important function of
environmental information construction in enhancing
energy management.

In the office area, Dongyue Group implements the
concept of green office and guides its employees to
develop good office habits by implementing measures
such as digital office; control the use of air-conditioning
hours in accordance with the Dongyue Group Regulations
on the Use of Air-Conditioners in Office Buildings; in the
daily operation, the Group strictly managed vehicle fuel
consumption according to the Vehicle Management
System, with different measures for fuel saving and excess
fuel consumption. In 2022, Dongyue Group consumed
43.5% less petrol than last year.

In 2022, the Energy Administration of Shandong Province
issued the Notice on Matters Relating to the Trial Run of
the Spot Electricity Market Settlement in Shandong
Province in the Second Quarter of 2022, in which
Dongyue Group implemented the national electricity
reform and purchased no less than 290,343.601 MWh of
new energy in the market-based transactions,
representing 15.32% of the actual electricity consumption
in 2022.



RE - HERERRE
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

* RESEA=FREREAER

ERER

Use type

SNBE (TRE)

BREERAEE

Purchased electricity (kWh)
Electricity consumption

Table: The Energy Usage in the Past Three Years of

Dongyue Group

2020 HFEE
Consumption in
2020

1,526,811,300

2021 FHFEE
Consumption in
2021

1,618,750,000

(FEE) for clean energy (kWh) 0 145,795,320
mEEE Total coal consumption

(W) (10,000 tons) 67.34 70.48
BES(TRE) Generating capacity (kwh) 360,986,500 378,536,000
RAEE(BA=E) Steam production volume

(18) (self-used volume) (tons) 1,660,774 1,580,924
Y () Gasoline (liter) 37,891 27,508
493 (F1) Diesel (liter) 11,010 9,649
KAR (L FK) Natural gas (cubic meter) 20,638,353 22,750,421
BETRURAE 2020 4F 20214
Energy consumption 2020 2021
IRARERE (BMEIZE - Total energy consumption

BIERE - E (10,000 tons standard coal,

RAR - FAUH including coal, electricity,

gem) natural gas, gasoline, diesel) 697,312.32 732,704.86
AREETEEB Total energy consumption per

LRERERE RMB 10,000 of output value

(BmEEE - (10,000 tons standard coal,

BRI - & - including coal, electricity,

KRG ~ A natural gas, gasoline, diesel/

em,/ AREET RMB10,000 of operating

BEIA) income) 0.69 0.46

(1) ARTEARE CRH -~ 50m - RIERAR)
WEBEMNERET2ERBHARIMER
AAEIN 20209 3 A 2 EEIR R
HERERRS) 2N - BIRMHE
WIS IZERIES])  ARFEARKLFMEH
BRERMMEZL B EMN2020F9 A29
Az RA i Ema) -

Note:

2022 FHHKEE
Consumption in
2022

1,895,000,000

336,100,000

67.70
531,488,750

1,541,928
15,543
13,447

23,063,216

788,521.74

(1) For unit conversion factors of non-renewable fuels (gasoline, diesel,

LNG), please refer to “Appendix Il: Environmental Key Performance

Indicators Report” of “How to Prepare an Environmental, Social

and Governance Report” published by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited in March 2020, and the “General Principles for

Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption” published
by the National Development and Reform Commission of the
People’s Republic of China on September 29, 2020.
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5.3

Optimization of Water Utilization Management

Dongyue Group attaches great importance to the
effectiveness of the use of water resources. In the course
of its daily operation, the Company is committed to
promoting the comprehensive management of water
resources through water conservation technology and
comprehensive reclaimed water treatment and reuse,
continuously improving the management of the use of
water resources, reducing the discharge of wastewater
and promoting the achievement of the target of achieving
a water recovery rate of not less than 40% by 2025. In
2022, the Company has not experienced any problems in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

In the meantime, the Company has optimized its
wastewater disposal process based on its internal
wastewater management system, including the
“Wastewater Discharge Assessment Management
Regulations” and “Soil and Groundwater Pollution
Prevention Management System”. In 2022, Dongyue
Group completed the visualization of environmental
information, based on big data technology, to clearly
obtain environmental information such as the type,
volume, sources and quality of water resources, so as to
point out the direction for the Company’s wastewater
management, technological transformation and
comprehensive utilization, thereby achieving the purpose
of reducing the amount of pollution discharge and
protecting the environment.
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Table: The Water Consumption and Wastewater

B Discharge of Dongyue Group in the Past Three Years
20204 20214 2022 F
RKRBEKERIEE B k& B Pk E B RkE
Emission/water Emission/water S ES I AVEG
consumption in o) ipfofeiNig consumption in
Water consumption and wastewater discharge indicators 2020 2021 2022
JE7K R4 E (W) 4,566,981 4,761,142 3,875,779
Wastewater Total discharge of wastewater
(tons)
COD#Ek = (M) 57.8 72.7
COD emissions (tons)
e (i) 1.42 1.71
Ammonia nitrogen emissions (tons)
N Ak E () 13,474,550 13,300,000 14,740,196

Total water consumption (tons)
FKEE (B AREET

SN 13.42 8.39
Water consumption intensity

(tons/RMB10,000 operating

income)

Water consumption

5.4 Reduction of Pollutant Emissions

54 BDTBRER

RESEGA(PEARLIMBERER Dongyue Group combines the Environmental Protection

AP E AR KB ARRS AN AR
EXRE AR KB FREREXH
B AR FEMBIRERE SR AEXE
g‘%@%/’ﬁxiﬁiﬁﬁﬁ/n/£>>—r7|ﬁ|2§/j£_f$
FEFKRRIS RN ERRE )
<<I SREYE IR E ) CHE S AT A B R
BYE—ZINAEHEE - RRIERBER
ERHAE O RBRE BN BRF
BREBNEIRETER - BRES
FHERNER - RESER EHFE&H’F'
E2025F ZFEHMUEIRRET100% °

Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Ambient Noise Pollution,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste, and other relevant laws, further revised a
series of internal systems such as the “Regulations on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”,
“Regulations on the Management of Solid Waste” and
“Pollution Discharge Permit Management System”. The
Company manages and controls its emissions through
equipment, technology and audits based on emission
management procedures. In order to reduce the risk of
pollution emissions, Dongyue Group has set an emission
target of achieving 100% of the three types of waste
emissions by 2025.
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Exhaust gas management

Dongyue Group has given due consideration to
emission reduction during its business operations.
The Group has continued to explore and actively
adopt emission reduction measures such as
installation of desulphurization, denitration, dust
removal and ultra-low emission facilities in its own
operations to ensure that emissions comply with the
Regional Comprehensive Emission Standards for Air
Pollutants (DB37/2376-2019) standards and achieve
compliance with the emission standards.

In 2022, Dongyue Group conducted the Autumn
and Winter Atmospheric Quality Optimization and
Winter Olympic Games Safety and Environmental
Management Enhancement Action, which set up
118 environmental protection facilities, file
management and instrument control programs, and
achieved ultra-low emissions through a combination
of refined management methods and efficient
treatment methods; meanwhile, we have organized
training for our environmental management
personnel and carried out promotion of our internal
system to further enhance our pollution control
capabilities.

Table: Emissions of Dongyue Group in the Past
Three Years

BRWER 2020 F R E 2021 FHEHE 2022 FHHE
Type of emissions Emissions in 2020 Emissions in 2021 B S0 1 {170
—SE{th (E) Sulfur dioxide (tons) 106.59 130.00 146.72
RE/ () Nitrogen oxides (tons) 212.69 228.01 294.12
EEE /K EE (WR) Soot/dust (tons) 20.72 14.64 18.11
BEEAKY(WE)  Volatile organic

compounds(tons) 68.02 107.71 112.75
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Solid waste management

Dongyue Group has continued to strengthen solid
waste management in the course of project
operations, revising internal systems such as the
Regulations on Solid Waste Management and the
Indicator System for the Regularization of Hazardous
Waste Management, and exploring new techniques
for waste management. According to the principle
of "recycling, reducing and harmless” of solid
waste, the Company enhances the waste disposal
process and record-keeping rules to minimize the
amount of waste generated.

Dongyue Group collected and disposed solid waste
properly and safely, for the hazardous waste
generated by the project, such as R152a waste
catalyst, waste molecular sieve, SCR denitration
waste catalyst, incinerator fly ash, waste oil and
other solid waste, the Company entrusts to qualified
units for treatment on the basis of internal
collection. For the general solid waste generated
from daily operations, the Company entrusts the
environmental sanitation department to remove it
regularly. The hazardous waste generated is stored
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the
Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste
Storage (GB18597-2001) and its amendments, and
the solid waste transfer records are kept strictly to
regulate the process of disposal.

In 2022, Dongyue Group initiated the “Two
Research and One Competition” campaign, which
includes the reduction of by-products such as
polymer triple-effect evaporated salt, organic silicon
high-boiling cracked kettle residue and power plant
desulphurization gypsum. The Company concluded
the results of the competition and put into practice
measures to enhance technology, strengthen
management and resource utilisation to save solid
waste costs. Of which, polymer triple-effect
evaporated salt production was nil in 2022,
representing a decrease of 840 tons from 2021; and
power plant desulphurisation gypsum production
was nil in 2022, representing a decrease of
15,443.02 tons from 2021. As a result of these
initiatives, the Company has been able to deepen
the development of the circular economy and
reduce management risks.
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* REEEAOL=FHHYER Table: The disposals of solid wastes of Dongyue
Group in the past three years

ERMER 20005 REE 201 FREE 022FRESE
Type of emissions Disposals in 2020  Disposals in 2021 BDJH JoEE IS [i¥eAi v
B aE (mE) Desulphurization gypsum
(tons) 29,964 15,443.02
B R (ME) Ash and slag of power
plant (tons) 177,478 188,886.62 243,890.90
A VE B (16E) Domestic waste (tons) 87.6 105.75 248.20
HEARIF (W) Office waste (tons) 10 12 4.28
BAYE(HE) Acetylene sludge (tons) 351,022 273,028.84 181,814.82
—REEYELEE  Total general wastes
(M) (tons) 207,540 204,447 .39 244,143.38
—REEMELERE  Intensity of general wastes
(W, ANREET (tons/RMB10,000 of
EEIA) operating income) 0.21 0.13
e Note:
(1) REXERBAE ZEBKE B (1) The disposal of desulphurisation gypsum, ash and slag of
RREHBEIEAING  EITEHREF power plant and acetylene sludge of Dongyue Group is for
A sale for comprehensive use.
) 202 REZEEWMABER ) In 2022, all the desulphurization gypsum of Dongyue
HEMKARERAAE  WEEE Group has been converted into gypsum for construction,
&0 therefore, the amount of disposal is zero.
k RESEHCHREZEVERZE Table: Transfer of hazardous wastes of
FEEENERERR Dongyue Group to qualified institutions for
disposal
BRVER 20005 REBE 01 FREE 0225REE
Types of hazardous wastes Disposals in 2020 Disposals in 2021 B sTEEI BN Wi )
fElrEEyEEE () HWO06 1,319.88 1,807.04 2,223.85
Transfer volume of hazardous HWO08 122.6 135.94 189.08
wastes(tons) HW09 0 0 29.82
HW11 297.7 368.12 1,649.42
HW50 628.98 1,098.98 443.27
HW45 20,179.76 19,597.36 414.59
HW18 411.16 495.03 28,815.75
HW29 157.59 174.94 59.88

HW49 595.21 1,802.71 3,160.23
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All-win Harmony

Dongyue Group has always adhered to the philosophy of
“people-oriented” and understands that employees are the
foundation for sustainable development of the enterprise. We
always concern about and protect the legitimate rights and
interests of our employees, continuously improve our talent
training and development system, establish a comprehensive
benefits system, and strive to create an equal, warm, and
mutually beneficial working environment. Meanwhile, the
Company has kept in mind its original mission, actively fulfilled
its social responsibility and insisted on contributing to society
through practical actions.

6.1 Protecting labour rights and interests

Dongyue Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations such as the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China, and the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and has formulated internal policies
such as the Regulations on the Recruitment of Employees
of Dongyue Group and the Guidance Measures on the
Employment of Labor Dispatch (Outsourcing) of Dongyue
Group, insisting on the employment of employees in
accordance with the law and fully protecting the various
legitimate rights and interests of employees. The Company
has a policy of fairness, equality and diversity in
employment and is committed to eliminating
discrimination on the grounds of gender, geography, age,
race, religion and pregnancy and disability, and prohibits
child labor and forced labor. During the reporting period,
Dongyue Group did not experience any employment
discrimination, forced labor or child labor, and the
collective bargaining agreement covered 100% of its
employees.
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In order to further protect the legitimate rights and
interests of employees and improve the channel for the
protection of rights, the Company has set up the Dongyue
E+ Smart Court. As an important part of the Company’s
compliance construction, the E+ Smart Court provides
services to the Dongyue Group, its six subsidiaries in the
park and its employees, actively carrying out activities such
as filing and mediation, legal consultation, and legal
publicity, effectively narrowing the distance between the
court and the enterprises and employees.

Through the establishment of a comprehensive
recruitment system, the Company has comprehensively
implemented the construction of staff promotion system
and the effective allocation of talent resources and built
up a pool of human resources through various channels
such as social recruitment, campus recruitment, internal
transfer and internal promotion. In 2022, the Company
introduced 142 undergraduates, 134 masters, 12 PhDs
and 31 professionals from the corresponding disciplines.
As of the end of the reporting period, the Company had a
total of 7,065 employees, of which, 7,063 employees
were from Mainland China, 2 employees were from
overseas, all of them had 100% signed labour contracts
with the Group. In 2022, the Company, with 326 staff
lost, representing a 34.8% decrease from 2021.

Note: The statistics of employees from overseas of the Dongyue Group
are derived from the Group’s domestic statistics and do not include
the foreign organizations of the Group.
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Table: The Structure of Employees of Dongyue Group in 2022
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Total Number of Employees by Gender
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m g NAE " EEEE

TmET
Directors and above Managers
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BERERED ZEEER D
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Table: Employee Turnover Rate of Dongyue Group in 2022

BRI E D RERED
Employee Turnover Rate by Gender Employee Turnover Rate by Grade

10.00% 9.69% 10.00%

8.00% 8.00%

6.50%
6.00% 6.00%
4.29%
4.00% 4.00%
2.00% 2.00%
0.69%
0.00%
0.00% 0.00% -
HE8T ZET MERUA L CBEE TRET
58T ZET BB RIA L HIREE m EBET
Male employees Female employees Directors and above Managers Ordinary employees
BREREEED
Employee Turnover Rate by Age
20.00%
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10.00%

501%

5.00% 303%
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6.2 Promoting staff development

Dongyue Group focuses on the development of its
employees and has established a smooth promotion route
and a comprehensive training mechanism within the
Company, formulating and carrying out targeted and
diversified training programs, and striving to maximize the
personal value of its employees.

Employee Promotion

Dongyue Group values the development space and
promotion channels for its employees and has established
a multi-channel and multi-level promotion system for its
employees. The Company has established an open and
transparent promotion system by formulating relevant
management systems such as the “Management
Measures for the Promotion of Cadre Staff of Dongyue
Group”, “Management Measures for the Assessment of
Newly Promoted Cadre Staff of Dongyue Group during
the Probationary Period” and “Management Scheme for
Training and Assessment of Newly Promoted Cadre Staff
of Dongyue Group” to provide employees with multiple
development paths and fully satisfy their career
development needs.

Employee training

In line with the development trend of the new normal, the
Company focuses on the accumulation and cultivation of
high-quality and highly skilled talents. Based on the
management system such as the “Management Measures
for the Construction of Staff Promotion System and Talent
Reserves of the Group”, “Management Measures for the
Introduction and Recommendation of Talents and
Incentives of Dongyue Group” and “Management
Measures for Mentors and Mentees”, the Company has
implemented the “online + offline” and “internal training
+ external training” multi-dimensional training system to
continuously optimize the talent cultivation mechanism
and facilitate the rapid growth of employees.
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In 2022, we relied on the online education platform to
provide basic courses in electrical engineering and
chemical engineering to effectively enhance the overall
skills of our employees:

o Upgrade the training model of “in-house trainer”
and improve the implementation path of “selection,
cultivation, application, evaluation and
management” of the in-house trainer team. The
internal trainers are assessed in terms of the number
of classes taught, the delivery of classes, and the
quality of classes delivered, and the withdrawal
mechanism is activated for those who fail to meet
the requirements in terms of quality and quantity of
classes delivered. In 2022, the Company completed
a total of 7 offline empowerment trainings, 3 at the
Group level and 4 for in-house trainers at the
Company level. The number of courses delivered by
the Group’s in-house trainers was 180, accounting
for 90% of the Group’s professional training, a
threefold increase over the number of courses
delivered in previous years.

o Training on “Fluorosilicon Fine Chemicals Varieties
and Development Paths” was conducted in
accordance with the requirements of “One
Competition, Two Researches”. The training was
focused on “the scope and types of fluorosilicon
containing fine chemicals, the development status
and technology of global and domestic enterprises,
the potential of Dongyue to develop fluorosilicon
containing chemicals and suggestions”, and further
clarified the training content of “Fluorosilicon Fine
Chemicals Varieties and Development Paths” to
provide the right direction for the research and
development of fine chemicals.
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Conducted systematic training for 216 newly
promoted cadres. Based on the Group's 2022
Training and Enhancement Implementation Plan for
Newly Promoted Management Personnel, the
Company has systematically introduced the leading
DDI (Development Dimensions International) training
and systematic professional courses in the field of
management professions to cultivate and enhance
the leadership skills of newly promoted personnel at
different levels and by profession. A combination of
online and offline training is available to facilitate
practical improvement in the competency of cadres.

In 2022, the Company organized 246 Group-level
training sessions and 714 company-level training
sessions, with a total of 6,762 traineesN°te and
547,722 hours of training, with an average of 81
hours per employee.

Note: The scope of the 2022 training data includes all current
employees, however, there are differences in the statistical
calculations based on when employees join and leave the
Company, therefore the total number of employees trained
is greater than the total number of employees employed.
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Table: Staff Training at Dongyue Group
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RESEBETNZIEEAR
Number of Trained Employees by Employment Type
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6.3

Caring for Employees’ Life

Dongyue Group insists on people-oriented operation and
regards its employees as an important asset for the
development of the Company. The Company cares for the
physical and mental health of its employees, provides a
warm and welcoming working environment, strives to
provide comprehensive protection for employees’ working
life, enriches their spiritual and cultural life, and enhances
their sense of happiness and belonging.

Remuneration and Benefits

Dongyue Group strictly complies with the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China and other laws and
regulations, and insists on providing competitive salaries
and comprehensive welfare benefits to its employees,
creating a basic welfare protection system covering basic
pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance and housing provident fund, as
well as benefits such as annual leave, holiday allowances
and free working meals. Through competitive salaries and
multi-level welfare protection, we enhance the
cohesiveness and sense of belonging of our employees
and realize mutual achievement, mutual benefit and
harmonious development of our employees and the
organization.

Employee Communication

Dongyue Group actively listens to the opinions of its
employees, establishes a bridge of communication with
them, listens to their opinions through various means such
as seminars and staff meetings, and solves practical
difficulties for them. In 2022, the Company organized a
total of 14 seminars to discuss topics such as subsidies for
talents, construction of flats, canteens and other living
infrastructures, which achieved positive results.
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In 2022, the Company organized a specialized seminar on
talent flats to gain a full understanding of the staff's
experience and feelings of staying in the Xiyueli Talent
Flats, and shared their feelings with the member workers,
and made suggestions and recommendations. A total of
nine issues were raised during the seminar, all of which
have been implemented and rectified to provide a
comfortable living environment for the staff. The
Company also organized staff representatives’ meetings
to obtain their views on the Company’s organizational
system and to discuss and vote on the content of the
system which is closely related to the interests of the staff
to ensure that the procedure and content of the system
are in compliance with the law.

Well-being

Dongyue Group strives to create a good living
environment for its employees by continuously improving
its infrastructure and launching a variety of leisure
activities to facilitate a balance between life and work for
its employees.

In 2022, the Company will further promote its staff service
efforts through a series of initiatives to care for the quality
of life and working environment of its staff: opening of
the new Xiyueli talent flat community, enhancing the
flats, canteen, car park and other necessary living facilities;
opening and renovation of sports venues such as lighted
basketball courts and football stadiums in staff flats; the
“Dongyue Youth” dating platform has been set up to
increase communication and exchange between
employees, effectively enhancing their sense of well-being
and satisfaction.

In 2022, we launched a variety of staff cultural and sports
activities, such as the March 8 Goddess Festival, the May
Day Fun Games, the Anti-pandemic Youth Activities, Book
Reading Activities, the Grand Competition, the New Staff
Induction Interview, the Speech Competition, the Mid-
Autumn Festival Social Activities, and the Group Classes
on the theme of learning the 20th National Congress,
which enriched the spare time of staff and strengthened
their cohesion and collective sense of honor.
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6.4 Contributing to the Social Development

Over the years, Dongyue Group has valued its contribution
to society and has taken the initiative to fulfill its social
responsibility. The Company continues to make efforts in
public welfare activities and the fight against pandemic,
always serving the community with enthusiasm.

Public Welfare Activities

Adhering to the philosophy of “building hometown,
repaying the society, serving the country, repaying the
party”, Dongyue Group has carried out public welfare
support in various areas such as environmental protection,
healthcare, education, sports development and
employment, assisting in building a harmonious and
inclusive society and building a good image as a
responsible corporate citizen.

In 2022, the Company continued to rely on its four
charitable funds to implement the Company’s public
welfare philosophy, with total donations to social welfare
projects amounting to RMB1,483.32 million.
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REZHBE £ Dongyue Education Fund

PRIZIA 2000 4 B AEHZN NS SRR AR 58 OB AN AR (B R A0 2 A METT 428 » W
EREaBRT/NERY [(REEE] - 2022 FREHE RBES AT BNES AR 179
BT °

Established in 2000, the Dongyue Education Award Fund aims to reward teachers and stu-
dents with outstanding performance in local education, and has funded the establishment
of “Dongyue Studies” for primary and secondary schools in Huantai County. In 2022, the

Dongyue Education Fund awarded a total of RMB1.79 million.

REH#ZH$ Dongyue Scholarship Fund

FXIZRS 2000 F - AARNRERE « IIREBIREHEFKERENESSEHETERE) -
Established in 2000, the Dongyue Scholarship Fund is designed to reward the students of
Tsinghua University and Shandong University of Technology with outstanding academic
achievements.

REELE$ Dongyue Staff-caring Fund

FXIZIA 2005 F - ARHEZES THEEK
Established in 2005, the Dongyue Staff-caring Fund is designed to support the Group’ s
staff in financial difficulties

REEBEZE$ Dongyue Elder Respecting Fund

FXIZF 2007 5 - BFREILE 80 5RIA_EE AR 200 TTAERHAL o
Established in 2007, the Dongyue Elder Respecting Fund is designed to provide an allow-
ance of RMB200 each year to elders aged over 80 in Tangshan Town.

RER4ES Dongyue Women and Children Fund

FXAZRY 2017 F - BB 5 BRI IRIEF B S A - AN EE R E X R ERRRMEE
Established in 2017, it is jointly founded with Huantai County Women's and Children's
Healthcare Center for the purpose of assisting and caring for women and children with
illnesses in the surrounding areas.

REEEIARAGEESBERHE
Figure: Overview of the Five Dongyue Group Charity Fund
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Dongyue Group is deeply committed to supporting the
education industry, fully demonstrating its benevolent
spirit and social responsibility. In 2022, Dongyue Group
recognized 20 units with outstanding performance in
respecting teachers and education, including Dongyue
Fluorosilicon Science and Technology Group Co., Ltd.,
which cares about supporting the development of
education. Awards and support are provided to
outstanding teachers, students with excellent academic
performance and poor students. The total amount of
awards and donations from the award fund was RMB1.79
million, making contributions to the cultivation of
outstanding talents in the local community. In 2022,
Dongyue Group was awarded the advanced title of
“Qutstanding Unit on Respecting Teachers and Valuing
Education”.

Assistance in the Fight against the Pandemic

In 2022, Dongyue Group fully supports the government’s
pandemic prevention and control work in terms of
financial, human and material resources while doing a
good job in its own epidemic prevention and control work
and safeguarding its production, so as to interpret its
responsibility and commitment with practical actions and
contribute to the pandemic prevention and control.

When the pandemic outbreak occurred in March 2022,
Dongyue Group, as a local enterprise in Huantai, was the
first to set up the Group’s Closed-off and Static
Management and Pandemic Prevention and Control
Command Office. We have improved the deployment of
pandemic prevention and control inside the enterprise and
designated an anti-pandemic specialist to ensure the
safety of more than 5,000 cadres and employees in the
park. Meanwhile, we donated RMB10 million to the
Charity Association of the County, which demonstrates
the mission and responsibility of Dongyue members.
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EBE EE ]

Indicators Details

A.IRiE A. Environment

BE A1 : BElY Aspect A1: Type of emissions

— PR FE General Disclosure

BRABERIOBERBBHN - MK EHEES AERBEEEEZYNELFZHBERMETH
SERER

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

A11 PEpmtEsa K AE R BE R EE

The types of emissions and respective emissions information

A1.2 B (SBE—) kg REZ(BE D) REREEHME (AT &) R (@A)
BE (ML BESERN - §IERHBTE)
Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions in
tons and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility)
A13 ELEEREYEE CANEE) X (ER) ZE (MASESE -
R E

Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)

A4 P S ERRNEE AN R (ER) B (NS ER Bl -
it E)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
A1.5 FREISZEVEE NS B 1R R R E D5 & B 1R P ERER A 22 5%

Emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

A1.6 REFERBEREEYNAE BTV ARERERAEINELRZT
Fr SR ER 9 27 5%
How hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

HESE
Corresponding
Chapters

VRGP 73
FEHRIREL
Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
Responding to
Climate Change
NERNEE 7 3
Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions

e RIREL

Responding to
Climate Change

B TE R IR

Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions

DTSR IR

Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
DRt It
Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
TS R

Reduction of
Pollutant Emissions
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Indicators

JEHEA2 :
EREA
— =

15
Details
Aspect A2:

Use of Resources
General Disclosure

AREAER (DIER KRR BT E

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

RERAESMERE R SEEER(INE - fReloh) BF2 (A TETRR
AH)REE(WMASESEMN - BERETHE)

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)
in total (kWh) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility)
BFEKRERTBE (WNABEE R - BERBITE

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility)

FTRTSZEVBEIRE A r0 R st B AR R A2 BE & B AR P RN 22 8]

Energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

SKERGE R KR ERI B ERIERE - AR R AKER B IR R AED ST
B IRPTERER B P B

Whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

R mATABEMHNAE (UNEAE) R (ER) BEERULE
Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tons) and, where
appropriate, with reference to per unit produced
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HESH
Corresponding
Chapters

B = BE IR A K
BlLRKER
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
RERE

Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
BlLRKER
Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
RE LR E
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
BlLRKER

Optimization of
Water Utilization
Management
NP

Not applicable
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Indicators Details

EEA3: Aspect A3:

BRIERXAREIR Environment and Natural Resources

— M General Disclosure

HERABHRERRREREREATENRE

Policies on minimizing the Company’s significant impact on the environment and natural

resources

A3.1 EEEEIRREARAARE RN EAFERE RN EE B ENITE
The significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage them

EEAAL: Aspect A4:

RIR2L Climate Change

— = General Disclosure

HRREHE AR EH AR EAFVENERREHEBEENER

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer

A4.1 ERKAEGHETAEEXENERRIGEBEE - REHTTE
Significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them
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HEZE
Corresponding
Chapters

icE gty Zie

}Elﬁ Hb/ﬁ%&‘?—\
BEAKER

BATE R
Responding to
Climate Change
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
Optimization of Water
Utilization
Management
Reduction of Pollutant
Emissions
&SR R B 1L

R BRI E
BlLRKER

AT R
Responding to
Climate Change
Enhancing Energy
Efficiency
Optimization of Water
Utilization
Management
Reduction of Pollutant
Emissions

JESTR IR E
Responding to
Climate Change
J& SR I B
Responding to
Climate Change
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Indicators Details

B.4E B. Social

[BEB1: €/ Aspect B1: Employment
—e R General Disclosure

BRAHM L ARE BEREA  TERS - R FERE Sl REBUREMEFS
NAgRIEY -
(@ BE: K
(b) BTFEHETAFERZENHRBERLRINER
Information on:
(@)  the policies, and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare
B1.1 RIER - EEEL (N2 BEGRR) - Fiean MR E o HE 888
Total workforce by gender, employment type (e.g. full-time or part-time), age
group and geographical region
B1.2 RIER - FiER LR E D HEB MK X

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

[EHEB2 : Aspect B2:

RERERZD Health and Safety

—RRHE General Disclosure
FRRHZ2THERBELRERSEREBELREEN
(@ BE - K

(b) BTFTEHETAGEARFZENHBEERLROINER
Information on:
(@)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards
B2.1 BE=F (BRERFE) BFRITHOAB R X
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year
B2.2 AIGIERTIERR
Lost days due to work injury

B2.3 PRERANEO B R B 22 245 16 - DA AR BRRATT R EEZRT90%

Occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored
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HESH
Corresponding
Chapters

RIES Them
AEET AR

Protecting labour
rights and interests
Caring for
Employees’ Life

RIES T
Protecting labour
rights and interests
RIEB T
Protecting labour
rights and interests

B 2 FRARIR

Occupational Health
Protection

BEERRE
Occupational Health
Protection

B RRE
Occupational Health
Protection
BEERRE
ZEXER
Occupational Health
Protection
Construction of Safety
Culture
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Indicators Details

EHEB3: Aspect B3:

BRREI Development and Training

—RRIRTR General Disclosure

BRARTHE B BT TIERE A A8 SR R AE IR ©
i AR - AT eERE RN ENNINEIRE
Policies on improving employee’s knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by the employer

B3.1 RUERIREEEN(IMRRERE HAETEREES)EHINZIEEBSL
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle management)

ORIEINEE) -

B3.2 BMRIREEERE S - BREETKEIINFHERE
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category

fETE B4 : Aspect B4:

TR Labor Standard

—RRIRER General Disclosure

BRAIEE T SAEIBTH
(@ BX: K
(b) EFHETABERZENEMERNARDINER
Information on:
(@)  the policies, and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor
B4.1 B BEEE IR e He AR S T Rk o9& |45 T
Measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced labor

B4.2 FERBEBRIB SRR A BRI LA ERENA 25 5

Steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

HEZE
Corresponding
Chapters

MBI #RE

Promoting staff
development

BWHEI%RE
Promoting staff
development
BHhEIHE
Promoting staff
development

RIZES TRz

RIEB T
Protecting labour
rights and interests
TRIZES Tz
Protecting labour
rights and interests
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Corresponding
Indicators Details Chapters
JEHEBS : Aspect B5:
e EE Supply Chain Management
—MRHE General Disclosure
EIRHERNRIE I g RREBR BB ERE
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain Enhanced Responsible
Procurements
B5.1 miEE S MHEEREA LB AR
Number of suppliers by geographical region Enhanced Responsible
Procurements
B5.2 M AR REERNED  MERTEREINHERRE  ULEH @b B EEREE

BHNRITRERT A
Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers ~ Enhanced Responsible

where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and Procurements
monitored
B5.3 A BERRIHEES ERANRBE LA GRARNED - ARBERTR st BEERES
BERITE
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along  Enhanced Responsible
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored Procurements
B5.4 LA RRE BRI I (2 (£ 2 AIRIRE dn R ARTSROIE B - LA K ABRE#ITT ) @b B IR
BERITE
Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products Enhanced Responsible
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and Procurements
monitored.
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Indicators

JETEB6 :
ERER
— =

#+15
Details
Aspect B6:

Product Responsibility
General Disclosure

BRFMRHERMRENEFRRERZE  BS BRERBLFEARBRIT AN :

@ BER: K

(b) ETHETABEAFZENRBEERMRIINER

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

PENDEREmBRPEALT 2 RERBEAMBNKNED L
Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons

BB Em MRS IRF B A REE A

Number of products and services related complaints received and how they
are dealt with

il ot BB 4 T T RPN BEE M AR A 1B D)

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights

i LB B A E B2 N an B AR

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

OB E & BB RE RABBER - ARBERTRERT A
Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

HEZE
Corresponding
Chapters

BEEMEE
YTt AR 7% Be A

Strictly Control the
Quality of Products
Enhancing Service
Experience

BITEMEE
Strictly Control the
Quality of Products

T IR7 B8R

Enhancing Service
Experience
FERERE
Intellectual Property
Rights Protection

BIEEREE
Strictly Control the
Quality of Products

R RTS R85

Enhancing Service
Experience
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Indicators Details

[EHEB7 : Aspect B7:

RES Anti-corruption

— = General Disclosure
BREFLEERE 1R - MFFREREM -
(@) BE: &

(b) EFHBETABERZENEMEZENAROINER

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering

B7.1 REHRFHAHBHITAREEER DY D BENBSHRARMENEE KRR
mR

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of
the cases

B7.2 FrE e R WmEF - URBENTRERTA
Preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored

B7.3 HilmEERE T RENRESE
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff

fEEBS : Aspect B8:
HERE Community investment
—Re R General Disclosure

FHENHEZ2ERTHRSEMEHERTENERARKEDEE BLERNENEE
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the
issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities interests
B8.1 EIER®E(WHE  RRFE BTHEFK - #FE - Xt 85
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labor
needs, health, culture, sport)
B8.2 EHFHBEFAEBAER (NS ERERE)
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area
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HESH
Corresponding
Chapters

B ElS

Reinforcement of
Anti-corruption
Efforts

R IBER

Reinforcement of
Anti-corruption
Efforts
PIE:ARERIEYES
Reinforcement of
Anti-corruption
Efforts
PIEASTEEY: S
Reinforcement of
Anti-corruption
Efforts

BERit g ER
Contributing to the
Social Development

Rt gBRE
Contributing to the
Social Development

BRIt g ER
Contributing to the
Social Development
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To the Shareholders of Dongyue Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 137 to 281, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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BRRENSEE

HRETEESBRETENEEHE  RAHEH
EZ202F 12 AN ALEFENGEVBRENE
ARABREMNEIE ST HEESSEER
BAMBERERBAEEABETEEN  BFT
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matter

BHRETER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

E 5 BWRIRRER L

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately RMB2,140,206,000 and
provision for impairment of approximately RMB6,888,000.

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 90 days for trade
receivables. Management performed periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade receivables and the
sufficiency of provision for impairment based on
information including credit profile of different customers,
ageing of the trade receivables, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and on-
going trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.

We identified trade receivables as a key audit matter due to
the measurement of expected credit losses (“ECL") requires
significant estimates and judgements, including
determination of whether there is significant increase in
credit risk, use of models and assumptions in determination
of probability of default, incorporation of forward-looking
information.
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How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENETNNEERRENSEH

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2022 included:

— Understanding the management’s estimation on the

allowance for credit losses on trade receivables, and
the key controls that the Group has implemented to
manage and monitor the credit risk of the trade
receivables;

—  Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 to the
underlying financial records and subsequent
settlements;

— Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due as at year end and
corroborating explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on
trade records, checking historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence with
the customers; and

— Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
loss provisioning methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess their accuracy and
completeness, and challenging the assumptions,
including both historical and forward-looking
information, used to determine the expected credit
losses.
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Key audit matter

BREHEE

R2022F 12 A31H  ESEFEEZESERFIBLBHA
R #52,140,206,000 7T MR B B 49 A R 6,888,000 7T ©

—&mE EEERTEPRURANEEHNF30E
0K - BEEBENUTEMEE S RYGRIAMN AT EIE
BB ERENT R ITETEHNE  BRTREFPNE
R - BHREFIARE - ELAEECE  RESED
A BRARREGEHNERRRNSELEAREFOE
HESRE - EETERAEFETPEERKLERREE
NHFIEEER - MR EFEGATEREERR -

BERE S RUGRIARR SRRETFR - BN EN
EEEBER(EREEHE D FTEREHERAE MG
BREEERBREDAEEN EEEOMEEIEEMR
ARBR - AEZEMAREIEER -

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

EENESTNAEEBARESNSEE

EEHEEER2022F12 A31 B2 5 EWHIBERERT
HRITHRF B

— THREEEHEIRUGREEBBERENMGS
k BREBEREENERESREGAEERRME
T BASR I I A6

—  WERRER2022F12 A3 BEBYBLEANE S
FEM A M AR B REEMREKER

— REEEARFRCARSEANEZRBUGIAEMN
N WEBIFKEBREEEEENRE  WERES
AR TRATFORAXBEE ZEEFPNESLR
BREBELEANBATEPOEMRERER - &

— MEEHEEBRRBEIENEEN  mERETE
R A A EERE R BN - YEERARNEE
BHEEERNORE  BRELLATEEER -
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Information Other than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Mr. Yip Kai Yin, with practising certificate number:
PO7854.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

28 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

ks
Notes
Wrzs Revenue 6
5 E AR Cost of sales
EA Gross profit
H AU A R E A i 2 Other income and other net gains 7
and losses
DN ER Distribution and selling expenses
TR E A 2 Administrative and other expenses
BAEHE B2 ATMIWES Gain on deemed disposal of an associate 17
& — A B A T e Es 18 Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 40
T 95 K F B A AR Research and development costs
WA ET AEBR 2 SRERE  Fair value changes on financial assets at
N EZE fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
SME—HBE R RIEE Share of results of an associate
BEK A Finance costs 8
R 5 B A Profit before taxation
Frig®if = Income tax expense 9
FRE Profit for the year 10
Hih2EHAX Other comprehensive expense
BT EFH I EEIERAEF - Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
BATE A MR EWSS > Fair value changes on equity instruments
BRATAEZ AT EES at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
REETHEW R Total comprehensive income for the year
THEFEIEFERRZTF Profit for the year attributable to:
—ARRBEB A — Owners of the Company
—IF IR AR R fE o — Non-controlling interests
THEFEIERFERE Total comprehensive income for the year
Was4a%E - attributable to:
—ARRFREBA — Owners of the Company
—IEIE IR A S b — Non-controlling interests
ERAEH Earnings per share 13
EAXEEE(ARE) Basic and diluted (RMB)

136 HEEEERAR —B==—FFH

2022 F
2022
AR®T T
RMB’000

20,027,988
(13,513,617)

6,514,371

229,006
(498,767)
(993,740)

1,212,290

(1,310,535)

(37.669)
25,401
(15,302)

5,125,055
(948,938)

4,176,117

(5.830)

4,170,287

3,855,539
320,578

4,176,117

3,849,709
320,578

4,170,287

20214
2021

ARETT
RMB’000

15,843,947
(10,626,336)

5,217,611
182,028

(336,451)
(913,264)

(27,377)
(838,893)

21,870
20,291
(81,606)

3,244,209
(562,664)

2,681,545

(234,098)

2,447,447

2,074,843
606,702

2,681,545

1,840,745
606,702

2,447,447

0.98
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72022912 H31H
As at 31 December 2022

B aE
Notes

IRBEE Non-current Assets
M - HeR BB Property, plant and equipment 15
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16
BEME  #MEkEREZ Deposits paid for purchase of property,

BfES plant and equipment
R—HEE AR s Interest in an associate 17
mLEE Intangible assets 18
AT ESAREMEEKS  Equity instruments at FVTOCI 20

ZBRATE
BAFEFAEZZEREE Financial asset at FVTPL 21
EERIAE E Deferred tax assets 22
EfTEE— R B ATIRE  Deposits paid for acquisition of a subsidiary 23
EES Goodwill 24
REBEE Current Assets
By Inventories 25
EHERBZME Properties for sale 26
H 5 N E A eI RIR Trade and other receivables 27
BIRIRIRITIE R Pledged bank deposits 28
RITHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 28
nEBAE Current Liabilities
B 5 N E M IR Trade and other payables 29
[r== Borrowings 30
MIEEE Tax liabilities
HEEE Lease liabilities 31
IRFEWA Deferred income 32
REBEEFE Net Current Assets
BEERRBAE Total Assets less Current Liabilities

2022 £
2022
ARET T
RMB’000

11,531,543
923,163

409,027
88,034
23,815

152,849

85,877

299,024

13,513,332

1,441,712
1,202,341
3,040,268

131,302
5,315,994

11,131,617

5,409,088

75,167
4,894
83,813

5,572,962

5,558,655

19,071,987

20214
2021
AREFIT
RMB’000

8,298,069
838,270

471,203
198,321
31,357

390,579
37,669
42,754

119,524

123,420

10,551,166

1,535,814
1,592,507
2,689,576

129,611
5,102,552

11,050,060

4,664,371
268,600
229,278

4,983
80,256

5,247,488

5,802,572

16,353,738
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2022912 HA31H
As at 31 December 2022

2022 & 20214
2022 2021
= ARET T AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERR#EE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 33 212,196 212,338
B Reserves 15,869,822 12,911,243
RREHER AE IS Equity attributable to the owners
of the Company 16,082,018 13,123,581
FEFEAR IR B RE RS Non-controlling interests 34 2,411,459 2,515,042
miER Total equity 18,493,477 15,638,623
ERBERF Non-current Liabilities
ELFHIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 22 251,921 87,671
BE Borrowings 30 - 355,500
HEAE Lease liabilities 31 38,740 35,175
IEIEU A Deferred income 32 287,849 236,769

578,510 715,115

19,071,987 16,353,738

FI37E81EV AV BRREEEEH 2023 The consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to 281 were
FI3IR28FHLERIFRENE - WH ALK approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

FE - March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:
REL RE I
Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
BEFE EF
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2021F1818  At1January 2021 200397 1224924 (1,440,526) (32,2100 195,790 4823 1319563 - (353 7293082 8542306 1988206 10,530,512
FRER Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 2074863 2074843 606,702 2,681,545
BATESAE R Fairvalue loss on equity
2EYKHEZRE  instruments at FVTOCI

TEZRVERE - - (23409) - - - - - - - (23409%) - (23409%)
AEERAREAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (234,098) - - - - - - 2,074,843 1,840,745 606,702 2,447 447
B Transfer - - - - - 466 264,149 - - (264,149) 466 289 755
WRRELED  Recognition of equity-settled
PARES share-based payments - - - - - - - 293,774 - - 293,774 - 293,774
fTiEkE Exercise of share options - - - - - - - Q@) 202193 293,774 202,193 - 202,193
EBBMIETBIET  Purchase of shares under
BERH employee option scheme - - - - - - - - (249,159) - (249,159) - (249,159)
EEREHERA  Shares repurchased and
cancelled (122) (13,761) - - - - - - - - (13,883) - (13,883)
BEHR Placing of new shares 12,063 2,741,335 - - - - - - - - 2753398 - 2753398
ERRE Dividends paid - - - - - - - - - (246,259) (246,259 - (246,259
AEEMBAF  Dividends paid by
BIRASRE subsidiaries
of the Group - - - - - - - - - - - (80,155) (80,155)

R2021%£128318 At 31 December 2021 and
R20251818  1January 2022 PAVEE!] 3,952,498  (1,674,624) (32,210) 195,790 5.289 1,583,712 (270,503) 9,151,291 13,123,581 2,515,042 15,638,623
R Profitforthe year - - . - - - = - 385539 385539 30578 4176117
RATEALM  Fairvalue loss on equity
2EMEZBA  instruments at FVTOCI
IEZATEER (5,830) (5,830)

FEFLAREAE Total comprehensive income

for the year (5,830) - 3,855,539 3,849,709 320,578 4,170,287

B Transfer - 366,630 (366,630) 954 m 1,065
{EBBMIEFBIET  Purchase of shares under

BERH employee option scheme (204,347) (204,347) (204,347)
JHERIERTE  Capital contribution from

non-controlling interests 3,500

FERIRIERWE  Acquisition of additional
—EHEATA  interestsin a subsidiary

BoMER from non-controlling
interests (45,875) (45,875) (62,671) (108,546)

BEREHERR  Shares repurchased and
cancelled (142) (16,633) - (16,775) (16,775)
ERRE Dividends paid - - (625,229) (625,229) (625,229)

AEEHEAR  Dividends paid by
BRASRE subsidiaries
of the Group (365,101) (365,101)

120225128318 At31December 2022 21219% 3935865  (1,680,454) (32,210 195,790 6243 1,950,342 (474,850) 11,969,096 16,082,018 2411459 18,493,477
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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[yt

RIBFEEHEREERER) - AR MM EERA
DEREARARMAE  WEEEKZENRKREZAEK -
ARAHARENEERL B BERBRES I OGS o

BAFEFARMEEREORAT AR

BAFEFAEMBZEARSHORATAREREN RS
HRBERBRS RS EREIRTA 2R TFERA
Hi2EREZBARE 2 ATFERFES -

B HRERE
EOHEERRER 2006 F TR 2 KEEM -
P A

2007 F 11 A16 8 - RARIBEMARAIEHITER
18 0.1 70,2 & 3@ A% 275,000,000 A% » M 7% 5 5 [0 % 3
REBZEZABZMEEEERETRA—HEHE - R
H - #51%7%4,000,000,000 % B A EEO0.1 B T2 $ il
% -+ #85% 7E B AN 18 2= 400,000,000 7 7T © 742007 F 11 A
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Bat AR AR -
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Notes:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of
the Company is distributable to the owners of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve

The equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI under IFRS 9 that are held at the
end of the reporting period.

Merger reserve
Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.
Capital reserve

On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000
previously issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased ordinary
shares were cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share capital as of
that date. On the same date, the authorised share capital was increased to
HK$400,000,000 by the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were then issued
to the shareholders existing on 15 November 2007. The excess of the repurchased
amount over the nominal amount of new shares issued was credited directly to
the capital reserve.

The acquisition of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and the
corresponding discount/premium were credited/debited directly against capital
reserve.

Safety reserve

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Work Safety of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), some of
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to set aside an amount of safety reserve
at progressive rates from 0.5% to 4% of the total revenue from the sales of
hazardous chemical. The reserve can be utilised for the spending in improvements
and maintenances of work safety on the Group’s daily operations, which are
considered expenses in nature and charged to the profit and loss as incurred.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC and the relevant Articles of
Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to appropriate
amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as determined in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance
reaches an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation is
not required. According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus reserve
may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and business
operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 F
2022
AR%T R
RMB’000
£ ST OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B B B F) Profit before taxation 5,125,055
FEIER Adjustments for:
Bb& Rk AN Finance costs 17,558
RITFERR B WA Bank deposits interest income (80,255)
BAFESFAEMEEKEZ KRS Dividend received from equity instruments
RRAS T A 7 BB A at FVTOCI -
IR IE U A IR Realisation of deferred income (36,936)
SBAESRE B (O] EAth e Uk OB R E Impairment/reversal of impairment on
other receivables 28,368
B SR EREE 5 W R E Impairment/reversal of impairment on
trade receivables 4,628
YEE . MR L EITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 904,313
A ERE Impairment of intangible assets =
EESEREN Impairment of goodwill 37,526
A Y Amortisation of intangible assets 16,220
FRAEEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 29,714
HWom (B m) FE Write-down (reversal of) of inventories 182,126
HEME « SR L EEE () Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment pPAWEE]
HE R N TR Uk Gain on disposal of an associate (1,212,290)
HeE - B AT EE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary -
AT EFAEBRZZSHMEE Fair value changes on financial asset
ATEED atFVIPL 37,669
SE—EE L AT 2 ¥ Share of results of an associate (25,401)
R fEsEE 7 AR R Equity-settled share-based payments =
BESHER KL SRS Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital 5,049,528
FEEmnm Increase in inventories (21,324)
B 5 N Bt e W IER A (BEn) Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 123,673
VEHRERE 7 WMERLD Decrease in properties for sale 390,166
B 5 T b JE {5 2R IE S Increase in trade and other payables 540,415
KETBEWHE IS Crid) Decrease in deposits from pre-sale of properties (101,731)
JEFE U A 2 40 Increase in deferred income 91,573
43 K B B 38 Cash generated from operations 6,072,300
ETPTER R IEE Income taxes and withholding tax paid (CEEWAT))
T E AR T NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5,082,541

20214
2021

ARETT
RMB’000

3,244,209

81,606
(76,102)

(7,200)
(70,938)

(180)

(1,852)
674,810
4,667
15,738
28,980
69,916

49,252

27,377

(21,870)
(20,291)
293,774

4,291,896
(727,684)
(961,810)

1,148,250

1,237,498
(825,086)

124,665

4,287,729
(373,676)

3,914,053
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2022F 12 A31 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

REEE

EEYF  MEMRE
HEMF - WBERRE

PG 3NIE

FAEREAE
REGAEEEMGNIEA
BERVEE

2 A B
BRTEGT AR MR ERES
ZRBEBRATEAZBREMA
HERERATEGALMEE
Wi 2 RAR T RS FTSHIE
WEsR AN ¥E+AE@1E
WéZhKIﬂZH
BERBITER(FITHE),/
PG 1A

HE—RBE AT
Eﬂﬁfﬂu)\é&%‘
WEHBARRS R

B — A FREUR &
WE—HHBARNENIZS
AR A E R B AR
RenNER

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Payment for right-of-use assets
Proceeds from disposals of right-of-use assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Interest received
Dividend received from equity instruments
at FVTOCI
Proceeds from disposal/refund of equity instruments
at FvTOCI
Payment for acquisition of equity instruments
at FVTOCI
(Payment)/proceeds from pledged bank deposits

Net cash inflow from disposal of an associate

Cash outflow from acquisition of subsidiaries
Dividend received from an associate

Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary

2022 &

2022

Bt AREFR
Notes RMB'000

(3,845,563)

60,829
(69,692)

(8,678)
80,255

238,400
(6,500)

(1,691)

17
CEER A

(295,279)
7,633

40

(2,906,415)

REZDMARS TR NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

BMEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bl E & BT R PTG SRS 58 Net proceeds from issue of new shares upon

placing

HREE Borrowings raised

BEEE Repayments of borrowings

EEBRESEIETEE Payment on purchase of shares under employee
Bfn 3R option scheme

BAAFLE Interest paid

S'Zﬁﬁ%ﬁ% Repayments of lease liabilities

BEAR Dividends paid

EH#%%%%iﬁZ%E
) ST AR A 2 L O — PR P /B
PLEBIR: Eo

R RS T E

RiEESBREEIT
(FEREFT S 708
EEYE T ras]

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary
from non-controlling interests

Capital contribution from non-controlling interests

Proceeds from exercise of options under
employee option scheme

Payment on repurchase and cancellation of shares

(624,100)

(204,347)
(15,302)
(6,784)
(625,229)
(365,101)

(108,546)
3,500

(16,775)

MEED (A FEREFE

NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(1,962,684)

213,442

5,102,552

BE4RZARLIEE B INEE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
FNREFERAKRLER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
FERESREREEEHR CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF THE YEAR
Bp Represented by:
SBITHEHBEIRS Bank balances and cash

5,315,994
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20214
2021

ARBT T
RMB'000
(3,957,432)
83,708
(123,154)
8,495
(2,662)
76,102
7,200
116,000
(338,500)

161,177

(119,524)
1,845

(4,086,745)

2,753,398
1,072,150
(2,352,600)

(249,159)
(81,606)
(4,563)
(246,259)
(80,155)

202,193
(13,883)

999,516

826,824

4,275,728

5,102,552
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Islands AN A B HY A% 19 B 2007 9512 A 10 A
REEAHERSHMER AT ER LT -

ARB/—HEREZER AT - NAE REMH
BRAAR(AMAKE]DIERERE 2
HREHESD FHME - B BLEIR—
SR - BEZIE([PVC]) R A K EoAth,

RAEMBRRARNR B NEMEB AR 28
EEARB(ARKEDZ5 -

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O.
Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 December 2007.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacture, distribution and sale of
polymers, organic silicon, refrigerants and dichloromethane,
polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") and liquid alkali and others.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi

("RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries.
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2. ERMIREER] 2BERIMER 2.
HEA ([ERM R EER )

Application of new and amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs")

RAFEEREIERNEIET RIS REE Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
2l the current year

RAFE  AEEEBEXERAN2022%1A
1HE 2 B RFE R SR T B E
e ElEEe ((REeEHEEE])
BHEREISTTBIFR B IS MRS 2R - UREAR
EEMNGEYERE

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

ERMBHREEUEIR  HERC R Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
CHES) Framework
BB ImEERZE 165  H2021F6A30R% Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
CHEY AV MR R SR beyond 30 June 2021
ZHSER
BB R REERE 165 WE BELSEE Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
SEHEN —BRTERZRAE — Proceeds before Intended Use
A
R ERIE3ITR BREMEH — BT Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
CHES) BRI Fulfiling a Contract
B PR B 7S R 2 22 | ] R B 7 5 S B Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
CCHEN) 20186 -20206 2 2018-2020
FELU#E

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

A B 2 AR T BRR B 75 4R o5 22 R
AR ERAEARE KB B R e B ISR e R
BE/RREGAVBRERMB 2 REER
TEEATE -
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2.
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SESCHIEN

AEBEYWBIRFEA TS EME M RERK
AT BB B 5 S E R R ELAE AT AN

B0 B2 B 75 S 5 E B REEEH
F175 (BF
2020F 10 A &2
20222 A%

B bR B A 3 5 ZE R
FN7RAERT)

B0 B2 B 75 S 5 E B BEFHEEBENE K
F105 M EEPE/HACEE
B @Rt HESRTE?

285 (57T A)
B B B 75 S 5 42 B EREHENEEAE?

F 1657 (BT A)
ReERE 1SR AEIBERRDH
EEIN
REFRERE 1R NEREOIERD
afR?

REFTEAIFIRE S BREREE
BRSBTS
T 5 25 (BRI A)

RS ERIESE  EFHERMESR
CHEN)

REITEAFE 12 RE-RJELEN
CHEN) BERAEBEAHAN

EXLHE

! 20239 1 A1 B EERBZ FEAER -
2 AT BRI EARIR 2 FEER -
3 2024 F 1 A1 B EERIE 2 FEAER

E=BHERAMA R ERMERE LR
HETARALERE A& E A MBEHRER
EXBERTE -

Application of new and amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts'
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and

Leaseback?
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and

amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by International Accounting Standards Board. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that are
measured at fair value through profit or loss and fair value
through other comprehensive income at the end of each
reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

—  has power over the investee;

— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

— has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amounts by which of the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of IFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

— the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

— any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

— any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

— an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the
end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. FESHBRE® 3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

HE#E) Leases (Continued)

HEBFE Lease liabilities

REERBRE  AEERE AR MHHE At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
EFERERRAKIEHERE - TEHE and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
EIRER - HMEERESMNREEETE @ A payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
EEEATEERBOENEEEENRES value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
PFIE o borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

MERNRELRE The lease payments include:

— EEAZ(eEREEETHR)  BE —  fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
EWHERZESHE & less any lease incentives receivable; and

—  AEAENFRTREENEmE) —  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
H AR An A BRES AR E rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market rental
rates are initially measured using the market rental rates as at
the commencement date. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

—  the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

— the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate
on general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants of
which the primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
the current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction in progress for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Interest in an associate (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at fair
value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interest in an associate (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effective of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination (Continued)
Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Exploration rights

Exploration rights are recognised at cost on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration rights are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration rights include the cost of exploration rights and the
expenditures incurred in the search for natural resources as well
as the determination of the technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration rights are reclassified as either intangible
or tangible assets. These assets are assessed for impairment
before reclassification.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Impairment of exploration rights

The carrying amount of the exploration rights is reviewed
annually. When one of the following events or changes in
circumstances, which is not exhaustive, indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable has occurred,
impairment test is performed in accordance with IAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.

— the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expire during the period or will expire
in the near future, and is not expected to be renewed.

—  substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of natural resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned.

—  exploration for and evaluation of natural resources in the
specific area have not led to discovery of commercially
viable quantities of natural resources and the Group has
decided to discontinue such activities in the specific area.

— sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed, the
carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset is
unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication exists,
corporate assets are also allocated to relevant cash-generating
units, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value at the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties for sale

Completed properties for sale and properties under
development for sale are classified as current assets and carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
both the prepaid lease payments for land and development
costs for the properties. Development costs of properties
comprise construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised
according to the Group’s accounting policy and directly
attributable costs incurred during the development period.
Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental costs
directly attributable to sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale. Cost of each unit in each
phase of development is determined using the weighted
average method.

Properties for/under development for sale are transferred to
properties for sale upon completion.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

— the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

— the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.



rE MR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. FESHBE®) 3.

TRMEE(E)
EREEZ D BRRIEENE (B)

HEATER EREERDBAFKEE

== -
5 -

— BSEZTMEENERN ZEEA/M
HIhE =
— EVREIAREASESEPEEN

BReMIAAEN - LHA
HERRAERENS AHZASE
TEE

— EAUIETERBEREAEHRTEDN
PTHETIE -

BN - R PDEBR AR A & SHRAC - A&
% R] A R] B M A R AR B SRR AN SRR A B
ﬁAﬁMzﬁ% ST ENERMEERT /R
NFERTAREETE -

() HESERCA BRI B HA
HRERREBHEAATELRBSE
SAMEARNEREERERETED
%ﬂﬁ?(ﬁﬁ&a“ﬁ%%ﬁ@mﬁ
BEERINET) - MBWATE
REBRNEIEMRER - MBUWAFTATH
L NI

LREEREERENSREEM
M EBMAKERFNEARE TE
FEET A 2 Bl B 7 B G A AN 2R R

ODH-E

Tk
c

2y mp
H

MEERESRTANEERBRIEE -
NEeREETBEREERE " ]
MEBRAEE EEETBEREER
BE% BERMNETAREREHNFHR
AT S B E EARREE KRR

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or
FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below) invest income are
included in the “other income” line item.

For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period.

If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the equity
instruments at FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will continue to be held in the
equity instruments at FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, and bank
balances and cash) which are subject to impairment under IFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment assessment
under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at each reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

—  Past-due status;
— Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
—  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortized cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade and other
receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, is recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employee benefit

Retirement benefit cost

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employee’s relevant income and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed in the central pension scheme. The Group has no
forfeiture of pension scheme contributions (i.e. contributions
processed by the employer on behalf of the employee who has
exited the scheme prior to vesting of such contributions). As at
31 December 2022, no forfeited contribution under the pension
scheme of the Group is available for deduction of contribution
payable in coming years.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefit (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost
of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another IFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share options reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously

recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Shares purchased for employee option scheme

When the Company’s shares are purchased from the open
market for employee option scheme, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented
as shares held for employee option scheme and deducted from
total equity.

The fair value of services received from employees determined
by reference to the fair value of shares granted at the grant
date is expenses on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share option reserve.

At the time when the shares vested, the difference on the
amounts previously recognised in shares held for employee
option scheme and the amount recognised in share option
reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision for ECL on trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment on trade receivables based on the expected credit
losses which uses a related loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and

EHZEBRMBEFEREZ B ASIER selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
SEHHUE EEENKREEABERBEMN Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
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forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Management reassesses the provision at each balance sheet
date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s financial assets,
unquoted equity instruments and unlisted Put Option,
amounting to RMB152,849,000 (2021: RMB390,579,000) and
RMBnil (2021: RMB37,669,000) respectively are measured at
fair value with fair value being determined based on significant
unobservable inputs using valuation techniques. Judgment and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could result in material
adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.
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4,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2022, a deferred tax asset of
RMB85,877,000 (2021: RMB42,754,000) in relation to certain
deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses has
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or
more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes
place.

Impairment assessment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or fair
value less costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generating
units) and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment
loss/further impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to RMB299,024,000 (2021: RMB123,420,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in
note 24.
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings as
disclosed in note 30, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital, share premium, reserves and retained
earnings.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

TRBE
B SRR

(@) Categories of financial instruments
2022 & 20214
2022 2021
ARET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
Financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost 8,392,053 7,846,187
Equity investments at FVTOCI 152,849 390,579
Financial asset at FVTPL - 37,669
8,544,902 8,274,435

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 4,719,389 4,442,556
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(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, financial asset at FVTPL, equity
instruments at FVTOCI, deposit paid for acquisition of
subsidiary, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables and borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group’s
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Market risks

@)

Currency risk

The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
dollar “US$") were received when the Group earned
revenue from overseas customers and when settling
payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group does not have any hedging policy to
manage the risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the
foreign currencies into RMB upon receipt while
taking into account its foreign currencies payment
schedule in the near future.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Finan

(b)

cial risk management objectives and Policies

(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

&= =L
Assets Liabilities
2022 FF 20214 2022 F 20214
2022 2021 2022 2021
ARET T AREFIT AR¥ TR AREETF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
767,421 330,966 25,566 20,199
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At 31 December 2022, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against US$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been RMB74,185,000 higher/lower
(2021: RMB31,077,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation
of US$ denominated bank balances and cash and
trade and other receivables.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate borrowings (see note 30 for
details of these borrowings). At 31 December 2021,
14.26% of the Group’s borrowings bear fixed
interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, and variable-rate
borrowings.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market
deposit rate and the PRC official lending rate arising
from the Group’s RMB borrowings. The Group aims
at keeping borrowings at variable rates. The Group
manages its interest rate exposures by assessing the
potential impact arising from any interest rate
movements based on interest rate level and outlook.
The management will review the proportion of
borrowings in fixed and floating rates and ensure
they are within reasonable range.
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate borrowings. The analysis is prepared on the
financial balance at the end of reporting period. 10
and 25 basis points increase or decrease is used
which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rate.

In relation to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
risk on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10
basis points higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2021 would increase/
decrease by RMB401,000.

Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if
interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2021 would decrease/increase by RMB 1,003,000,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expenses
on floating rate borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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EEMEERBES  HEWERRA
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
parties. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. The credit quality of customers is assessed
after taking into account the customers’ financial position
and past experience with the customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in PRC, which accounted for 54.18%
(2021: 44.72%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
concentration of credit risk, 15.05% (2021: 21.81%) of
its total trade receivables were due from its largest
customer and 42.21% (2021: 44.85%) of its total trade
receivables were due from its top five customers
respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances based on provision
matrix, except for the trade receivables with significant
trade balances and credit impaired which are assessed
individually. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographic region and
internal credit rating). The calculation reflects the
probability weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the end of reporting period about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank balances is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit
agencies. Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these counterparties. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for pledged bank deposits and bank
balances by reference to information relating to probability
of default and loss given default of the respective credit
rating grades published by external credit rating agencies.
Based on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on pledged
bank deposits and bank balances is considered to be
insignificant.
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5.

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits excluding prepayment,
the management makes periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The management
believes that there are no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed
the ECL for other receivables and deposits are insignificant
and thus no loss allowance is recognised.
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5. EXEBREGBEREEBEZR 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

BE ) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) HERREEEEREE(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)
=B GRE (& ) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
AEBHRBEERRTRTEERIE The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
UT5% : comprises the following categories:
Internal credit Other financial assets/
rating Description Trade receivables other items
HthemEE
AEBEEFR g5 EWR Httm B
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
default and does not have any — not credit-impaired
past-due amounts
EWER RHHFENRRE  BUWEEWN FEREHEEER 2 RTE e B B8
EEAT IR — BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full — not credit-impaired
ERAE BEBAZRAREHAARER B8 FEPRHAEEER 128 AFEEEEEE
BARHNMNE — BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
in credit risk since initial recognition ~ — not credit-impaired — not credit-impaired

through information developed
internally or external resources

AJ k¢ FRANEFHIOMNRRNER - FEBEREEEE FEMEBEEERE
B Y] R A RS B R i FR 2 15 — BEERE — BEERE
il
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
is credit-impaired — credit-impaired — credit-impaired
EE EEBRTEECEEREA FEBEBEEER FEBRBEEER
— EEERE — EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
bLE BEEAREBARREREMHE SECMHE R M
B MASESEERAKERIE
HIHASE

196 HE£EARAT —B-—FF§



rE MR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

5. EXERRIBERBEZERR

(b)

AC-))

MBEREEERREE(E)

B E LR
EEERPESRMRE  AEBEET
VHBEEERREARNAEEZ
EMFENRERERERPDFTENR
T RERBEHEBKFE -

EEEEEEENFERIBR ANEE
KBEEEEARDESHNEZRIR -
MR2022%F12831H "EBAHH
MIBTHEHEEEEARARE
1,157,000,0007C (20214 = A K #
3,521,510,0007T ) © 5¥ 15 & 5 7 I 52
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MEE T S MR E B &
TREIAKETESRBENT
BRANZIHFE - IRDREAKHE
ARERERNFNEFAHNESRE
BEARBBRBATRERE - FELAE
REREVEIREKA -

5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

g
RRCUES

Weighted

WRE12A31A 31 December 2022
BIREMERZIE  Trade and other payables

average
interest rate
ARETR
RMB'000

- 2516277

18R R

Less than
1 month

N R
RMB'000

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings. The
Group relies on borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
available undrawn borrowing facilities of
RMB1,157,000,000 (2021: RMB3,521,510,000). Details
of which are set out in note 30.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

Ran
128318
WREE
Carrying
Total  amountat

Over 1year undiscounted 31 December
to5years  cash flows 2022
ARETR  ARBTR TiEn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

B3R
E3E

g
E5F

AR

1£3f8R REREAE

3 months
to 1 year
ARETT
RMB'000

1-3 months
Over

N R
RMB'000

814263 1,332,990 55859 4719389 4,719,389
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and Policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

20215128318 31 December 2021
ZHREMENTIE  Trade and other payables - 1,912,330 1,095,116 756,218 54,792 3,818,456 3,818,456
B8 Borrowings
— &R — fixed rates 1.17% 373 49,617 40,333 - 90,323 89,000
— %8 — variable rates 4.34% 43,090 3,668 154,008 356,820 557,586 535,100
1,955,793 1,148,401 950,559 411,612 4,466,365 4,447 556
(0 &BMIAENAFEFNE (c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

HRUBREER  AEEDBS S E
TEABRATERFE -

EfAEFAFER  ARBEERASET
SRBRSE - RE=EETAEKX
TABRBABBENTAMS - AIX
SEBFEE=TEEBRMLEMETR
B TREREBIAEEZST SR
BENRFENER
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Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs under
level 3, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined.
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5. EXEBEBERREEZEEER 5.
BUR (&)

(0 EMIANRTVEFEGE)

THEE

Financial assets

RAFER AR
SEKENBATA

Equity instruments

at FvToc|
BAFEFARED
TREE

Financial asset at
FVTPL

RTSIBEMATE
Fair value as at
W002F 20015
2022 2021
ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000
FEmRAR  FLARAR
E— H&—8,254
67,835

Unlisted equity
instruments —
67,835

FETRAR
7§ —

85,014

Unlisted equity
instruments —
85,014

Unlisted equity
instruments —
37,669

Derivative
financial
instruments
— unlisted Put
Option —
37,669

Unlisted equity
instruments —
82,254

FETRAR
% —308,325

Unlisted equity
instruments —
308,325

ITESRIA
— Lt
R —
37,669

Derivative
financial
instruments
— unlisted Put
Option —
37,669

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

AHERS HERTRBRAARE

Fair value  Valuation technique and

hierarchy

5%

Level 3

Level 3

Level 3

key inputs

BATE - BRREREER
RREREERERER
FHREE ZREARE
ElaEnSE -

Income approach — discounted
cash flow method was
used to capture the present
value of the expected future
economic benefits to be
derived from the ownership
of this investee, based on an
appropriate discount rate.

miEnE — ERREEGHD
ARG LA HER

Market approach — based on
trading multiples derived
from publicly traded
companies that are similar
to the subject company.

- REEE — B aTE
RETEMHERTHIE
Y2RE . BEAENN
EREMER -

Black-Scholes model — mathematical
model for the dynamics of
a financial market containing
derivative investment instruments,
based on an appropriate
interest rate and the volatility.

EXTUEERAME

Significant unobservable inputs

BAX EERRMANEERERABEN

BRAA/ MEFHEARE N T 7%
Z10.15% (20215 : 17.6% £ 10%) ©

RZERBEMETNES  EZRARH

BUGEMETHRINRERASLE
HEREET 5%
(20214 :20.1%) °

Discount rate, taking into account the cost

of equity (COE)Aweighted average cost of
capital (WACC) determined using a Capital
Asset Pricing Model, ranging from 7% to
10.15% (2021: 17.6% to 10%).

Discount for lack of marketability, determined

by a number of research studies including
restricted stock studies by an independent
valuer, of 20% (2021: 20.1%).

At ERREIIERAE
RZMSRBEMETNORR  £ZEATA

BUAEMETHR ERERESSE
FEMEET  £20% (2021 20.1%)

Recent transaction price of the comparable

public companies

Discount for lack of marketability, determined

by a number of research studies including
restricted stock studies by an independent
valuer, of 20% (2021: 20.1%).

FE  REEZHERALOTEFRASZK
BEHEET  NEZ021E12A3NBILEE

R2.44%

iE - REMELRAREHER AR RE

S A AR ERNERREDRNFR

EEEEE REENENANBILEE

£50.72% ©

Interest rate, based on the yield curve of China
Sovereign Curve as of valuation dates, of 2.44%

for the year ended 31 December 2021,

Volatility, estimated based on annualised standard
deviation of daily stock price return of comparable
companies for the period before valuation date
and with similar time span as time to expiration,
of 50.72% for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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TOBRBARBHAY
BzERE/BE
Sensitivity/relationship
of unobservable inputs
to fair value

IEFIARR AL iR
ZABEEMENT
MEREE AT
S Rk

The lower the COE/
WACC or discount for
lack of marketability,
the higher the fair
value, and vice versa.

BT HERER -
ATENR &
TR < Bz
HEERMATE
A ATER
B Rz

The higher the recent
transaction price,
the higher the
fair value and vice
versa. The lower the
discount for lack of
marketability, the
higher the fair value,
and vice versa.

FlgE A ¥EdR
RZ TR

REEA - AFESS
RZI8A °

The lower the interest
rate, the higher the
fair value and vice versa;

The higher the volatility,

the higher the fair
value and vice versa.
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5. ¥XAEMEMEREKMEEBZR 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

A€ -))

(0 EMIANDFEEHE)

E=FAFEHEBE

objectives and policies (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

B2021F 1818 At 1 January 2021 15,799 402,177
A E1E - Total losses:
— REMEERE — in other comprehensive income - (234,098)
— REx — in profit or loss 21,870 -
BE Purchases - 338,500
i Disposals - (116,000)
M2021F12 A318B R At 31 December 2021 and 37,669 390,579

20221 HA1H

Bl (B18)
—REMEEKS

—REE

‘ma

54
RIEIA

5

1 January 2022

Total gains (losses):

— in other comprehensive income - (5,830)
— in profit or loss (37,669) -
Purchases - 6,500
Refund - (238,400)

2022912 A31H

At 31 December 2022 - 152,849
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6. WEkoIER 6. Revenue and segment information
WK E S m R EEERNIES - Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods and
properties.
6.1 W= 6.1 Revenue
ZEEAHWE ST Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR%T R ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERRREEE Types of goods or service
IHEE T E®D Sales of chemical products
maFIE Polymers 6,487,010 4,825,266
LR BN Refrigerants 4,361,050 3,337,155
B HerE Organic silicon 6,648,326 4,267,829
ZE R - PVC KR Dichloromethane PVC and liquid alkali 1,624,811 1,537,795
19,121,197 13,968,045
Hh 25 Other operations 906,791 1,875,902
ik Total 20,027,988 15,843,947
e TESD Sale of chemical products

Revenue (net of value added tax or other sales taxes) from
the sale of goods is recognised at a particular point in
HEENIETEEYER —BAeE time when customers have control of the promised goods,
MERXNEEMEEDEMNS YN which is generally the time when goods are delivered to
RS o customers and customers have accepted the goods.

HEEY 2 W (MRS ER K E
HEMR) NEREFPHARENRAE
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EMEAETY - W IIAEBR ZBEER
it

TEBZEER MY HWT

— By FMe

— BRE

— B

—  —&EFE-PvC R &

— HMEBE - L£ERMEERLRA
B EBHTMEADE - AR
DER AR - PVC MM D

AHEER  DERBERELIK
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.2

Operating Segments

The Group’s operations are organised based on the
different types of products. Information reported to the
board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of products and property
development. This is the basis upon which the Group is
organised.

The Group's operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

—  Polymers;

—  Refrigerants;

—  Organic silicon;

—  Dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali; and

—  Other operations — manufacturing and sales of
side- products of refrigerants segment, polymers
segment, organic silicon segment and

dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali segment,
property development and rental income.
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REEIZ 2 REE
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6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)

B0 e e R E

BZE2022F 12831 BLLEE

Polymers
ABBTT
RMB'000

External sales 6,487,010
Inter-segment sales -

Total revenue — segment revenue 6,487,010

1,989,578

i SEGMENT RESULTS

AARLERR Unallocated corporate expenses

E’N{Eﬁ/\ﬁéﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ Fair value changes on financal asset
LATEED E

RIELE-FRELT NG
ElE-FRENTEE
BARE

(Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
Share of results of an associate
Finance costs

B

Profit before taxation

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Refrigerants
AR®TT
RMB'000

4,361,050
3,034,179

1,395,229

1,021,356

87

HHE PVCRE R
Dichloromethane

Organic PVCand Other
Silicon liquid alkali operations
AR®TR ABBTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AfpsH

6,648,326 1,624,811
= 13,560

906,791
1:229,607

6,648,326 1638371 2,136,398

463,465 460,302 32601
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Eliminations

AR#TR
RME000

(4.277,346)

(4.277,346)

4%

Total
ARETT
RMB'000

20,027,988

20,027,988

3,967,328

(26,993)

(37,669)
121229

25401

(15,302)

5,125,055
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6. WHERDIBER 2

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

6.2 REHIE(4E) 6.2 Operating Segments (Continued)
BZ2021F 12831 BLLEE For the year ended 31 December 2021
8%k
BATHE EYE] i PVC BRI A2 baf a%
Dichloromethane
Organic PVCand Other
Polymers Refrigerants Silicon liquid alkali operations Eliminations Total
ARETT ARETT ANRETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HiMEE External sales 4,825,266 3,337,155 4,267,829 1,537,795 1,875,902 - 15,843,947
PHENEE Inter-segment sales - 2,464,267 - 15,611 1,135,858 (3,615,736)
Bl — H3%s Total revenue — segment revenue 4,825,266 5801422 4267829 1553406 3,011,760 (3615,736) 15,843947
PHEE SEGMENT RESULTS 1,449,771 637,632 1,267,885 136,612 154,135 - 3,646,035
FARLERT Unallocated corporate expenses (41,230)
EATEABRNEHAEY Fair value changes on financial asset
NFEEY at FVTPL 21,870
HE-BRBARNEE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary 2137
E-EBENT 5 Share of results of an associate 20,291
REEE 2 WRGHF Equity-settled share-based payments (293,774)
BERK Finance costs (81,606)
BH AR Profit before taxation 3,244,209

DHEEEELEDERSERAZ R
RRITHAR A ~ A E 2 ARG
/T/\ ExHe b HBERARE

- -EAVEFABENEREEZ
/A\IFTEM@J HE—HNBAREE
FRERARZERT  SoEbHIZaE -
Pt M B EERRAZMUEE RS
e M RBFENETEEE - AR EH
ﬁ?&%ﬁﬁ’]“*ﬁﬁﬂlﬁﬁ““
REANZHMAEB R D B LR IR A
EI’UI,EE AR YZEER o

D EEMHE VIR ITHER B
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Segment results represent the results of each segment
without allocation of unallocated expenses and central
administration costs, equity-settled share-based payments,
directors’ salaries, share of results of an associate, fair
value changes on financial asset at FVTPL, loss on disposal
of a subsidiary and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. No segment
information on assets and liabilities is presented as such
information is not reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.



Ar B SRR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. WEkoEHBER 2 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
EREREE Entity-wide disclosures
BEZRER AT E 5 RS 85 8 90K Information about revenue from polymers segment by products
B ez E# from external customers

2022 F
2022

ARBT T
RMB’000

IO E 4% (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 2,354,595 2,049,729
7N A (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 386,677 401,913
NEIRT I Perfluorocyclobutane 73,106 85,919
B2R LA (FEP) Fluorinated ethylene propylene (FEP) 647,571 544,258
FIR & L% (PVDF) Polyvinylidene fluoride (PVDF) 2,431,615 1,360,947

SR (FKM) Fluorine rubber (FKM) 425,932 272,308
2EBET IR Perfluorinated ion-exchange membrane 61,596 27,244

fm& L4 (VDF) Vinylidene fluoride (VDF) 62,375 31,451
Hb Others 43,543 51,497

6,487,010 4,825,266
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6. WERDIBER 2 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
EERREE(E) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
BRizEm D BB D EREINKES Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by
Bz B products from external customers

—HE—aF L (HCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethane (HCFC-22)

M 2kt (R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a)
A& LIT(R125) Pentafluoroethane (R125)
R410a R410a

R142b R142b

R152a R152a

R32 R32

R507A R507A

R407C R407C

e i Carbon tetrachloride
R439A R439A

R404A R404A

At Others

2022 F
2022

ARBT T
RMB’000

1,114,184 857,013
179,516 123,490
262,203 279,646
498,706 314,336

1,130,452 809,271
185,803 168,570
510,333 435,087

66,623 34,753
11,967 8,145
206,646 132,176

- 1,891
62,727 16,013
131,890 156,764

4,361,050 3,337,155
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6. WERDIHER (&)
WEEENE (7

BB Eam 7 B BRIED BRI KEF

)4 a5 B FY

DMC(Z—REMREESIRE)
107 iR B

B

RAR B
SEAKE
DMC 7K &)
—BRESRL
FES SR
LR 45T DMC
D4 (N\FREIRIEESLT)
D3

R R e
e
e

Uit )@ EL R
ZFREREH
+HRERAMSAL
KSR

B 1 2

HE R
FREZSER
SEEH

Eih

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane)

107 Silicon Rubber

Raw Vulcanizate

Gross Rubber

Gaseous Silica

DMC Hydrolysate
Trimethylchlorosilane
Methyldichlorosilane

DMC Lineament

D4 (Octamethyl Cyclotetrasiloxane)
D3

End containing hydrogen silicone oil
End epoxy silicone oil

Containing hydrogen silicone oil
End vinyl silicone oil

Dimethyl silicon oil

D5 (Decamethyl Cyclopentasiloxane)
Liquid glue

Acidic glue

Neutral glue

Methyltrichlorosilane

Epoxy silicone oil

Others

2022 F
2022

ARBTR

RMB’000

182,855
3,278,183
902,825
363,820
136,818
17,105
373,615
14,751
209,855
6,790
7,582
115,872
76,970
240,326
67,949
312,995
72,192
68,832
54,725
49,887
36,470
24,413
33,496

6,648,326

Information about revenue from organic silicon segment by
products from external customers

20214
2021
ARETT
RMB’000

36,009
1,949,076
662,555
441,813
99,595
1,036
191,119
13,685
84,369
11,343
106,370
89,008
81,631
49,985
138,139
38,319
49,236
56,021
83,698
43,952
21,124
19,746

4,267,829
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. WEKkDHBER (2 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
EEERNE (£ Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
BEFIZESG Sz — G Rk - PVC R 5 Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and
Y =P &Y= -0y liquid alkali by products segment from external customers

2022 F
2022

ARBT T
RMB’000

PVC PAERVAY 544,017

—E R Dichloromethane 406,612 371,536

R Liquid alkali 1,005,029 622,242

1,624,811 1,537,795

B ERS T BMIEE S5 K G KE Information about revenue from other operations segment by
F ) ok B # products from external customers

2022 £
2022
AR¥T T
RMB’000

AHF (fE7KBE(EE) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 29,574 9,038
B ER Ammonium Bifluoride 61,304 51,884
gl Hydrofluoric Acid 53,978 65,443
RE Bromine 35,564 51,136
AALE Fluorgypsum 13,693 13,698
TE Industrial salt 12,346 -
LESES Property development 400,437 1,454,359
At Others 299,895 230,344

906,791 1,875,902
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HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. WEkoEHBER 2 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
ERBRERE(E) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
BFHFEEFEH Information about major customers
B E22022F K2021F 12 A31H I FEH There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed
EREE—RBPZWHREAEEAEERERN over 10% of the total sales of the Group for the years ended 31
10% A E © December 2022 and 2021.
b [iE B Geographical information
REBREAINKREE ZWHRILZEP RIS The Group'’s revenue from external customers by geographical
ORI location of customers is detailed below:
2022 £ 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ TR ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B (E(ERE) PRC (Country of domicile) 16,561,081 13,326,436
M (B A1) Asia (except PRC)
— B — Japan 675,589 527,593
— % — South Korea 521,284 520,591
—HE — India 177,941 86,248
— N — Singapore 32,363 33,179
— &H — Thailand 28,954 23,613
— MR RES B RE — United Arab Emirates 182,963 94,340
— BEHTE — Pakistan 60,333 19,290
— HRkAE — Malaysia 69,441 40,326
— BB — Kuwait 18,395 15,632
— DEERRLA — Saudi Arabia 605 895
— HIZ e — Indonesia 30,168 22,924
— U&7 — Israel 2,111 325
— JEEE — Philippines 5,422 6,084
— B — Viet Nam 56,149 29,901
— THH — Turkey 124,565 29,510
— TINhIE — Bangladesh 5,294 10,276
— (FR% — lraq 5,663 -
— HMBER — Other countries 16,890 130,378
/NEF Subtotal 2,014,130 1,591,105
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6. WERDIHER (&)
WERENE(F)
(@B R ()

El

— XHE
—BEf

— &H

— FARAE
— 2P
—BE25
— MEX
— HibER

6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

America
— United States of America

— Brazil

— Chile

— Argentina

— Mexico

— Panama

— Canada

— Other countries

2022 F
2022

AR®T T
RMB’000

599,880 310,936
136,900 45,391
2,358 -
4,158 1,978
15,764 21,038
3,202 870
6,184 2,211
ALY 67,065

I

Subtotal

775,633 449,489

B
— BAF
— E@

— RN
—EH
—AE
— LT
— LEFIEF
—

— 55

— EAER

Europe
— ltaly
— England
— Russia
— Germany
— France
— Spain
— Belgium
— Poland
— Finland
— Other countries

2022 £
2022
ARET T
RMB’000

212,462 160,420
19,419 10,180
31,659 20,710

121,943 47,788
39,966 12,432
19,413 12,239
99,870 121,352
17,158 7,513
18,935 3,209

7,755 11,898

It

Subtotal

588,580 407,741

210 ZE£EARAR —B-—FFR§




Ar B SRR M
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HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. WEkoEHBER 2 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
ERBRERE(E) Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)
Hh i & (4E) Geographical information (Continued)

2022 F
2022

AR®T T
RMB’000

FEIN Africa

— 3k — South Africa 21,724
— &Kk — Egypt 5,589
— [EBH& — Nigeria 45,639
— HAER — Other countries 4,446

INEF Subtotal 77,398

HBER b Other countries/regions 11,166

20,027,988 15,843,947

B FE2022F12A31H AEEEBEI5% Over 95% of the Group’s non-current assets other than
(20214 : 100% )W IERHEE (S m T A financial instruments and deferred tax assets (2021: 100%) are
RELERBEBEERINMRTE - Ht @ I located in the PRC as at 31 December 2022. Accordingly, no
mE2FABEIRMER SN IERBEENE information about its non-current assets by geographical
o location is presented.
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6. WEkoEHBER @) 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
HihpEpER Other segment information
=R
HHE PVCR i AR
Dichloromethane
Organic PVCand Other
Polymers Refrigerants Silicon liquid alkali operations Total
ABBTT ABBTT ABBTT ABBTT ABBTT ABBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W0E 2022
HASPEENEE - Amounts included in the measures of

segment profit or loss:

0% BERZENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 192,463 0,883 255,684 94,102 89,221 904,313
RELENE Depreciation of right-of-use asses 4499 11,150 4,993 1219 7853 29,714
HERE Impairment of goodwil - - - - 31,52 3152
aEERR Amortisation of intangible assets 12,670 1917 184 571 878 16,220
LHRUEUERE/ (HERE) Impairment/{reversal of impairment)

on trade receivables 1,349 (14) 142 4,628
FEREZRE Research and development costs 470,462 409,501 312,476 1310535
HEEE Write-down of inventories - 123,940 48,581 182,126
LENE  BRREESR Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 6,167 8,165 - 1233
THREFIEEERRARL Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not

THAABERREE : included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

BATE NESZARAEATESY Fairvalue changes on financial asset at FVTPL 37,669
HE-RBELINNE Gain on disposal of an associate (1,212,290)
el —MBENALE Share of results of an associate (25,401)
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6. RERIEBER @) 6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)
HihpERER (EF Other segment information (Continued)

W15 202
HAAHERNEE: Amounts included in the measures of
segment profit or loss:

nE BRRRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 164,065 238,071 108,300 N1 72,263 674,810
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4429 11,187 4927 1521 6916 28,980
EYEENE Impairment of intangble asset - - - - 4,667 4,667
ERAEER Amortisation of intangible assets 12,449 1999 35 851 404 15,738
ZHENFE(BE)EE (Reversal of) impairment on trade receivables 413) 1836 (74) 37 (3528) (1852)
FEREZRE Research and development costs 275,278 235,375 25813 56,442 45,985 838,893
HeEE Write-down of inventories - 51,478 9,156 5710 3502 69,916
HENE  BERRESE Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 4137 13928 9218 1,541 20,428 49252
THREFEZEERRAL Amounts reqularly provided to the CODM but not
IRFAD BERNEE - included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

BATEFABRZEBEELTARZE  Fairvalue changes on finandial asset at FVTPL - - - - (21870) (21870)
HE-BHBAANEE Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - - - - 2371 2371
ElE-HBERAEE Share of resuls of an associate - - - - (20291) (20291)
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7. HitW ARHAMFIRE 7. Other income and other net gains and
losses
2022 £ 20214
2022 2021
AR%ET T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hipg A Other income
B RE (5 G) Government grants (Note (i) 101,882
SRITFEZRF B WA Bank deposits interest income 76,102
KERAFESFAEMEERZ  Dividend income received from equity
ZBRATEZREWA instruments at FVTOCI = 7,200
Fo A R S (B 5E (i) Other interest income (Note (ii)) 9,136 17,996
Hit Others 8,120 3,195
153,031 206,375
HiyFEm Other net gains and losses
M H ZR S5 Exchange difference, net 75,975 (24,347)
229,006 182,028
Ff3E - Notes:

(i)

HE2022F12A318IEFE - AEEERZEE
=R ERBUT B AR 18,584,000 7L.(2021 4 -
AR#30,944,0007T) - BISH B E B2 HEAEE
MEZSH L ERERZEANEEREBELN
FX c AEBETFER R OGN sskE FE
B S ZEFBUTH B R AR MU -

SN - RELE2022F 12 A3 A IEFE  AEE
ARG 18 i 2% FESRIBUT 4 B) A R #5 36,936,000 7T
(20214 + AR¥70,938,0007T) B #EIETE W 25+
E - AEERBEANEECEERNDE -
e KR EESRITMHAL - ZEMANGE U
MRRRADEABELERA - WHEREREEENGT
A AT R R A BERER

BIEEMAEBANAEZE 2022412 A31HIE
FEHREREEF B IAAREI136,0007T
(20214 : AR#16,085,0007T) °

214 =E£EEERAT —BE-—F5RK

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government grants of RMB18,584,000 (2021: RMB30,944,000) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Government grants mainly
represent the expenditure on research activities which are recognised as
expense in the period in which they are incurred by the Group. The Group
recognised these government grants as other income when there were no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, in addition, the Group
recognised government grant of RMB36,936,000 (2021: RMB70,938,000),
which was released from deferred income, in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The Group received subsidies from government in respect
of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for manufacturing of
chemical products. Such subsidies are classified as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and will be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets.

Included in other interest income was bills receivable of RMB9,136,000
(2021: RMB16,085,000) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

8. EERA 8. Finance costs

2022 F
2022

AR®T T
RMB’000

ﬂ %‘ Interests on:
REFALEBEEZIRITER Bank loans wholly repayable within five years
7F fEI afE Lease liabilities
9. FISHiMxX 9. Income tax expense

2022 £
2022
ARET T
RMB’000

BIEATH IR Current tax

R ZERTSH ([ DS PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")
— BHIFE — Current year 813,776 512,458
— BEFERETR, (GBEEEMA) — Under(Over) provision in prior years 4,528 (18,977)
+ b IEER ([ ER ) Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") 10,126 33,432
828,430 526,913
RIETHIE Deferred tax
— B B QR A 5 R & — Withholding tax for distributable profits
ZTEE of PRC subsidiaries 91,543
— HAh — Others 28,965
120,508
FRiS 5 2 Income tax expense 948,938
TRIASE HE Z B IEA R R B A L A BT B Tax charge mainly consists of income tax in the PRC attributable
NAMERT & EEP RS - BIEH to the assessable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries
.m%ﬁﬁ SHUE ([ REMFRED kM established in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise
BEREERGDH  PREMERRANHER Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
25% (20214 : 25%) @ HEE TEEZE S H the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2021:
RiiEENFRBEMEAT  AJZHH25% 25%), except for certain PRC subsidiaries being awarded the
TE 15% BT R BBERIN o Advanced-Technology Enterprise Certificate and entitled for a

tax reduction from 25% to 15%.
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R @)

RRREEBE LML B A RARER
BHMAGHAY  CEREEERNE2R
BT M #§1%8.25% R EHH - #BiE2H
BB ITE D 8 E N KR 16.5% BLREH T
& TS50 A AR 1) 0 52 (B T R A0 0 ) S A AR
1£16.5% M8 —THREH -

REFREHEEWRIESR  AEEES
REASESHRTMAAER -

E it TR B A 2 BB AR M F AR
SEELE R

Income tax expense (Continued)

The Company's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong is under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 35 Al M) Profit before taxation 5,125,055 3,244,209
LA (25%) RSB R E ) Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate
HIEX H (Hf5Ea) of (25%) (Note a) 1,281,263 811,052
IREERERFENMEHNTE Effect of income taxed on concessionary rate (331,930) (342,879)
AR RBE AN TIE & Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose (5,280) (5,672)
TR HHASY R ETE Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose 3,266 79,070
A A AR IAE B Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
TiEs previously not recognised - (2,164)
BEFERETR(BRERE) Under(Qver) provision in respect of prior years 4,528 (18,977)
FEFTB AR D IREF Deferred tax on distribution earnings of
RAEFRIE (BT D) PRC subsidiaries (Note b) 91,543 68,101
T IBER (et c) LAT (Note c) 10,126 33,342
T IS AR R I Tax effect of LAT - (8,358)
it Others (104,578) (50,851)
AREEHRBERET Tax expense for the year 948,938 562,664
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9. FiB®iRX#)

B EE -

(@)

25% EAEEMEHRBTEERRAZEHBRR
WERREREMHAERAR(RERE] RILUR
REMBEERABRAR([BMAEX)MPELE
FISBBE o IUREBMAMMBERAR (5
B/ IWRRERS FMRBERQR(TRE
BAF)  URREEREMHBROERA A
(REA#ED RILRRECLIERAR(TRE
LT DEMRBERHEL15%  DTRABRGESH
RMEEER -

1R 4 B IR P 2 B R B RS 48 BB A 2 B 4 [2008]
FEHF - FEEEB2008F1 A1 HEAE
EHRFRDIRORE - BREBEGOMNIZERERN
SNEI D EFTIS TR 3 R 27 A RO IR E
EMINEDEMEREE AR E N ENRE
BN ERTEE - WBARKDREFIELTH
BEE,/BEARK91,543,0007T (2021 F + A
R¥68,101,0007T) Bt AFAEBES ©

T IR ER R B EE N FHEIZ30% 260%
B 23T SRR - B9 3 88 6 TS SRR AL AT 400
T BE T HE RO AR YERES
ﬁo

AT IAR G HN ML 22

9.

Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Materials
Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Fluo-Silicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Union Property
Co., Ltd (“Union Property”) which are the major subsidiaries of the
Company. The income tax rate of Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Co.,
Ltd. (“Huaxia Shenzhou”), Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co., Ltd.
(“Dongyue Polymers”), Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Materials Co.,
Ltd. (“Dongyue Organosilicon”) and Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co.,
Ltd. (“Dongyue Chemicals”) is 15% as it obtained the qualification as a
high and new technology enterprise.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State Administration
of Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No. 1, dividend distributed out of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall be subject to
EIT pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law Concerning
Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91 of
the Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income Tax Law for
Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred tax
asset/liability of RMB91,543,000 (2021: RMB68,101,000) on the
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been charged to profit or loss for
the year.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 22.

217

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022



e RR M E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

10. NFEimA
FREFIEMGR(GEA) :

@ BIKK(BREZHD):

TER¥®

BB EAL

ARG IR
PR E 2 AR 5K
Hip 8 L&

10. Profit for the year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments):

Wages and salaries

Discretionary bonus

Pension scheme contributions
Equity-settled share-based payments
Other staff welfare

Total staff costs

(b) HAwAR :

B EEHE GEAHEEKAK)

ZHE 2
WmE R RRENE

FEREEENE
BEERE

HEMX - #BE LREER

BRAFEMA B EREE

2 AFEED

BAHE—MHBE AR 2R

BT
H Ao fE YRR E
H SRR E

WoRFE (Gt AHERA)

Other items:
Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales)
Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Impairment of intangible asset
Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Fair value changes on financial asset
at FVTPL

Gain on deemed disposal of an associate

Government grants

Impairment on other receivables

Impairment on trade receivables

Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales)

218 =E&£EEERAR —BE--FERK

2022 FF
2022
ARET T
RMB’000

1,528,692
15,629
213,755

122,327

1,880,403

16,220
2,566

904,313
29,714

21,233

37,669

(1,212,290)
(55,520)

28,368
4,628

182,126

20214
2021
ARBTT
RMB'000

1,014,410
33,639
189,881
293,774
90,819

1,622,523

15,738
2,323

674,810
28,980
4,667

49,252

(21,870)

(101,882)
(180)
(1,852)

69,916
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1. EERTETHAEHM 11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
MEBZEREZITHRAB BT EMEB N The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and the chief
5.8 executive were as follows:
2022 F 2022

BiEREA BEES 2
e e (WaE) RIRGHEIER R Z M H bR an
Discretionary Pension Equity-settled
bonus scheme  share-based Other
Fees Salary (Note) contributions payments benefits Total
AR¥TT AR%Tr AR%TR ARMTr AR%TR AR¥TT AR%Tx
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

WITES Executive Directors
RRERE Mr. Zhang Jianhong
BExE Mr. Fu Kwan 144
BEFEE (R 20215 Mr. Liu Chuangi (resigned on

3ANMBET) 11 March 2021) = -
REEE Mr. Zhang Jian _ 144
REBEAE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 10,176 11,520
RUELE(R202% Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on

6421 Bifitt) 21 June 2022) 72
FRREE(R20215F Mr. Wang Weidong (appointed on

3ANBZER) 11 March 2021)
BUkGTES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREB%E Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
EEREE(R 20215 Mr. Yue Run Dong (resigned on

31 BEHE) 11 March 2021)
BRELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong
SEREE(R2021F Mr. Ma Zhizhong (@ppointed on

3ANBZER) 11 March 2021)
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" EBEBERFETHRAETFM &)

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)
20214 2021
MiEa PRI E 2 I
ik e (W&E) RGBSR 3N Hi g it
Discretionary Pension  Equity-settled
bonus scheme  share-based Other
Fees Salary (Note)  contributions payments benefits Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%TT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HITES Executive Directors
RRELE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 142 6,000 13,65 - 33,641 - 53,439
BERE Mr. Fu Kwan 142 - - - 4,806 - 4,948
ABFRE(R 2021 E Mr. Liu Chuangi (resigned on
3ANBET) 11 March 2021) - - - - - - -
REEE Mr. Zhang Jian 142 - - - 1,442 - 1,584
REERE Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 142 1,200 8,254 - 28,835 - 38,431
RUERE Mr. Zhang Bishu 142 - - - 1,442 - 1,584
FhREE(R20215F Mr. Wang Weidong (appointed on
3ANBZA) 11 March 2021) 142 6,000 13,654 - 33,641 - 53,437
BUYTES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREB%E Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 392 - - - 2,403 - 2,795
EEREE(R 20215 Mr. Yue Run Dong (resigned on
3ANBRE) 11 March 2021) 68 - - - - - 68
BEELE Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 204 - - - 1,442 - 1,646
BEREE(HR201F Mr. Ma Zhizhong (appointed on
3ANBZE) 11 March 2021) 87 - - - 240 - 327
1,603 13,200 35,564 - 107,892 - 158,259

EFXSTIRREREE  TAARRTHRE
B EXBRBENFNEREERITHAE
RERIHFE -

BRHTESOMES IR REEEARAR
AEBEBHEHRZREMEE - LB
FERTEZNME AR FIEREEREH
Z IR METE -

FRAEETERNEERAEZTSFAL
S E AR E N AL B S IEAIMAR
EEMNES BB EE - BETRAEST
Al E EWMEEHE 2022 £ 2021412 A 31
HIEFENEABME -

Mt BBEATDRBEEENEARBMETE -

220 =E£EARAT —B-—F£R§

Mr. Zhang Jianhong, the Chairman of the board of the
directors, is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. His
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The independent non-executive
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. Neither the Chief Executive Officer nor any of the
directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance of
the directors.
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12. EBEREHES 12. Five highest paid employees
FA - AEELEARSHFEERENRZES The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
(2021 F : WEESE)  HMEFBEEN X included four directors (2021: four directors), details of whose
BiaE11 e AFEEHT—ZQ021F : —F&) remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of the
FERNREETHTETRAEZESHEE remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2021: one)
RN EFIBT ¢ highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

2022 &
2022

ARBT T
RMB’000

I&ERE® Wages and salaries 8,640

BEIEAT Discretionary bonus

RIRET SR Pension scheme contributions

I 4EE 2 AR 193K Equity-settled share-based payments

RPN REFNEZSHEEAZEHMENTF The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
AT #[E - directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

2022
2022

EE A
No. of
employees

8,500,001 & 7T % 9,000,000 /& T HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000
17,500,001 8 7L % 18,000,000 87T  HK$17,500,001 to HK$18,000,000
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13. BRER

ADTRE N SRR R RIS BRIV
THIBE A -

ARBHEEANBIEFREF) -
ARFTESRERLE SR

13. Earnings per share

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the
following data:

2022 F
2022
AR®TR
RMB’000

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company, used in the basic and
diluted earnings per share calculations

3,855,539 2,074,843

SLERERBN M /LA
A1 8K

BEEELTBROTE
BRARRIEHITHBREN AR

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Adjustment in relation to share options
issued by the Company

2,234,416 2,120,034

PLEREERAN M LAk
I8k

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share

2,234,416 2,120,807

HE202F12A3MBHIEFE  OIBEBEET
BE A% #E 5T £ B = 25,974,000 % (2021 £F -
18,460,000 &) @M o

AARREZE2022F 12 A31 B IEFERNE
6] K 7% $5 1,051,000 A% A4S 22 &) & 38 i% (2021
£ 11,499,000 f%) °

HE2022F K2021%F 12 A31MHIEFEHW
MERERLEERE RS /@R IETF
BETVENBRAR RN EREERMNES
m o

222 HE£EABRAFT —SB--FFR

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 25,974,000 (2021:
18,460,000) ordinary shares were purchased under employee
option scheme.

The Company repurchased and cancelled 1,051,000 shares of
its own ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: 1,499,000).

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 has been arrived at after
deducting the shares held in trust for the Company.
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14. RE

14. Dividends

2022 F
2022

AR®T R
RMB’000

2022 FEIRMNEIEE

(20214 - 2020 FF R EARR B, -

Dividends paid during the year 2022:
2021 FREAPRE : §A%0.34/87C 2021 final dividend of HK$0.34
(2021: 2020 final dividend of HK$0.14)

% 0.14%7T) per share

625,229 246,259

MEHKRE  BEIE2022F 12 A31 B IEF
EEEE #HEIK1,352,213,0007% 7T
(2021 4F : 766,254,000 7T ) G A% 0.60 % 7T
(20214 : %0348 L) 2 KRR E -
BN AR #1,196,613,0007T (20214 © A
R#620,666,0007T) ' MfEEREERERS
R A

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
HK$0.60 per share (2021: HK$0.34 per share), amounting to
HK$1,352,213,000 (2021: HK$766,254,000) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2022, equivalent to
RMB1,196,613,000 (2021: RMB620,666,000) has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022 223



e RR M E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

15. Y% - BB RRE

15. Property, plant and equipment

BF HERRE AE  BRAREE EEIR Fok]
Plant and Motor Furniture  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles  and fittings  in progress Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R COoST
R2021E1 818 At 1 January 2021 2,366,709 7,333,656 60,202 1,005,600 954,354 11,720,521
NE Additions 477,050 212,888 8,231 54,844 2,921,095 3,674,108
R Transfer 161,708 394,070 - 43,787 (599,565) -
HE—FB AT (H3E41) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41) - - (261) (14) - (275)
k= Disposals (46,160) (488,321) (11,580) (20,510 - (566,571)
R2021F12A318% At 31 December 2021 and
202%181H 1 January 2022 2,959,307 7,452,293 56,592 1,083,707 3,275,884 14,827,783
NE Additions 416,861 579,090 7,243 117,655 2,786,890 3,907,739
B Transfer 1,256,714 2,913,584 - 1,034,295  (5,204,593) -
hE-101EPNG Acquisition of subsidiaries 178,103 350,963 3,633 13,527 17,717 563,943
HE Disposals (34,185) (440,351) (4,836) (57,888) - (537,260)
#®2022F 12 A31H At 31 December 2022 4,776,800 10,855,579 2,191,296 875,898
EERAE ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
R2021%E1 818 At 1 January 2021 909,611 4,660,879 41,688 676,598 - 6,288,776
AEEHRY Charge for the year 124,339 436,216 6,058 108,197 - 674,810
HE— M@ E (Fi5E41) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41) - - (248) (13) - (261)
HERIEE Eliminated on disposals (30,266) (379,487) (10,826) (13,032) - (433,611)
R2021F12A318% At 31 December 2021 and
202%1A1H 1 January 2022 1,003,684 4,717,608 36,672 771,750 - 6,529,714
AFEERY Charge for the year 168,908 528,924 6,515 199,966 - 904,313
WEERB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries 48,820 193,431 1,519 8,063 - 251,833
BRI Eliminated on disposals (21,341) (389,927) (4,129) (39,801) - (455,198)
R2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 1,200,071 5,050,036 40,577 939,978 7,230,662
BREE CARRYING VALUES
R2022612831H At 31 December 2022 3,576,729 5,805,543 22,055 1,251,318 875,898 11,531,543
#®2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 1,955,623 2,734,685 19,920 311,957 3,275,884 8,298,069
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15. Y% - B RRE @

R2022F12 A31H @ AEBKETEFH
APEEEREZT HEEEAARE
283,057,0007T(2021 4F : A% 158,656,000

16.

R

WE - MR L REEAESEN N IIMEF AT
ERAFHAEERNRRSREESETE

BF 20 SHAE (ARG E RE)

R NEE 5-104F
RE 54
RILMEE S5F

R2022F NM2021F12A31H ) AEE T
BT R NEE  AREEEITE

B -

BFURPE L ERRIETFHEHERE -

15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had not obtained the
building ownership certificates for certain buildings with
carrying values of RMB283,057,000 (2021: RMB158,656,000).

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their

residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings

Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease

Plant and machinery ~ 5-10 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has no pledged
buildings and plant and machinery to secure bank loans of the
Group.

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under

medium-term lease.

EREEE 16. Right-of-use assets
HELH HEWE HE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
AREFT ARETT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
7R2021F1A1H8 At 1 January 2021 752,591 - 752,591
NS Additions 122,123 1,031 123,154
HeE Disposals (8,495) - (8,495)
HEER Depreciation charge (28,679) (301) (28,980)
R2021F 12 A31 8B R At 31 December 2021 and
2022F 1 A1 H 1 January 2022 837,540 730 838,270
= Additions 68,079 10,406 78,485
g N =pNS| Acquisition of subsidiaries 36,911 - 36,911
HeE Disposals (7) (782) (789)
TEER Depreciation charge (25,542) (4,172) (29,714)
2022912 A31H At 31 December 2022 916,981 6,182 923,163
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16. FREEE#)

16. Right-of-use assets (Continued)

R2022F 12 A31H » AEEHAFERE
A AR ®7,919,0007T (20214 : 81,000,000
TU)RETHEE L EVSHEEM AR -

R2021F12 8318 AEBREFEBEE
4B NER# 61,037,000 THEREEE - A
NEEMIRITERIERM

HE2022F12A31HILFEE > HEBRER
HiEgE A AR 85,269,000 7T (20214 © A
128,667,000 7T) °

AMEFENS  AEERESERES @R
RE-HEANRITNEETHARSMF
(20214 : M%) - HEHFKIIRIZEMERBER
W - B TRBER & - EREERE
H R EHE AR BH MR RER - AEEE
AAEtNERTET S OO RITHR -

AEBARBRE T HOEMEFA - B
ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%% C —ERACDTREN - 2
EXHFRIAEHAI EDENERT - %F
BEYMENEE LD TS EBHII® -

226 HEEEARAT —B-_F£R§

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had not obtained the
leasehold lands ownership certificates for certain leasehold lands
with carrying values of RMB7,919,000 (2021: RMB81,000,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has pledged right-of-use
assets with carrying values of approximately RMB61,037,000 to
secure bank loans of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total cash
outflow for leases was RMB85,269,000 (2021:
RMB128,667,000).

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2
years (2021: 2 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group is the registered owner of the underlying leasehold
lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.
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17. REEE N TIRER 17. Interest in an associate

2022 F
2022

AR®T R
RMB’000

Rn1A1H At 1 January 198,321 178,030
RSN T 2 ¥E8 Share of results of an associate 25,401 20,291
REFIWE ZIRE Dividend received by the Group (7,633) -
e Disposal (128,055) -

W12 A31H At 31 December 88,034 198,321

R2022F 202112 A31H » & & B B The details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2022 and
ZNRMEFBNT 2021 is as follows:

WRREARGEM KD  BAREELF I HE AR EEREE
BRERF(AKDR]) TR

Dongyue Future Hydrogen Limited liability PRC PRC Registered 13.26% 32.96% Production and
Energy Material Co., Ltd. company capital sales of hydrogen
("Future Hydrogen”) energy materials
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17. REEE N TINRER &)

17. Interest in an associate (Continued)

R2020F4 298 @ REEEH 40% A% 4
B AR RREEEBINREILE - BE
sFt & A B A R # 100,000,000 TTIE A E A
R ¥ 105,000,000 7T ° & KM E A%
AEBFEZBRERI0%HEE381% -
B2020F5 22 B AEBELKEHERK
TEREFTGRLHREMN TG - AR
AREHE—HWBAR - MARIERE
REEZBE QT o

AT RAREIENEE B RNEEFE :

On 29 April 2020, Future Hydrogen, a subsidiary of which 40%
equity interest held by the Group, enlarged its registered capital
from RMB100,000,000 to RMB105,000,000 through capital
injection from a new shareholder. Upon enlarged the registered
capital, the equity interest held by the Group was diluted from
40% to 38.1%. Since 22 May 2020, the Group loss control over
the majority of the composition of the board of directors of
Future Hydrogen, therefore, it considered as deemed disposal of
a subsidiary and Future Hydrogen became an associate of the
Group.

The net assets of Future Hydrogen, at the date of disposal were

as follows:
20204
5H22H
22 May 2020
AREEF T
RMB'000
ME - W REE Property, plant and equipment 231,151
TREAE Right-of-use assets 43,854
mARE Intangible assets 10,872
BRATFEFAREMPHARRNRATA Equity instruments at FVTOCI 3,000
A U [B1 5578 Tax recoverable 2,592
FE Inventories 14,286
B 5 W EIE K RN R R Trade and bill receivables 12,596
TEAT SR I8 K E A FE URUIE Prepayment and other receivables 77,607
RITEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 94,858
RITIEE Bank borrowings (116,845)
g S5 RNFUEMENER Trade and bill payables (84,230)
E IR Other payables (106,363)
AMaE Contract liabilities (1,207)
REEFIEARE Deferred tax liabilities (6,389)
EFEWA Deferred income (9,399)
HEBEFE Net asset disposed of: 166,383
BREE—BEHEARNWRE : Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary:
REBBREZ AFE Fair value of retained equity interest 107,402
HEEEFE Net assets disposed of (166,383)
R IR R Non-controlling interests 99,831
BAEHERE Gain on deemed disposal 40,850
RELEEENESREFE Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal:
RITHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash (94,858)
(94,858)
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17. REEE N TINRER &)

17. Interest in an associate (Continued)

R2020F5H22 H » RIRS LR AR HE A A
EEZHBAREEMAEETALEES —
MW EB AR R ERER Y - R B2
@J °

R2020F6 B24H  REA#ERE TH
AR ([MRFBERRER |) BLR R S BE 5] L IR IG &
W ([EER®E]) MmARREEEETAAR
#5300,000,0007T * BEFMERXARE
21,000,000 & B8 AN f# B A R ¥
279,000,000 REBHEE R AR
100,000,000 BEFME R AR
7,000,000 7T K f% 7= % 18 A R # 93,000,000
T o IR MEMERE - AEBERE 2R
BE%34.95% °

BERERBREGRS  RERETERER
ETHRRAIEFEREAEERERRRS
e AR ([HERE]) - BIBIZE B
FIESR + RZREREE T Al IS M B It [
RERERFBARKREEEZ R 2023F 12 A 31
B ZAIEFREMSEAAREE ETk
BEERD - WEBTBREE  REKRE
A A2024% 1 A1 BE 202412 A31 B HA
MITE SR - MARRE A REREE
BB E -

R2020F8 A18H » KRG REF B E TH
BERMIZE BEAMERABARE
126,000,000 7T #& K = A K % 128,160,000
TL o MASREF A RIEEEE34.37% °

2020 10 A29H » RIRFEELERIHA
R 1 RRIR A I AN 27T 2.25 I AR AR 10 B4
MEBARER L HEE  REREERE
BHHE - HIRFERE - RREEMNZMER
A R #128,160,0007T 1 A & A R
416,520,000 7T * M A5 B &4 2 IR & B 4
BHE3437% °

2020 12 H30H » RIRSALFEB— R
BEMZE BEAMERABARE
416,520,000 7T #& K &= A £ %419,019,120
T MARERB CRER3E3I7%EEE
34.16% °

On 22 May 2020, the share capital of Future Hydrogen was
transferred from Huaxia Shenzhou, a subsidiary within the Group,
to Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology, another subsidiary within
the Group, without any change in the equity interest.

On 24 June 2020, Dongyue Organosilicon and several new
shareholders (“Guaranteed Shareholders”) entered into capital
injection agreement (“Injection Agreement”) with Future
Hydrogen to inject RMB300,000,000, comprising
RMB21,000,000 registered capital and RMB279,000,000 capital
reserve into Future Hydrogen. Dongyue Organosilicon
contributed RMB100,000,000, comprising RMB7,000,000 as
registered capital and RMB93,000,000 as capital reserve. Upon
the increase in registered capital, the equity interest held by the
Group was diluted to 34.95%.

In the Injection Agreement, there is a protective clause in which
Dongyue Organosilicon and several new shareholders can
request Future Hydrogen to repurchase all the equity interest
when certain conditions occur (“Put Option”). Pursuant to the
terms of the Injection Agreement, Future Hydrogen has
irrevocable and unconditionally guaranteed the Guaranteed
Shareholders that Future Hydrogen initial public offer, listed and
trading of its shares in the PRC market on or before 31
December 2023. In the event that the certain conditions are
occur, the Guaranteed Shareholders can exercise the Put Option
in the period between 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024
and Future Hydrogen will repurchase the equity interest from
the Guaranteed Shareholders.

On 18 August 2020, Future Hydrogen enlarged its registered
capital from RMB126,000,000 to RMB128,160,000 through
capital injection from several new shareholders and the equity
interest held by the Group was diluted to 34.37%.

On 29 October 2020, Future Hydrogen granted right issue to its
existing shareholders on the basis of 2.25 right shares per every
1 existing share capital held at that date and the consideration
was contributed out of its capital reserve. Upon the completion
of the right issue, the registered capital of Future Hydrogen was
enlarged from RMB128,160,000 to RMB416,520,000 and the
equity interest held by the Group remain unchanged at 34.37%.

On 30 December 2020, Future Hydrogen enlarged its registered
capital from RMB416,520,000 to RMB419,019,120 through
capital injection from a new shareholder and the equity interest
held by the Group was diluted from 34.37% to 34.16%.
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17. REEE R TNER ©)

R2021F9HA30H ' BB — BRI
E o BEAMEARH AR 419,019,120 T
BAE AR 434,289,120 7T » MANE B #
BZBHER34.16% B8 2 32.96% °

17. Interest in an associate (Continued)

On 30 September 2021, Future Hydrogen enlarged its registered
capital from RMB419,019,120 to RMB434,289,120 through
capital injection from a new shareholder and the equity interest
held by the Group was diluted from 34.16% to 32.96%.

B N RN R FRA M B RERA
iR o RIBEIFR M B R S E IR H NI AR
BEHIMT

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements. Summarised financial
information is set out below and is prepared in accordance with

IFRSs.
2022 £ 20214
2022 2021

— RS QT 2B ERSE Summarised financial information of ARET ARBT T

an associate RMB’'000 RMB’000
MENEE Current assets 424,045 398,117
FEMBEE Non-current assets 783,207 650,259
nBaE Current liabilities (153,385) (141,330)
FnBaBE Non-current liabilities (85,661) (73,537)
REARKRSGENEEFE Net assets of Dongyue Future Hydrogen

Energy 968,206 833,509
& Revenue 522,840 259,262
B S Fl Profit for the period 148,841 59,933
PEW A Total comprehensive income 148,841 59,933
BRI {EHER - Reconciliation to carrying amount:
RERRGQEHEEFE Net assets of Dongyue Future Hydrogen

Energy 968,206 833,509
HaRRARIELERTE Capital injection from other shareholders

after deemed disposal (615,342) (615,342)

352,864 218,167

REE ST A R Group's ownership interest in

weighted average 20.39% 35.41%
AEEEHEEFRE Group's share of net assets VAK:YL) 77,248
BRIERENAFEY R Fair value gain on deemed disposal 5,417 40,850
REEFE Capital injection from the Group 13,260 100,000
HAFEFABSZSMEE Financial asset at FVTPL (2,622) (19,777)
FRMEA Carrying amount 88,034 198,321
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17. REEE N TINRER &)

EF - REEFBERKRTAE32.96% KM ER
WIEREE NA#EITIRE - H{E20224 12
A3MBLFE  AEERBEEALTHER
RERER)7.90% S FTIERBHAARKE
537,608,000 T ' WHMEZBILE=HHE
RIRTEEM11.80% - TBHREAS
802,737,000 Jt » MR 2022F 12 A318 1t
FE - AEBNEBARKREEE13.26% K
I AR PEHREEPERIE - AR
RN

17. Interest in an associate (Continued)

In the prior year, the Group held a 32.96% interest in Future
Hydrogen and accounted for the investment as an associate.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed
of a 7.90% interest in Future Hydrogen to a connected person
for proceed of approximately RMB537,608,000 and 11.80%
interest in Future Hydrogen to two independent third parties for
proceeds of HK$802,737,000. The Group remains 13.26%
interest of Future Hydrogen as at the year ended 31 December
2022. This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a gain
in profit or loss, calculated as follows:

ARBT T

RMB’'000

&S FTS IR Proceeds of disposal 1,340,345
B HEHRE Less: carrying amount of the 13.26% investment on

#913.26% 2 BREIE the date of disposal (128,055)

B R Gain recognised 1,212,290

AREEEZHRSZBIEEERFBEOARE
1,212,290,000 (BN AT B R B H AR &
1,340,345,000 T8 E = H BRI EL A
R #128,055,0007T) °

The gain recognised in the current year comprises a realised
profit of approximately RMB1,212,290,000 (being the proceeds
of approximately RMB1,340,345,000 less approximately
RMB128,055,000 carrying amount of the interest disposed of).
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18. B EE

18. Intangible assets

EHRM LTS RuEE e
Proprietary Exploration
technologies Software rights Total
ARETT ARETT AR%®TT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R cosT
R2021561A1H At 1 January 2021 134,786 26,487 80,000 241,273
INE Additions 97 2,565 - 2,662
& — P E 2 3 (K5 40) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 40) - (18) (80,000) (80,018)
2021612 A31A K At 31 December 2021 and
202F1H18 1 January 2022 134,883 29,034 - 163,917
NE Additions 3,500 5,178 - 8,678

& — B A A (H15E40)

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 40)

M2022%12A831H At 31 December 2022 138,383 34,212 - 172,595
BERAE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

20211 A 1H At 1 January 2021 104,231 12,607 63,115 179,953
REFRY Charge for the year 10,985 4,753 - 15,738
BB Impairment - - 4,667 4,667
HE—FMTBAREHESE  Eliminated on disposal of

(Fft 3£ 40) a subsidiary (note 40) - (16) (67,782) (67,798)
B2021F12 8318 R At 31 December 2021 and

2022 1A1H 1 January 2022 115,216 17,344 - 132,560
REERY Charge for the year 11,321 4,899 - 16,220

2022912 A31H

At 31 December 2022

REE
2022912 A31H

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2022

7202112 A31H

At 31 December 2021

126,537

11,846

19,667

11,969

11,690

148,780

23,815

31,357
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18. BILEE (&) 18. Intangible assets (Continued)

AEBRARVEEDRAE=EE

BRI EEEA A E A AR A]
FH AREREDFINSFEI0FERIF
E5FHIH -

R202F AEBEUNBREARE
80,000,000 LAE = HFREFBHASTHBAR
B EESHRERE - NARZESEANRES
MNERERYE (B ARNEERSBIE
MEZEMB) o IWHETES A FE A EBEEN
NAEENKANGEENSEE4 0 AR
}Izg\o

REFRERELMFBENEERT  REH
FINEETACHNEFE  ALBERAE
REEEAME - R2017F 108 - A&H
RIS R EEEEMFTEE2019F 107
WiE—FBEMFE2021F10 A - BhiFiE
REZE2021F12 A31 HItFE BB EH
BREltE -

All of the Group’s intangible assets were acquired from third
parties.

Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
5to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.

During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two
mines from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region
in the PRC for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The
directors of the Company expected that the mines are abundant
with fluorspar resources, which is a major raw material for the
refrigerant business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines
will enable the Group to secure a reliable supply of high-quality
fluorspar resources at a reasonable cost.

According to the regulations on exploration and mining rights
in the PRC, the Group can extend the exploration rights as long
as the survey is in process and the application fee is submitted.
In October 2017, the Group extended the exploration rights for
a period of two years till October 2019 and further extended for
a period of two years till October 2021. The exploration rights
were disposed through disposal of a subsidiary during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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19. EEEH 19. Pledge of assets
NEREER - NEFABLATNEERI - At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

pledge of assets:

AT FE28 TR BR - &L £ 2022612 A 31 As described in notes 28, the Group’s pledged bank deposits
HIEFE  AEESEA AR 43,343,000 amounting to RMB43,343,000 and RMB87,959,000 have been
T M AR ¥ 87,959,000 ;L B IR ITERE pledged to secure the bills payable and deposits from presale of
BRI - DRERBRNEERKRBTBEEYHE properties, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022.
I o

HE2021F12A3MHIEFE » KEEEEE The Group's pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB466,000,
A AR 466,0007T © A R #12,145,000 7T RMB12,145,000 and RMB8,988,000 have been pledged to
K AR # 8,988,000 & iR 1T F X E 1EIK secure the bills payable and deposits from presale of properties
o DREARNZERKEBEESE IR respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021.

234 HEEEARAT —B-_F£R§



rE MR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

20. RAFESAREMEEUKZE 2R 20. Equity instruments at fair value through
AXITH other comprehensive income

2022 £ 20214
2022 2021
AR%ET ARBFIT
RMB‘000 RMB’000

FETRARES  RAFE Unlisted equity securities,

Sl AR at fair value
PERARERMAERAT  China MinSheng Investment Co., Ltd

([RR&I ("CcMIC™) 10,671 11,723
REBEEBEERAA Taihe Asset Management Co. Ltd.

(=) (“Taihe") 57,163 70,531
EEERREARLE Hainan Guiji Investment Partnership

(BRA&E)(EmEEE]) (limited partnership) (“Hainan Guiji”) 32,321 254,599
SSIEE R EFM R AL Zibo Runxin Dongyue New Material

HERSABLE Equity Investment Fund Partnership

(BR&E)(SERED (limited partnership) (“Zibo Runxin”) 52,694 53,726

152,849 390,579

it IE FTARAT A AREERETFREE The above unlisted equity instruments represent the Group’s
R AT EARRRE - AT EEZRIRE equity interest in several private entities established in the PRC.
BT AR AT EA AR MR E kS The directors of the Company have elected to designate these
BRATE  DHRZEREASRDEKA investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI as they are held for
BmiEA o long-term strategic purposes.
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20. BRAFEFAHMBEZEKE 2K

AXIE@®)

REBEEFLTRATAEQATER AEEE
BREYEXMHEMETERMLE - 228/
BREBEFREREREFREARENRS
MEBAET  URRERETERR B
BB RKEREX RERSEREME -
YEBBBETEERBAINEEERET
BERRNMBRMISE  ERERHRE
BUN EM RTINS EE - MibEM %

BE -

fiz

(a) PREAZEIEEERE  EERIEHRED
¥ ITENRERERENEEETE - AEBHEA
F K #1,400,000,0000 - X B A A R ¥
1,580,000,000 7T * ZEE E A 2022 & 22021 F 12
ABMBRFREMFERER2.8% - RIFPRIZ
HZE2022F K2021F12 A31 B I FEMBHRE
WE B ERBEE TTRE - mEREEER
NMEESBEEERAT PRIEOE MDA
BeER+HBR - BBHRRFEESE - Hitt - &
RAIEERE  WEALEZENBIEEGBE
BRE  AEBRPREMNIEER2022F 128
31EMAFELAARE10,671,0007T(20214F -
AR#11,723,0007T) © FH L - REE 2022412
A31BIEFEERAFERBELN AR 1,052,000
70 (20214 : AR 187,040,0007T) * HE &t A
AEBHEMEEMAY

by ZEA BEPERIHLAERE -ZEETEBH
FE(HFPE)EEEBURTRILEEERNER
CETREEHSHEEES AEEHEAMEE
BHRITE EFMERARABEARE
10,000,000,000 7T + E AR AREE H & B E R
7 AR #600,000,0007T - 15 FE K E AR
6% HE2022F 128310 AEBEE I
A R #120,000,0007T ° 42022412 A318 -
ARAREERA  REEAZBRENAFENAA
R 57,163,000 7T (20214 : A R # 70,531,000
JL)  MERAEEHZE2022F12 A31BIEFE
H2ERERROATFEBENABARE
13,368,000 (2021 : R FEEENR/RARE
16,883,000 ) ° MBI E2022F 12 A31 8 IEF
B AARBERBIRERARRE (2021 F -
AR#7,200,0007T) °
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20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

In determining the fair value of unlisted equity instruments, the
Group engages an independent professional valuer to perform
such valuation. The amount is determined based on the cash
flow projection for the estimated future cash flow discounted to
its present value and requires the use of key assumptions,
including the discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted
revenue and gross margin taking into account the relevant
industry growth forecasts and financial budgets approved
management’s expectation for the market development and the
market approach, based on trading multiples derived from
publicly traded companies that are similar to the subject
company.

Notes:

(a)

CMIC, a private enterprise initiated by the All-China Federation of Industry
and Commerce and approved by the State Council of the PRC, is principally
engaged in equity investment and assets management. The Group held
1,400,000,000 shares in CMIC at a consideration of RMB1,580,000,000,
and the equity interest in CMIC held by the Group was 2.8% as at 31
December 2022 and 2021. Based on CMIC's financial statements for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, and having considered the
macroeconomic downturn, and the continuous deleveraging as well as the
dual pressure on high level of corporate debts, the funding situation and
cash flow of CMIC were very tight, and the financial position has remained
sluggish. As a result, the directors of the Company considered, and as
agreed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the Group, the
fair value of the Group’s investment in CMIC was approximately
RMB10,671,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB11,723,000).
Accordingly, a fair value loss of approximately RMB1,052,000 (2021:
RMB187,040,000) was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022
which had been included in other comprehensive expense of the Group.

Taihe is a private entity and was established in the PRC. Taihe was
principally engaged in inter alia, asset management and bulk transfer of
non-performing assets of financial enterprises in Shandong Province, the
PRC. The Group and other partners established Taihe and the registered
capital amount of Taihe was RMB10,000 million, of which the register
capital amount contributable by the Group was RMB600 million,
representing 6% of the total registered capital of Taihe. Up to 31
December 2022, the Group has paid RMB120 million. As at 31 December
2022 the directors of the Company considered the fair value of the
investment of Taihe was approximately RMB57,163,000 (2021:
RMB70,531,000) and a fair value loss of approximately RMB13,368,000
(2021: RMB16,883,000) which had been recognised in other
comprehensive expense of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022. No dividend has been received by the Company (2021:
RMB7,200,000) from Taihe during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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20. BAFEFTAEMEEEWEZR
AIH®

()

EEEEA—HMRPEKRINERABLE - &
ERBHEMBARFAERMRLEER RN M
BAREGFHEEH AR 182,000,000 7T °

HZE2021F12A31BLEFE  AEEREGEE
HTE AR 8278,500,0007T ¢ 14 g [E E A AE
#)89.73% - NG EEBIEADREHIH D
AIMEBARABTERIES  ARREERA -
ANAREREHIZ AR - ARRIESDRESIL
BEIETE AR AFEFTALMEEBEMBRAT
B HERZEREARRBEARMES -

HE2022F12A318IEFE  AEEKREBEHE
& E A 3R 38 5k 08 A R % 238,400,000 7T © RIEF AKX
SE TG EEWE —HE AR M) EES
KEEREARAR([BAEE]D  REAAR
# 322,000,000 7T °

MR2022F 12 A31 8 ARFAIESERAE - RER
SERFNBEVEEGEMRE  HEmEEY
BENAFEHNBARE32,321,000T - BEE
2022F 12 A3 BIEFE EAKEEM2ERA
AR UER R A T Uz KA R 516,122,000 7T ©

EEBER—ENTEKINEREBES &
HERRERACT - B B RN
IE

B2021F 18128 ARAFRHMEHRBARRE
FENBEEEGRARA(EEAERR]) RILE
REABEMHBROBRAR(ILEEEH K
D BRI ECHERGSEANEEELER
RAR(EEERE]) MEBERESHERA A
(SRR ) RPERREREEER AR ([F
ERREARDIN—hEaEhE -

BEAGERE EeNNBEIERTEAARE
500,000,0007T * BIEERE B ARERERE -
REAHE BB REERESRIMEST
& AR #125,000,0007T + AR#75,000,0007T
A ¥ 125,000,000 7¢ 2 A K % 75,000,000 7T
UREBEBATEEREAMES FEARKE
100,000,0007T ° E & /& G IRIES BiHE D B
BT -

20. Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

(©

Hainan Guiji is a limited partnership established in the PRC. It has through
its subsidiary committed to contribute an aggregate of approximately
RMB182,000,000 to the registered capital of two industrial silicon
companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made capital
contribution of RMB278,500,000 to Hainan Guiji, representing 89.73% of
equity interest of Hainan Guji. As the Hainan Guji was managed and
controlled by a general partner which was not a company controlled by
the Company, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company was not in a position to exercise control over this company. The
directors of the Company have elected to designate this investment in
equity instruments at FVTOCI as they are held for long-term strategic
purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received refund
from Hainan Guji of RMB238,400,000, and the Group also acquired the
subsidiary, Sichuan Southwest Sunshine Silicon Technology Co., Ltd
(“Sunshine Silicon”) from Hainan Guji with a consideration of
RMB322,000,000.

As at 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company considered, and as
agreed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the Group, the
fair value of the investment in Hainan Guji was approximately
RMB32,321,000, and a fair gain of approximately RMB16,122,000 which
had been received in other comprehensive expense of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Zibo Runxin is a limited partnership fund established in the PRC, which is
expected to primarily invest in fluoro-chemical, organic silicon, membrane
materials and hydrogen-related industries.

On 12 January 2021, Dongyue Fluorosilicone Science and Technology
Group Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology”) and Shangdong
Dongyue Organosilicon Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Organosilicon”), both
subsidiaries of the Company, entered into a partnership agreement with
Huantai Province Jinhai Kongyou Capital Operation Co., Ltd. (“Huantai
Jinhai”), China Capital Management Co., Ltd. (“China Capital”) and Zibo
Jugiang Trading Co., Ltd. (“Zibo Jugiang”) in relation to the establishment
of the fund.

Pursuant to the partnership agreement, the initial capital contribution to
the fund is in total RMB500,000,000, comprising RMB125,000,000,
RMB75,000,000, RMB 125,000,000 and RMB75,000,000 to be contributed
to the fund by Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology, Dongyue
Organosilicon, Huantai Jinhai and Zibo Jugiang, respectively, as limited
partners, and RMB100,000,000 by China Capital as the general partner.
The capital contribution to the fund will be made in stages in accordance
with the partnership agreement.
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20. BAFEFAEMEEZEWE ZRKR
XTI Hm®

d (&
HE2021F12A31BIEFE - AEEREEE
ZHE AR 60,000,000 7T * {55 @ ESRER
33.66% ° RS EES BIEAR D AHERIE A FH)
LRAEBABTEREY  ARREERE  AQ
RIEEEGIZ AR - ARREEEBREBHILEE
BEARAFEFAEMEZEKRSHRATE -
THRZEREARNRBARMES -

HZE2022F 12831 BILFE - AEE[EHHE
2 — 45 E AR 6,500,000 T © 2022412
A318  AEERFANEEBERER36.44% -

MR2022F 12 A31 8 ARFRIESERAE - RER
SERFNBEVEEGEMRE  HEHEEZ
BENAFELNBARES2,694,000T - HEE
2022F 12 A3 BIEFE BERAEEEMEE
Pz PR A T EEE4)7,532,000 T °

21. BRAFEFABSZECEREE 21

20.

Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (Continued)

(d) (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made capital
contribution of RMB60,000,000 to Zibo Runxin, representing 33.66% of
equity interest of Zibo Runxin. As the Zibo Runxin was managed and
controlled by a general partner which was not a company controlled by
the Company, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company was not in a position to exercise control over this company. The
directors of the Company have elected to designate this investment in
equity instruments at FVTOCI as they are held for long-term strategic
purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made further capital
contribution of RMB6,500,000 to Zibo RunXin, and the equity interest in
Zibo RunXin held by the Group was 36.44% as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the directors of the Company considered, and as
agreed by the independent professional valuer engaged by the Group, the
fair value of the investment in Zibo Runxin was approximately
RMB52,694,000, and a fair value loss of approximately 7,532,000 which
had been recognised in other comprehensive expense of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss

2022 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PTEEBMTA Derivative financial instrument
— JEETRROLHARE — Unlisted Put Option 37,669

BINGE AT ERERMT 1754 - B E WS
BEREGKRR  AEREAMERETHR
RAEREBREAERERRRITERES
R ([ EHE ) o IRIBIL A B IR
RIRGAEE N AT A (B K 4 R b 1) AR RE AR R
REBERKFEEE N 2023F12 A31 B2 Al
EHREMSEAAHEE  EMEREEHER
o MBS EIBREE  RBERER2024
F1A1HE20245F12 A31 B @ TE L
B AR REEAS IR AE AR R e B AR -
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As stated in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, in
the Injection Agreement, there is a protective clause in which
Dongyue Organosilicon and several new shareholders can
request Future Hydrogen to repurchase all the equity interest
when certain conditions occur (“Put Option”). Pursuant to the
terms of the Injection Agreement, Future Hydrogen has
irrevocable and unconditionally guaranteed the Guaranteed
Shareholders that Future Hydrogen initial public offer, listed and
trading of its shares in the PRC market on or before 31
December 2023. In the event that the certain conditions are
occur, the Guaranteed Shareholders can exercise the Put Option
in the period between 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024
and Future Hydrogen will repurchase the equity interest from
the Guaranteed Shareholders.
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21.

BAVEFABRBZSMEE®

HEREE—BARE 19,777,000 THHTE
CREE  WRZITESNI L ASEATF
BEYVIFERN AR BERBREHREHN
AEEHANTE-

HE2021F12A31BILEE  CHIALE
TS RE EW G A AREE21,870,0007T ©

HERNEE 2022412 A31 HILFEEHRE
FETT Y -

21. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

The Put Option resulted in a derivative financial asset of
RMB19,777,000, and was initially recognised at fair value
through profit or loss on the date when such derivative contract
entered into and subsequently re-measured to its fair value at
the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, gain on a derivative
financial asset from Put Option of RMB21,870,000 was

recognised.

The Put option has been cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2022.

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022 239



e RR MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

22, RFERIE

R REFTERIRERIBEHOITT -

BEEMBAEE
EERIARE

22. Deferred taxation

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purpose:

2022 F
2022

AR®TR
RMB’000

Deferred tax assets 85,877

Deferred tax liabilities (251,921)

(166,044)

FAEBRANEIBRERELE (AE) R

HEFHMT

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon for the year:

202151818 At 1 January 2021 (31,800) (177,544) 47,715 33,795 (297) 26,117 (6,630) 86,255 (22,389
BRREEINR Dividend withholding tax paid 29,002 - - - - - - - 29,002
HE-FRBAR Disposal of a subsidiary
(Krzz40) (note 40) - - - - - - - (15,779) (15,779)
WBRRER (MBR)ETA  (Charge) credit recognised
in profit or loss (68,101) 10,386 14,051 (4,162) - (26,117) - 38,192 (35,751)
R2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021 and
R202%1A18 1 January 2022 (70899)  (167,158) 61,766 29,633 (297) - (6,630 108,668 (44,917)
BRREENG Dividend withholding tax paid 30,000 - - - - - - - 30,000
WEEH B AR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - - - (6,722) - (6,722)
WEREZ(MK)EA  (Charge) credit recognised
in profit or loss (91,543) (102,841) 49,495 1,307 297 - - (1,120) (144,405)

2025128318 At 31 December 2022
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(132,442)

(269,999)

111,261 (13,352) 107,548 (166,044)
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23.

24,

WiE—ERBLARNENEE

R2021F2A8H  REAMIEFT L EHW
# MSEEERELSASAZERABIRME
BHES - REATKE  SIEETRELR
BEHRBERAFBKARERHNZEN B A
Al BV BEENSHAREENLEES W
R -R2021F 128318 - BESEERE
ESfAREARAAINTARE
119,524,000t iE &€ - ZWEEHEERE
%2022 12 A31 BIEFERK °

SR 24.
B cosT
R2021F1R1RR At 1 January 2021 and
202112 A31H 31 December 2021
WEMB A RRES Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
(PrzE40) (Note 40)
AE Impairment

23.

2022412 A31H At 31 December 2022

REZE2022F 12 A31BILFE » REEK
BIEAHEERBEILNZ2HEHERA
it RUREE R - E D BIERH AR
159,519,000 7t & A R # 52,952,000 7T #)
28,

BT R E A - A R %84,540,0007T
(202145 : AR %84,540,0007T) 2 EED
PR FZReELEM(REELEEM) @ B
FEEWA o NEE2022F12 A31AILEE
AR E TR E M E W ok IR AT R B R A
(2021F : Z) o

Deposits paid for acquisition of a subsidiary

On 8 February 2021, Dongyue Organosilicon entered into a
restructuring agreement to providing funding to Zibo Tangtai
Park Comprehensive Development Co. Ltd. (& EERE @SS
4 % B BR A 8]) (“Zibo Tangtai Park”) for restructuring. Upon
completion of the restructuring, Zibo Tangtai Park will become
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and the financial
statements of Zibo Tangtai Park will be consolidated into the
consolidated statements of the Group. As at 31 December
2021, deposits paid of RMB119,524,000 has been paid to Zibo
Tangtai Park. The Acquisition has been completed during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Goodwill
Wi HAEK
B RREER KEBEL WA ES T BE
Other
Acquisition immaterial
of Sunshine  Acquisition ~ Acquisition  acquisition
Silicon of Tangshan of Shenzhou  of business Total
FERT FERL FERT FET FERL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 84,540 38,880 123,420
159,519 52,952 - 659 213,130
- - - (37,526) (37,526)
159,519 52,952 84,540 2,013 299,024

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group acquired
the entire issued share capital of Sunshine Silicon and Tangshan
and there are goodwill of approximately RMB159,519,000 and
RMB52,952,000 was recognised upon completion of the
acquisition respectively.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill of
RMB84,540,000 (2021: RMB84,540,000) have been allocated
to the cash generating units (CGUs), Huaxia Shenzhou in the
polymers segment. During the year ended 31 December 2022,
management of the Group determines that there was no
impairment of goodwill (2021: nil).
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24. BFHE (®) 24. Goodwill (continued)

R AT e S BB RBE AEES
BiE i HE E*E?E«ﬁfiaﬁtﬁmﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ
BIEEMEFIREREMIEER11.84%1F
e AFHNUEMNRSRERA3I%NIETE
R EREE o B REDEREBITEER
?E?EU g HK@LEF%??%E@%’@E%E
CFREBEEHENHEHMEERRDE(E
%%%fﬁ’iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂfﬁmE’J)fﬁﬁ/mgﬁ
B - ZIBMAE DERG R EENBRT R
BREEBBHMISERNTER - EEEM
Z ZEBRATEABRLBENEAEEHE N
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BEEE o
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%IJJ WA el eBRECABAETES
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FREBEFENEMFZEREDE(BERE

BHEBELENEZREAN) B REMFTAE

B o ZEREFT HEREILMNBARARER

BHEMSERENEN - EEERE  Z5R

FARE S EHIR A E B T2 BB

WEARIMEREAEBA W EI4AEEE -
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Sunshine Silicon

The recoverable amounts of Sunshine Silicon has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount rate
of 11.84%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash flows which include budgeted
sales and gross margins. Such estimation is based on
past performance of Sunshine Silicon and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of related
subsidiaries to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount.

Tangshan

The recoverable amounts of Tangshan has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period and a discount rate of
8.80%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash flows which include budgeted sales and
gross margins. Such estimation is based on past performance of
Tangshan and management’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of related subsidiaries to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount.
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24,

BHE %)
B EME S

EgEAMR R EeREREEREETE
EBFE sENREEEECIENTELN
BEEMFEF RS RE RBRIRE 15% (2021
F:159%)BH - AFHUBHRERE
BRA3%(20214F © 3%) BT I R RHEM -
ZIBERREREBITERRER - BTH
BEBITENFHREEER - FREER
HEMHEMIERR VA (REBEHEEK
FHEREAN) RS REMGTEE - ZEMG
A EREEMANBARREEEEH™
BBRROTEE - EBERE  ZEHREA
AELENEMEESH TS ERES SN
BREAEBBEA KD ASEE -

24. Goodwill (continued)

Polymers segment

The recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou has been
determined based on value in use calculation. This calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a discount rate
of 15% (2021: 15.9%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2021: 3%) growth rate.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows
which include budgeted sales and gross margins. Such
estimation is based on past performance of Huaxia Shenzhou
and management’s expectations for the market development.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of Huaxia Shenzhou to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of Huaxia Shenzhou.
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25. FE

R # K E
ERm
SR am

25. Inventories

2022 F
2022

ARET T
RMB’000

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods

902,166
5,935
533,611

925,918
5,028
604,868

1,441,712 1,535,814

26. FHHERBRZY=

FERYFEBE
—BERIFEME
—RHERBRR BRTHEDE

—RARRMHEEZHE L

26. Properties for sale

2022 £
2022
AR¥T T
RMB’000

Properties under development comprise:

— Completed properties for sale 577,323 792,850
— Properties held for/under development

for sale 323,681 260,112
— Leasehold land held for development

for sale 301,337 539,545

1,202,341 1,592,507

FEMFERE

Summary of properties for sale:

RELERHEPL— W& KR HE A EH R 100% 100% B3Rk LN HRI5R (15,668 %) 100%
F— - ZRMH

Dongyue Engineering R&D  Liuguan North Road, Huantai 100% 100% Completed Office premises Office premises (15,668m?) 100%
Center —Phase |, II, Il & IV County, Zibo City,

Shandong Province

RETEMERL— EEY Tt S 100% 50% Bk e BXREES HEEQIBTHK) 100%

L EEIVAVERD VD
EE15 (28,979 F5K)
Dongyue Engineering R&D  Liuguan North Road, Huantai 100% 50% Completed Residential, Residential (21,178m?), 100%

Center — Phase V County, Zibo City,

Shandong Province

244 HEEEBRAFT —SB--FFR

Commercial and
car parks

Commercial (7,023m?)
and car park (28,979m?)
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26. (EHERBRZWE 2

26. Properties for sale (Continued)

ERHE —PANE WREM BT ERELR 100% 0% 026128 FE BEREES  EE(230480F5%) 100%
BERIE EE(10463T7K) &
[2855(38,614 F 7 K)
Shengjing Yuyuan — North of Hanhuai Street and West 100% 90% December 2022  Residential, Residential (230,480m?), 100%
Zhongyang Gongguan of Tongqu Road, Yucheng City, Commercial and Commercial (10,463m?)
Dezhou, Shandong car parks and car park (38,614m?)
Bl WEREEM BHTRIEIAR - 97% 80% 202358  EE BEREES  EET(17464F5%) 100%
ZHRERSL EE(10854 F7K) &
[2855(40,632 F 7 K)
Hanlinyuan North of Pengnan Road Extension, 97% 80% May 2023 Residential, Residential (174,654m?), 100%
East of Yuji Road, Yucheng City, Commercial and Commercial (10,854m?)
Dezhou, Shandong Province car parks and car park (40,632m?)
RAENE-BE-HR  IBHEREATKERY 100% 100% 25 % BERkEES  FE(102660F75%) 100%
FBIE % (8795 FAK)
Xiaoxiang Huafu Phase | Pengjia Lane Neighborhood 100% 100% Completed Residential, Residential (102,660m?), 100%
Part 1 Committee, Yongding District, Commercial and Commercial (8,795m?)
Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province car parks
RAENE-HE_KR  HHERFATAER 100% 100% 25 fFfz BxhkeEs  FE(108092F7%) 100%
ZE51HE B (101945 7K) R
[285(3154 F 7 K)
Xiaoxiang Huafu Phase | Pengjia Lane Neighborhood 100% 100% Completed Residential, Residential (108,092m?), 100%
Part 2 Committee, Yongding District, Commercial and Commercial (10,194m?)
Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province car parks and car park (31,524m?)
TRERZE—H BEERFRTER 80% 30% 02358  E% EEREES  EE05140F5K) 100%
ZE51HE B3 EHR)
Jiangyuan project Phase | Pengjia Lane Neighborhood 80% 30% May 2023 Residential, Residential (75,140m?), 100%

Committee, Yongding District,
Zhangjiajie City, Hunan Province

Commercial and
car parks

Commercial (413m?)

R2022F 12 A31 8 fERERBR 2 EEY
EMEREEY AR 567,032,000t (2021
F 0 AR¥ 155,791,000 7T ) FEEA S A R 45 HR
KRBT +@ARET -

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of approximately RMB567,032,000 (2021:
RMB155,791,000) are expected to be completed within twelve
months from the end of reporting period.
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27. EZ R EMERIE 27. Trade and other receivables

B 5 MR (i)

Trade receivables (note) 2,140,206 2,309,447
W EEEEERE Less: allowance for credit losses (6,888) (2,260)

2022 F
2022

AR®T R
RMB’000

2,133,318 2,307,187

R B AR Prepayments for raw materials 95,511 115,069
a] Uy B 4 18 Tax recoverables 245,596 80,007
BWMEEREIZS Deposit paid for property development 21,000 38,000
HEB 2 QR EWFIE Receivable for disposal of associate 406,474 -
e N H M ER R IE Deposits and other receivables 138,369 149,313

3,040,268 2,689,576

PI5E - M2022F 12 A31AME R EBIERKE
B A R %1,779,458,0007T (20214F : A R ¥
2,015,258,000 7T) °

AEBBETRFZESRUGBEEEREE
NF30E90H @ EUWEE —MKMO0AE =K
180 HEIH] - B 5 K18 & W =35 (30
REEEERE) REZAHZERRITE
AT o

90 HIA Within 90 days
91THZE180H 91-180 days
181 HE365H 181-365 days

Note: Included in the trade receivables are bills receivables amounting to
RMB1,779,458,000 at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB2,015,258,000).

Customers are generally granted with credit period ranged
between 30-90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are
generally due in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging
analysis of trade and bills receivables, net of allowance for credit
losses presented based on the invoice date.

2022 F
2022

ARBT T
RMB’000

1,006,429 1,736,823
1,055,095 569,118
71,794 1,246

2,133,318 2,307,187
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27. EFREMEWTEIE #) 27. Trade and other receivables (continued)

FEAEAMFMEFH  ARESAETHEF
NEEMTHBERFNEEEENEESR
FREREE - BEFHNEREEMERTR
FFEZMINR > 99% (2021 4F : 99%) 7 il
A REZESEKZBREREEES
FEEATHRTEATIR - ALBRTER
AHSHE  ERMBEREZEERE-

BIRWFENEREEBERIREAR
#14,982,0007T(20214F : AFR# 4,263,000
T0) SN IRE R AE BB M AEEL
EREBEEBEDEE -  NEEWRRI
LEMRIESEMERSERPEH -

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts
research on the creditworthiness of the new customer and
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed twice a year. 99% (2021: 99%) of the
trade and bills receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the high-ranking record attributable under the research on
the creditworthiness. The Group offers various settlement terms
which vary depending on the size of contract, credibility and
reputation of the customers.

Included in the trade and bills receivable with the aggregate
carrying amount of RMB14,982,000 (2021: RMB4,263,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

2022 F 20214

2022 2021

AR¥ T ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

91 HZE 180 H 91-180 days 11,766 3,017
181 BIA Over 181 days 3,216 1,246
14,982 4,263

MR EEEET REER( AAEER AR
SHOENAME - AEERY RS IR
Bl - AR TEERARSHEEEHER
4 o

Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the
Group as there has not been a significant change in the credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The
directors of the Company consider they are in good credit
quality.
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27. EZRHMEWIE @) 27. Trade and other receivables (Continued)
CEBERESD Movements in the allowance for credit losses

2022 F
2022

ARBT T
RMB’000

FE R Balance at beginning of the year 2,260
FARE Provided during the year 4,628

FIREERR Balance at end of the year 6,888

DA EE T AT EE AN &) The Group's trade receivables that are denominated in
ENAEEE S REFIEHINNAT currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

R20229 12 A31H At 31 December 2022 23,481 163,870

R20219F12A31H At 31 December 2021 24,535 156,429
B 5 N H b fE Wk B R E G 15 EUA KT Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
FF5e are set out in note 5.

2022 F
2022

ARBTR
RMB’000

FHER Balance at beginning of the year 4,356
FREME,(BE) Provided/(reversed) during the year 28,368

FIREERR Balance at end of the year 32,724
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28. CIKIFIRITIER RITEE K 28. Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and
& cash

RITHERBEARITENR

R2022F 12 A31H ' AEBESBEAARE
43,343,000t 2 AR # 87,959,000 T E K 48
IBITEREEEE - DREARNEE KRR
HIEEWME RS WO BARDEE -

MR2021F 12 A31 8 AEESBAARKE
466,000 7T &2 A R #12,145,000 7T B K 88
TEREIEERRT - DRERERNEE - kA
BENEZ RS RERAFENER oA
MEVEE °

EEIRITIFARRIRI TR NIRGTE -

R ASEERNEEE AN EET
ENAKRERITESRIINT

MR20229F12 A31H

At 31 December 2022

Bank balances/pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB43,343,000 and
RMB87,959,000 have been pledged to secure the bills payables,
deposits from presale of properties, respectively, and are
therefore classified as current assets as at 31 December 2022.

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB466,000,
RMB12,145,000 have been pledged to secure the bills payable,
deposits from presale of properties, respectively, and were
therefore classified as current assets as at 31 December 2021.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry variable interest
rates.

The Group's bank balances that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

TETL ARETRT
Us$000 RMB’000

85,432 594,999

MR2021F12 A31H

At 31 December 2021 27,375 174,536

7H2022% 12 A31H

TET ARETRT
HK$000 RMB’'000

At 31 December 2022 121,071 108,149

R2021F12 A31H

At 31 December 2021

1,008,326 824,408

B ERRITER R RITARRRE S S
FAMIGES

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits and
bank balances are set out in note 5.
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29. EFRHMENRE 29. Trade and other payables
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR%T R ARKETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Z 5 N FIE Trade payables 2,611,778 2,588,251
EHEE—HELIER Contract liabilities — sale of chemical products 168,277 232,921
BHEE —HEME Contract liabilities — sale of properties 511,263 612,994
R AT B T B (B (1)) Payroll payable (Note (i) 837,416 439,263
M - B MR IER A Payable for property, plant and equipment
(H3EGD) (Note (i) 766,449 279,480
H b HIE Other tax payables 57,708 61,419
ERERBR 2 EEMERNEN Construction cost payables for properties
i 59N under development for sale 112,997 128,924
Hib R M EET IR Other payables and accruals 343,200 321,119
5,409,088 4,664,371
B 5E - Notes:

0] R2022% 124318 BANBRIHFMEE—ER
TENBARNEEHRESBEABARE
41,123,000 70 (2021 6 : A% 25,613,0007T) °
BRESEEAKETRNEAREENZHLR
BRI DREFABLFRERET  WikA
BORLAM R R E - R EBUTVRB R —F
E¥HTE  FRINEBHRBEFEMNT
iR e

(i) WEEME - IS AR MR IR RO B R R
BREERE=FARZN  WHRFERTAH
BT -

250 HE£EARAF —B-_H££H

(i)

As at 31 December 2022, included in the payroll payable is a provision for
social insurance fund for employees of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
RMB41,123,000 (2021: RMB25,613,000). The amount of the provision
represents the Group’s entire obligation for social insurance fund for
employees of PRC subsidiaries and is determined based on the relevant
national regulations on social insurance and calculated based on the basic
counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic counting
unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of an employee in the
preceding year and shall not be less than the minimum limit promulgated
by the local social insurance bureau each year.

The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment will be
settled three months after the completion of installation of the plant and
machinery which is recorded in the addition of construction in progress
during the year.
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29. EZREMENTE S
ANERE — HELIER
ZeEATRE( TESEEMBKESZE -

TR BEECTERABNEEANR
EBEMRNERWAN B THECEITNE
HEBHIRR -

29. Trade and other payables (Continued)

Contract liabilities — Sale of chemical products

The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
arising from the pre-sale of chemical products.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities in relation to sale of
chemical products and how much relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

2022 £ 20214
2022 2021
AR¥ T AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
»1A1H As at 1 January 232,921 114,962
WRME R AENEEFA Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
WA ABA LB ER D recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period (4,801,367) (3,785,344)
FRWEGE SR ® ko IR Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
LABE B9 B EE receiving sales deposits and instalments
during the year 4,736,723 3,903,303
Mm12HA31H As at 31 December 168,277 232,921
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29. EZREMEMRTE 2
BHEE — e

ZEeHEATRBEEMEEENTEREFLR
JE o A2022F 12 A31H - ZSERD KM
RITTE R4 AR #:87,959,000 7T (2021 £
AR 124,145,000 70 ) VEHE IR ©

TR ELENFERENEEANARS
RAHRERBANRBERHNEBITHENR
FBHIRRR

29. Trade and other payables (Continued)

Contract liabilities — Sale of properties

The amount represents the receipt in advance from customers
arising from the pre-sale of properties in the PRC. The amount
was secured by pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB87,959,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB124,145,000).

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities in relation to sale of
properties and how much relates to performance obligations
that were satisfied in prior periods.

2022 F 20214
2022 2021
AR¥T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BK1A1H As at 1 January 612,994 1,438,080
RBEHV T AENBBEFR Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
WA ABE & FER D recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period (496,572) (1,318,379)
FRWEEEIL S o B R Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
LABA # B &8N receiving sales deposits and instalments
during the year 394,841 493,293
W12 H31H As at 31 December 511,263 612,994
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29. EZREMENTE S 29. Trade and other payables (Continued)
B REMNRIEBREZEAR®41,637,0007T Included in the trade payables are bills payable amounting to
(20215 : AK#172,257,0007T) 2 BN RMB41,637,000 (2021: RMB172,257,000). Bills payable are
B ENEERAERN D IKIRRITERE secured by the Group’s pledged bank deposits.
R o
KEEmTHEEEHRRORB - XEEE The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. The
HIET A E SRR E IR - ERTEE Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
MRBERMEEBRAEE - that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
RIBFHZEAH  EZRNFIENRERINE The following is an aging analysis of trade payables, presented
BN - based on invoice date:

2022 F
2022

AR®T R
RMB’000

30HA Within 30 days 1,621,153 1,644,568
31HZ90H 31-90 days 699,843 660,141
91HZ=180H 91-180 days 137,992 195,027

181 H=Z= 365 H 181-365 days 96,930 33,724
1224 1-2 years 36,854 34,987
BiE2F More than 2 years 19,006 19,804

2,611,778 2,588,251

NEBEBAREBEE Y LS AN The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated in
EEAENE S REMEANZEEYWNT currencies other the functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

720225124318 At 31 December 2022 3,667 25,666

20215124318 At 31 December 2021 2,680 17,090
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30. &

EHMRITER
ERRTER

30. Borrowings

Unsecured bank loans
Secured bank loans

2022 F
2022

AR®T R
RMB’000

584,100
40,000

B RRBEETER

2 HAFRIE

Less: amounts due within one year shown
under current liabilities

624,100

(268,600)

FIRIERBBE THFIR

Amounts show under non-current liabilities

355,500

ARUTHRAEBENIREE :

1R
L1 EERBIBE2E

Carrying amounts are repayable

Within one year
More than one year, but not exceeding

268,600

355,500

624,100
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30. & @) 30. Borrowings (Continued)
AREETEEEREEAYTEA (KEH The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
EEH)WET : contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:

2022 F
2022

AR®TR
RMB’000

Fixed-rate borrowings:
1R Within one year

AN - AREERE S ESNT In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:

ARE- TEA RMB- N/A

202112 A31H Loan amount as at

HEZ4mE & 31 December 2021 Interest rate

AR#535,100,0007T FEEHFEMO% E RMB535,100,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
15% (AEEEAR (current year applied rate: 3.85% to
F%E 1 3.85%F4.75%) 4.75%
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30. BE )

FBNRRBEEE RN EEE - RERK
ME AP BARRITHEM - HFEARRT
BANEENREE - AIRIREE N K5t
BHEENEREINRE °

MEE3IE12AAEHNEE -

BEEME(TREROTENE)BELDT -

30. Borrowings (Continued)

The variable interest rates change in accordance with the
standard lending rate. The standard lending rate is promulgated
by the People’s Bank of China. The interest of borrowing at
standard lending rate will be reset when there is a change in the
borrowing rate promulgated by the People’s Bank of China.

Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) are as follows:

2022 %
2022

AR®T R
RMB’000

BRR=E: Effective interest rate:

ELEE Fixed-rate borrowings T8 A N/A 1.17%
TiEAN/A 1.17%

EEEE Variable-rate borrowings 28NN 3.85% £ 4.75%

TEAN/A 3.85%-4.75%

REZE2021F12A31BILFE - KEEE
1SR EIR IR HRSR 1T B 3k A R 5 89,000,000
TR ES B AR 745,150,000 7T HY 4
EHRBBITER -

RBERR AEEBUTARIEESE
=T

1 EFRER
@ FER

Expiring within one year
Expiring beyond one year

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group raise new
unsecured short-term bank loans of 89,000,000 and unsecured
long-term bank loans in the amount of RMB745,150,000.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the
following undrawn borrowing facilities:

2022 F
2022
AR®T R
RMB’000

727,000
430,000

1,092,300
2,429,210

1,157,000 3,521,510
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31. HEAE 31. Lease liabilities

2022 F
2022

AR®T R
RMB’000

ENEESE

Lease liabilities payables:

1R Within one year
REZMVFETE@A2F Within a period of more than one year,
but not exceeding two years
RBEZ R 2 FETEBBSF Within a period of more than two years,
but not more than five years
RERRRA S F Within a period of more than five years
43,634
B IIRRBBETH1ERA Less: amounts due within one year shown
T EAEB IR under current liabilities (4,894)
HIRIERB B & T HIFKIE Amounts show under non-current liabilities 38,740
FEREAEEaENINELEEEEFEN The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
F4.51% % 513% (20214 : 4.51% & lease liabilities range from 4.51% to 5.13% (2021: 4.51% to
5.13%) o 5.13%).

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022 257



e RR MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

32. EBEWA

EEWARE MBI B AR EE(CRE
A ~ Hes KR EA RS o

FRBRERANEEIT

32. Deferred income

Deferred income mainly represents government grants received
in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment for
manufacturing of chemical products.

Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:

2022 &
2022

ARBT T
RMB’000

W1A1TA At 1 January 317,025 263,298
NE Additions 91,573 124,665
R EIER Release to profit or loss (36,936) (70,938)
M12A31H At 31 December 371,662 317,025
BIREMENDTOT ¢ Analysed for reporting purposes as:

BIEREE
FERNERER

Current portion
Non-current portion

2022 F
2022
AR¥ T
RMB’000

83,813
287,849

80,256
236,769

371,662 317,025
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33. IgAK 33. Share capital
RHO&E [
Number of Share
shares capital
T ARETT
‘000 RMB’000

FREEO1BITHEZER Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each

JEE Authorised:

R2021F 1 A1H 20214 At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021,

12A31H 2022F1A18BK 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022
202212 A31H 4,000,000 382,200

BETRHE - Issued and fully paid:

R2021F1 A1 H At 1 January 2021 2,111,689 200,397

[ E0) Placing of new shares (note (i) 145,000 12,063

o188 K2 =E 8 A% 19 (B3 (i) Shares repurchased and cancelled (note (ii)) (1,499) (122)

R2021F 12 A31 B R At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

2022F 1 A1 H 2,255,190 212,338

[0 f% I 5 S AR (9 Shares repurchased and cancelled (1,501) (142)

72022912 A31H At 31 December 2022 2,253,689 212,196

i BB BRI TR ER A SN B 2022%F Other than as disclosed in the employee option scheme, none

R20216 % - BEARAMBELRBE - of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any

65 Sk B AR R RN LT RESS of the Company’s listed securities during the years 2022 and

2021.

@ M2021F8A31H AR AHEEERIZT LA E (i) On 31 August 2021, the Company and the placing agents entered into the
ek - UL - ARRERITREEBE S HNEN placing agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
ENEREERMD2IBITATIRANEBEREARLS agreed to place through the placing agents 145,000,000 placing shares
145,000,000 (& Be & i th ([ELE 5 1) - BB EE ("Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees at the HK$23 per Placing
2021F9 A8 HTEM © IRIER & M IEH KR Share. The placing was completed on 8 September 2021. An aggregate of
1645 + & #£145,000,000 % B2 & A% 1) B 12 & I AL 145,000,000 Placing Shares have been placed to not less than six placees
B 23.00 B TTEE T APRANBEEA - at HK$23.00 per Placing Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of the

placing agreement.

Bl & AT SRR AR R X PR S ARS8 (INRR A8 R 7 The gross proceeds and the net proceeds (after deduction of the relevant
Y RER%) DB A3335EB T RA33ES expenses and fees) from the placing amounted to HK$3.335 billion and
TC o AR RS EFIRFRDEAED RS approximately HK$3.31 billion, respectively. The Company intends to
SERREROERERMBHEERD VRS allocate the net proceeds i) enhancing the Group’s production capacity of
AEENBENE LG LERMBNEERED & PVDF and its raw material; i) enhancing the Group’s production capacity
iNHRAEEN—REEES - of PTFE and its raw material; and iii) replenishing the general working

capital of the Group.
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33. &)

(ii) BIEAR QRN 202146 510 B BRAEEZRRA
ERTHRIERE AARNEBZE2022F12A
31 BIEFEREE R FTHEE 1,501,000 A% A% {5 (2021
£ 11,499,000 AR 1D) - BRIDEEMBRELN A
16,889,0007% 7T ( 16 & A 49 A R ¥ 13,883,000
70) * BARARNIEREN - AR BB BB EH
AERGERAFEEEEROHABERNT

33.

Share capital (continued)

(ii)

Pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 June 2021, the Company
repurchased, on Stock Exchange, 1,501,000 shares during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: 1,499,000 shares). Details of the Company
repurchased its own shares through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited are as follows:

202112 A15H
15 December 2021
2021412 A20H
20 December 2021
202241 A5H
5 January 2022
2022%F1H6H
6 January 2022
202291 A7H
7 January 2022

499,000 11.60 11.24 5,688
1,000,000 11.50 11.00 11,201
1,000,000 11.10 10.98 11,043

91,000 11.00 11.82 990

410,000 10.70 10.58 4,370

bt E B E AR R T

260 HE£EARAF —SB--FFR

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase.
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34. FERKRRERS

34. Non-Controlling Interests

7202061818 At 1 January 2020 1,075,604
PMEFEEE Share of results for the year 130,689
R Transfer 265
B IR R S W — TR B A REY Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary

RHMER from non-controlling interest (144,061)
RAELE—FHB AR MR Deemed partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary 1,247,706
RAELE—HHEBAR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (99,831)
AEEKNB AR DIRNOKE Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group (222,166)
FR2020F 12 A31 B X 2021%F1A1H At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 1,988,206
DINFEHELE Share of results for the year 606,702
R Transfer 289
REBWBAFDIRNHRE Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group (80,155)

2021512 A31BR 202261411

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022

2,515,042

DIEFEEE Share of results for the year 320,578
R Transfer 111
IR T A Capital contribution from non-controlling interests 3,500

YiE — M B A RMERIMER
REEMNE AR IR OBLE

Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary
Dividends paid by subsidiaries of the Group

R2022612 A31H

At 31 December 2022

(62,671)
(365,101)

2,411,459
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35. EXREE 35. Capital commitments
2022612 A31 B » AR5 B i# R B8 8 & At 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding
O commitments as follows:
2022 F 20214
2022 2021
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BAREISE Capital Commitment
BREAREE - MR NRED Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
EAYE - BRISERE of property, plant and equipment
eV mERNEE contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 433,935 331,347
BEEAFEFAEMEAWE 2 Capital expenditure in respect of equity
BRATEMEAZE - B4 instruments at FVTOCI contracted for but
BARELRE T BHRERARE not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 740,140 790,140
1,174,075 1,121,487
HfhRiE Other commitment
BRELERS 2 EEYEMNM T  Construction commitment contracted in
EIE - BETHERE respect of properties under development
e BmRNEE for sale contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements 78,915
1,174,075 1,200,402

202 HEEEERAT —BE--HER
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36. B A RS 36. Related party transactions
ERN - BESVBMRTETEIN  NEE Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
DT TIEBARS : Group entered into the following related party transactions

during the year:

(a) RIRSRE (MizE) (a) Future Hydrogen (note)

2022 F
2022

AR®TR
RMB’000

BERME ( Purchase of raw materials 72,744
(i) SHE(BER (i) Sales of chemical products 178,416
iy HEWA (i) Rental income 1,025
(v) REEFERBA (iv)  Income from provision of electronic
216
MisE : REARKEEER 20205522 Bk AR Note: Dongyue Future Hydrogen Energy became an associate of the
SEZHBERT - Group on 22 May 2020.
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36. Bt RS (&) 36. Related party transactions (Continued)
(b) EEEHEASHM (b) Compensation of key management personnel
FR - BEEREMEZTEEA SR The remuneration of directors and other members of key
SR : management during the year was as follows:

2022 F
2022

ARBT T
RMB’000

TERFE

Wages and salaries 15,211 33,709

[Sl=pFan Discretionary bonus 53,258 25,294
AR A A E 7 AR ST 3R Equity-settled share-based payments = 113,664

68,469 172,667

0 BHRITERENRTEZREBEF () Bank deposit placed to major shareholder and
BYWA related interest income

2022 £
2022
AR® Tt
RMB’000

12 A 31 BRRITER
FRFEWA Interest income during the year 3,285

264 HEE£EARAFT —SB--FFR

Bank deposit at 31 December 309,888 309,888
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37.

38.

R ARE RS &

A B E R E TR E S BT B
BN ERRIENEIORE - AEEAR
ST EIRIEE B DL CRF IR A ) - f
REBENNAS - AEENE—ETRY

ZEArEIE LR E S -

BERERETS

R2018F 12 A27H @ KARIIRMNIEEHEBIK
B (R EEIRETE])  EARERE
WHAARLF -

BIEEESEREAE - AARZEWB AT
REAHMEEEERAAEAZTIA(R
RADBERARER T ANERS (BER
Ffi 75 FA 5285 f 39115 8 48 800,000,000 7 7T)
BEMELEEERERD  ThRESSLED
NEBIEBESKER ([EEEE ) NETE
ERABEZERD -

EFeRTHE2ENBERER TEMRER
BREMABEMERBRD ([FBRELD - B176
BAER BEREESREZREFENEER
K/ 3k (i) H R R AR A7 £ 65 (B A% BB A
TEER ZENERE(E) NHBE -

37.

38.

Retirement benefits plans

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to these schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

Employee option scheme

On 27 December 2018, the Company adopted an employee
option scheme (the “Employee Option Scheme”) which shall be
valid and effective for a term of five years.

Pursuant to the Employee Option Scheme, Dongyue
Fluorosilicone Science and Technology Group Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the trustee (the
“Trustee"”) will purchase existing Shares from the market out of
cash contributed by the Group of not more than
HK$800,000,000 in total at all material times and hold such
Shares on trust for the relevant employees or consultants of the
Group selected by the Board (the “Selected Employees”).

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion
grant to any Selected Employee the right to purchase the
relevant shares (the “Option”). The Selected Employee may,
when exercising the Option, elect the number of shares which
he wishes to (i) be transferred and/or (ii) sell and receive the
difference, if any, between the sale price of the Shares and the
exercise price of the Option.

265
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38. EEERESE (&)

38. Employee option scheme (Continued)

R2021F7A9H » KA RIASREER#E4.27
BEITNITEERAS K 13NAEEES &
RBHRTEBRBIUFNTES BEAH
62,570,000 17 FE AR #E - (E A D FIE BITIRA
H13% - RIBESBERETE - ZZERHE
AXTAFERARRREREZ HESTER
AFAMSG LEE - BIRETR2021F7 A9
BB E 202657 ASHEm (BIEZMHE
HE) MSFHARANITE - AR D MNER
ENFHBHNARRTBEA2021F7B9H

On 9 July 2021, the Company granted an aggregate of
62,570,000 share options at the exercise price of HK$4.27 per
option share, representing 3% of the issued share capital of the
Company, to a total of 1,372 Selected Employees, including
executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
which have been acquired by the Trustee from the open market
by utilizing the contributed amount made available to the
Trustee by the Company pursuant to the Employee Option
Scheme. The share options are exercisable for a term of 5 years
commencing from 9 July 2021 and expiring on 8 July 2026,

oA both dates inclusive. Details of the share options granted are set

out in the Company’s announcement dated 9 July 2021.

BREOBRENZEFBEHIIMT -

Details of the movements of the share options granted are as

follows:
R2021% R2021%
1818 12A318
ABA REAH 18 R AT FREH ERTTRE KT Eix: 3} fTEHE
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Outstanding at
at 1 January during the duringthe 31 December Exercise
Grantee Date of grant 2021 year year 2021 price Exercise period
B (BHR)
HKS per share
HiTES
Executive directors
RREAE 200157R9A - 7,000,000 (7,000,000) - 427 202147A9HZE2026%7A8E
Mr. Zhang Jianhong 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026
BELE 2021F7R9R - 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - 427 202157A9HZE2026%7A8E
Mr. Fu Kwan 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026
ThREAE 2021F7A98 - 7,000,000 (7,000,000) - 427 2001F7A9BZE2026%57F88
Mr. Wang Weidong 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026
REBRE 20215798 - 6,000,000 (6,000,000) - 427 202157A9HZE2026%7A8E
Mr. Zhang Zhefeng 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026
RUEBSLA (R 202296 A21 Bifftt) 20157 R 98 - 300,000 (300,000) - 427 202157H9HZE2026%7A8E
Mr. Zhang Bishu (passed away on 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026
21 June 2022)
RERAE 2021F7A98 - 300,000 (300,000) - 427 2001F7A9BZE2026%57F88
Mr. Zhang Jian 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026
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38. EEBRETS ()

38. Employee option scheme (Continued)

FHTES

Independent non-executive directors

TRERE 2021F7R98 - 500,000 (500,000) - 427 2001F7A9HZE202657F88

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026

BRELLE 202157HR98 - 300,000 (300,000) - 427 202157H9BE202657 A8H

Mr. Yang Xiaoyong 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026

BE8AE 202157898 202157R98%2026%7 A 8H

Mr. Ma Zhizhong 9 July 2021 - 50,000 (50,000 - 427 9 July 2021-8 July 2026

HitfE R

Other employees

HinfEg 2021%7A9H - 40,120,000 (40,120,000) - 427 2021E7R9HZE2026F7A8A

Other employees 9 July 2021 9 July 2021-8 July 2026
- 62,570,000 (62,570,000) -

WETFHTRE TER 42715 427TET TER

Weighted average exercise price N/A HK$4.27 HK$4.27 N/A
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38. EEERESE (&)

38. Employee option scheme (Continued)

BRENGER - RENEETERENS
VEXLEMEBFEEREGRARET -
RFEDFEA_EABREEERAME
E o TREIIZEARE L BHAANER
BwAE -

B ERRE 9.9978 T
TEE TRRERERN 4.27 8T
TEHA R 18 68.32%
R AR hEF HR 54
TEHANR Bz K 5.68%
42 3 b 1) 0.54%

AEBREATERANZERBRRIDER
B R MREMGR - BRRELREAR
AIRERSIH (HERERENS OFH)
MR SR EETE - EERNETI2ERHA
HEBRESNFH - BNEERNESFRE
H B E R RR - KB BB
TERAFENEREEEZRNE TERN
PRI (RN AR Z BB A RER A RIREK
B BERTBIEE LA T T EME)
FABRARGETEARS -

2068 HEE£EARAT B _F£R§

The valuation of share option was carried out by Hong Kong
Appraisal Advisory Limited, an independent professional valuer
which are not connected by the Group. The fair value was
determined using a binomial option pricing model. The
following table lists the significant inputs to the model used at
the date of grant.

Grant date share price HK$9.99
Exercise price HK$4.27 per Option Share
Expected volatility 68.32%
Share option life 5 years
Expected dividend yield 5.68%
Risk-free interest rate 0.54%

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair values
of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimates.
Expected volatility is based on the historical share price volatility
of the Company over the most recent period commensurate
with the contractual life of the share options. Expected dividend
yield is based on the historical dividend payment of the
Company. The risk-free interest rate is assumed with reference
to Hong Kong government bond yield with maturity matching
the contractual life of the share options as at the date of grant.
The value of the share options calculated using the binomial
option pricing model are subject to certain fundamental
limitations, due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty
relating to the assumptions regarding future performance on
which the model is based, and certain inherent limitations of
the model itself.
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38. EEERESE (&)

38. Employee option scheme (Continued)

HE2021F12 A31HILFEE - "REEER
B R #E B % 5 362,684,000 7T (FBE R A
R 293,774,000 7T) °

HE2021F12A3MBLEFEFE FTAR
20217 A9RREMEREHNEITE - R
RO RITEEBREEZ  STAETEBEERE
BB RS TREMERS -

HE2022F12A31BLEFE - STEANEA
K {8 #230,541,000% sT(20214 :
307,084,000 L) (A E RV AR
204,347,0007C(2021 4 + AR#% 249,159,000
L)) (BIEEEEEIEENT) HTEE HEE
E K A B]25974,0000% B 7 (20214F :
18,460,000 A&7 ) -

RELEZFRAMBRREY - ARR)AE
1B BB 81TR N HRTTE A BB ARHE -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$362,684,000
(equivalent to RMB293,774,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all of the share
options granted on 9 July 2021 were exercised. Following such
grant and exercise of share options, the Trustee has no longer
held any shares under the Employee Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the trustees
purchased an aggregate of 25,974,000 (2021: 18,460,000)
shares of the Company from the market at a total consideration
of approximately HK$230,541,000 (2021: HK$307,084,000)
(equivalent to approximately RMB204,347,000) (2021:
RMB249,159,000) (including directly attributable incremental
Costs).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial

statements, the Company had no share options outstanding
under the Employee Option Scheme.
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39. ARAEEMBLAAFE

(a)

270 HE£EABRAF —B--FFRH

MEARN—RESN

RBEEHURARREERERFTA
MBARFBRHANT

RERH

Dongyue Polymers

RELT

Dongyue Chemicals

REEZ
Dongyue Salt
RERE

Dongyue Fluo-Silicon

HongKong Taili International
Trading Co., Ltd.
HongKong TaiLi International
Trading Co., Ltd.
REAHE

Dongyue Organosilicon

RELRESBAIERAR
((hEaRESE])

Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak
Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd.

(“Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak”)
FEERREERAA(FEES])
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co., Ltd,

("Chifeng HuaSheng")
LRRETA AN HERAR
(Mgl
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe
Fluorine Chemicals Co., Ltd.
("Wenhe Fluorine”)
BRE%
Union Property

PRC

T8
PRC

T8
PRC
T8
PRC
B

HK

T8
PRC

TE
PRC

i

PRC

L]
PRC

BT

Registered capital

ahER
Registered capital

ahER
Registered capital
Edii-ws
Registered capital
Ediif-ws

Registered capital

afER
Registered capital

AR

Registered capital

HMER

Registered capital

AR

Registered capital

Ediif-uN
Registered capital

39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company

(@) General information of subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set
out below.

AR 6413607 PEREERNALE
RMB641,360 Manufacture and sale of
polytetrafluoroethylene
AR 34000070 10000 BHERHERLH
RMB340,000 Manufacture and sale of
refrigerant
AR80,0007 8993 AERHEHR
RMB80,000 Production and sales of salt
AR%400,0007C 8322 BERBEFRALN
RMB400,000 Manufacture and sales of
methane chloride
75,000 10000 HELIER
HKD5,000 Sale of chemical products
AR 650,000 7T 5775 BEEREEABEMH
RMB650,000 Manufacture and sale of
organosilicon material
ABH150,0007C 51.00 BERHEESKEILE
RMB150,000 Manufacture and sale of
anhydrous fluoride
AR%9,0007C 8000 HERHERA
RMB9,000 Manufacture and sale
of fluorite
AR 115,700 7T 5100 BUERHEEEGE
RMB115,700 Manufacture and sale
of silicon rubber
ARH80,0007T 10000 FEHE
RMB80,000 Property development
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39. KR RIFEMB QRS @

() HMBARN—RER(E)

LRBABHEREARAR G-

Shandong Boda Real Estate PRC Registered capital
Development Co., Ltd.

RRABEEHERTERAA i Gdiif-uN

Zhangjiajie Xinye Real Estate PRC Registered capital
Development Co., Ltd.

EAREEREFERAA E Gdiif-us

Huangtai Dongyue International PRC Registered capital
Trade Co., Ltd.

ZER i Gdiif-us

Huaxia Shenzhou PRC Registered capital

REARREK P EMEx

Dongyue Fluorosilicone Technology ~ PRC Registered capital

HETRKBEEREEAR # vy

Zibo Herun Shuiwu Company Limited. ~ PRC Registered capital

LRBEHRERAR HE vy

Shandong Mingyue Technology PRC Registered capital
Co,, Ltd.

)1 EmE G E R ER AR HE vy

Sichuan Southwest Sun Shine PRC Registered capital

Silicon Technology Co. Ltd.

EREFLAEERAR HE BaliEe

Huantai Country Tongshan PRC Registered capital
Thermoelectric Co. Ltd.

39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(a)

ARH50,0007T
RMB50,000

ARH80,0007T
RMB80,000

AR 5,000
RMBS,000

ARKE10,0007T
RMB10,000

ARE1,220507
RMB1,220,520

AR# 25,0007
RMB25,000

AE%300,0007C
RMB300,000

ARH
198,444,700 7
RMB198,444,700

ARE
100,000,0007C
RMB100,000,000

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

RamE
Property development

REIES
Property development

HELIER

Sale of chemical products

RERHERERD TN
Manufacture and sale of
fluoropolymer
RARERAENMRTE
Investment and management
of fluorosilicone new
material industry
SKERRRRER
Sewage disposal and
environmental monitoring
BB
Chemical technology
research and development
ERABSEAREE
BEEEMRASMHEE
Smelt and sales of high
performance non-tenous
metal and alloy materials
BB RER
KEERBER
Electricity, heat, gas and
water production and
supply industry
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39. KR RIFEMB QRS @

(a)

MEARN—RER (&)

EERR ERFIWARAMER
AEEFEASEXEXEE-BF
RE - W EMHBARNER -
HErBERERBRITE

RER - WERRMERITERES
Erx e MAETENBAREREAL

%o

(b)
BARNFRS

BEEAFERRRESZNFEZER

TRINRHEAERIFERBRERDN
AREBFRE2EWNBA RS

WEAREM

Name of subsidiary

REA#E

(Dongyue Organosilicon)
REAR

(Dongyue Fluo-Silicon)

TR AL Lt B R
TEEE Y
Place of
incorporation
and principal
place of business

R
PRC
0
PRC

272 HEEEARAT —B-_F£R§

39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(a)

(b)

FERRREBZIHEN
PR LAl

Proportion of ownership
interest held by
non-controlling interests

42.25%

16.78%

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic
enterprises.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

PEFFERRE
BT EGEZET 1
Accumulated

non-controlling
interests

Profit allocated to
non-controlling
interests

20214 2022 20214 2022 20016
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
INCLE ARETr PNEEESA ARETT
RMB!000 BRGIYEHOOOM RMB!000 MK
42.25% AEREON 487,437 BUREPEEE 2,129,216
16.78% 106,663 49,398 91,528 139,241
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HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

39. KR RIFEMB QRS @

BEEAFERRRESNFEZEN
B AR (&)

TXENEREARFEBRBRE R
AEEEZHMBRANYBENBE -
TIMBERRERETEERNLH
A& 78 -

(b)

BAEAFRRERARNESENELT
HR 1

39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

2022 F

2022

ARET
RMB'000

2022
2022
ARBTR
RMB'000

RBEE Current assets 2,211,961 3,124,733 481,308 380,783
FREEE Non-current assets 3,765,415 3,132,734 2,011,728 1,794,665
REARG Current liabilities CELRCEYON  (1,106,053) BER:YZ)N  (1,050,960)
ErRBaE Non-current liabilities (43,878) (76,849) (85,500) (284,496)

839,992

5,094,547 5,074,565 545,459

RREHA NEBER

SFERRR BRI EE

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Equity attributable to non-controlling
interests

2,942,101 2,945,349 LEEREY 700,751

2,152,446 2,129,216 91,528 139,241

5,094,547 5,074,565 545,459

839,992
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39. KR RIFEMB QRS @

BREAFERBRREZNFZENBLF
B (E)

39. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

REARE REAE
BZ12A31ALEE For the year ended 31 December Dongyue Organosilicon Dongyue Fluo-Silicon

2022 F 20214 2022 20214

2022 2021 2022 2021

ARMTT EUNSEEOA ARMTT BN Sw

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Yoz Revenue WLORPPR 4338553 MRENCIRIEN 2,729,582
5 Expenses (PPERLR  (3,184,329) BERLTIREN  (2,435,193)
FAHHM Profit for the year 510,982 635,658 294,389
RRREE AERET Profit attributable to owners of the Company 295,092 666,787 528,995 244,991
TR AR A S PR Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 215,890 487,437 106,663 49,398

510,982 1,154,224

635,658

BRI R ERORE

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

154,376

192,660 63,375

M%/ﬁéﬁﬁ%/ﬁkﬂ*ﬁﬁ

Net cash inflow from operating activities

154,518 917,218 974,659

294,389

483,025

REEDHRERLFR

Net cash outflow from investing
activities

VRO  (1,727,244) (313,738)

(622,379)

Hﬁﬁ/ﬁ@ﬁﬁi Vi Hj ///lu]\/?%ﬁ

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
financing activities

(453,229) 36,124 (452,008)

REMLFE

(876,621) (773,902) 208,913

Net cash outflow
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40. (7456 40. Business combination
fEHIEE Sunshine Silicon

R2022F 12 A31 8 » REEUWEEM)I|FrE
BHrREEREERAR(BXEE]D B
100% W - GREXTERETTEREZE
% WEENERRARNSENERTES
MEETTERBRFE N - ZBWE R B UKEEA
IRABUIEET -

REBRMZMBEBEEREZEE

On 31 December 2022, the Group acquired 100% interest in
Sichuan Southwest Sunshine Silicon Technology Co. LTD PY)I| 7
F 5 e pE E R AR A 8] (“Sunshine Silicon”). Sunshine Silicon
is principally engaged in the industrial silicone business and was
acquired with the objective of improving the Group’s product’s
competitiveness of organic silicon industry. The acquisition has
been accounted for as acquisition of business using the
acquisition method.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of

acquisition:

AREEF T

RMB’000

W - BB R&E Property, plant equipment 147,228
FRESE Right-of-use assets 23,036
FE Inventories 37,317
B 5 N E b W IE Trade and other receivables 68,703
WITHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 4,159
B 5 NEMENFIE Trade and other payable (110,155)
BHEaE Contract liabilities (304)
FEEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities (7,503)
162,481

AT i s ) o Goodwill on acquisition 159,519

WEECEXFELETHE HAZEESR
REEERERATNES ST I LG
EEANEEARE D MRWE BB EEIR
e ZFEW T EERESFHER  RAR
HI S Al B 2 B B O RERR AR AT ©

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Sunshine Silicon because
the acquisition included the assembled workforce of Sunshine
Silicon Limited and the cooperation between Sunshine Silicon
and the Group’s organic silicon segment as at the date of
acquisition. These benefits are not recognised separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for
identifiable intangible assets.
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40. (&6t

RUBRHzBBEERIEIAAE:
(%)

BFHZFRESEMELNEE AR -

40. Business combination (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition: (Continued)

None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

ARBTT
RMB’000
I8 Sub X Limited 2 F R &R H Net cash outflow on acquisition of Sub X Limited
ERNREMRE Cash consideration paid 322,000
o BWEBIR S MERIIBEIEE &5 Less: cash and cash equivalents balances acquired (4,159)
317,841

WIsEEHAEEEENTE

MU S I 2 M 2022 F 1 A1 B R - &
E B AFEERUW A A20,347,431,000 7%
JC 0 AN EF E &9 m F A5 A 4,191,885,000 78
7TE o

B

7202212 A31 B AEBWEEAEE
IWEABERAR(FEILD) B 100% Bk - &
IWEZRIUREEEEM R EHE MEEE
% W2 B ERIEA RSB A & it
T o ZBWBIRAWEEARAUEER -

26 HEEEARAT —B-_F£R§

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group:

Had the acquisition of Sunshine Silicon been completed on 1
January 2022, revenue for the year of the Group from would
have been RMB20,347,431,000, and profit for the year would
have been RMB4,191,885,000.

Tangshan

On 31 December 2022, the Group acquired 100% interest in
Huantai County Tangshan Thermoelectric Co. LTD 18 & /& LU
ZEHPR A A (“Tangshan”). Tangshan is principally engaged in
the heating and power supply in Zibo City, Shandong Province
business and was acquired with the objective of improving the
Group's heating and power supply. The acquisition has been
accounted for as acquisition of business using the acquisition
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

40. (&6t

RUBRBzBBEERFERAE:
(%)

40. Business combination (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition: (Continued)

AREFT

RMB'000

ME - R NERE Property, plant equipment 158,254
FE Inventories 26,528
B 5 N E b W kIR Trade and other receivables 31,215
IRITHEBRIRS Bank balances and cash 22,562
B 5 NEMEN IS Trade and other payable (192,503)
X NN Contract liabilities (1,332)
JE IR Tax payable (334)
44,390

U BB R R P2 Goodwill on acquisition 52,952

WEELRELTHE AAZLERERE
WERRRNESSE N RAKELEAE
BB M E o RF WS W EEEE D

R REREY A A #AETEEN

ARG o

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Tangshan because the
acquisition included the assembled workforce of Tangshan and
future heating and power supply from Tangshan to the Group.
These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.
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40. EKE 6t 40. Business combination (Continued)
RUBHHCFFWBEERFIEREE Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
(%) acquisition: (Continued)
FEHZEWEESEMESANEE T - None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected to

be deductible for tax purposes.

ARBT T
RMB’000
Y8 Sub X Limited 2 F R &7 H Net cash outflow on acquisition of Sub X Limited
ERNRERE Cash consideration paid 97,342
B BUWIEIR ¢ RERIFSEB &% Less: cash and cash equivalents balances acquired (22,562)
74,780
WBEEEEREEEENTE Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group:
MR BB L 2022 F1 A1 B - A%E Had the acquisition of Tangshan been completed on 1 January
REEREFELEEBHRABAARE 2022, revenue for the year of the Group from continuing
20,128,928,0007T * MAFEREIFELE operations would have been RMB20,128,928,000, and profit
EB0R B AARE4,174,151,000 7T ° for the year from continuing operations would have been

RMB4,174,151,000.

2]/8 HEEEARAT —B-_F£R§
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41. HE-FEHBEQF

REZE2021F 12831 BILFEE  AEER
LAAR® 2,950,000 cREREBERNETH
REAMEBRARNEICHTRALE
FEBUFE=HFI BB o HEE R 2021
F8AGHTHK - M2021F8A6HME E

41. Disposal of a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement relating to the disposal of
the entire issued share capital of Inner Mongolia Dongyue
Fluorine Chemicals Co. Ltd, (RS &R EAM B BR 2 7)) to
an independent third party, at a cash consideration of

FEaBEHBOT RMB2,950,000. The disposal was completed on 6 August 2021.
Details of the assets and liabilities as of 6 August 2021 are set
out as follows:

AREET T
RMB’'000

IRITEEER Bank balances 1,105

EREE Intangible assets 12,220

N Y Property, plant and equipment 14

RIEFRIBE E Deferred tax assets 15,779

H b el I8 Other receivables 2,238

JE AT N Eo < FRIE Accruals and other payables (1,029)

BEHEFEE Net assets disposed of 30,327

HEME QRS Loss on disposal of a subsidiary:

BUIRER(E Cash consideration received 2,950

BHEFEE Net assets disposed of (30,327)

(27,377)

HERELNRESRAEHE Net cash inflow arising from disposal:

EUIRERE Cash consideration received 2,950

B EHEReRERES Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of (1,105)

1,845
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42. TEFBEERS 42. Major non-cash transactions
REZE2021FE12 A3 BIEEER - KEE During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered
R A FRNEREE —HENEE S - into a new lease agreement for the use of office premise for 2
AE2F PN ERIBR  AEEEIAR years. On the lease commencement, the Group recognised
#1,031,000 T FEREEEREBEES RMB1,031,000 of right-of-use assets and the related lease
f& ° liabilities

43. RN R IR R R BN K #E 43. Summarised statement of financial position
of the Company and reserves

2022 F 20214

2022 2021

ARET T AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

NI EENGIE D & 2) Investments in subsidiaries 3,818,671 3,677,948
WITHEHBR LR Bank balances and cash 128,112 831,972
HtrEhEE Other current assets 148 136

HEirn#alE Other current liabilities (1,472) (1,082)

3,942,459 4,508,974

N Share capital 212,196 212,338
() Reserves (Note) 3,730,263 4,296,636

3,942,459 4,508,974

RARBEMRAEKRE R 2023F3 A28 & The statement of financial position of the Company was
FEEgHERKETE  WARUTABRE approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
#=F: 28 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:
RER R
Zhang Jianhong Zhang Zhefeng
EF EE
Director Director
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43, NPQ BB AR R RER R &)

43. Summarised statement of financial position

of the Company and reserves (Continued)

Note:

Movement in the reserves:

R202151R818
REEEF L2 A2
EEBREEETRERD
I R A
WAL S ORB I
TiEmRE

EREHR
BERBRE

At 1 January 2021

Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year

Purchase of shares under
employee option scheme

Shares repurchased and
cancelled

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

Exercise of share options

Placing of new shares

Dividends paid

R2021E12A318%

202251818
AEERTIRZANELE
ESBERETEETEERS
Bl Y&l

BRRE

At 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022

Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year

Purchase of shares under
employee option scheme

Shares repurchased and
cancelled

Dividends paid

R2022612A31H

At 31 December 2022

1,224,924 (223,537) 200,344 - 148,620 1,350,351
- - - - 218,162 218,162

- (249,159) - - - (249,159

(13,761) - - - - (13,761)
- - - 293,774 - 293,774

- 202,193 - (293,774) 293,774 202,193
2,741,335 - - - - 2,741,335
- - - - (246,259) (246,259)

3,952,498 (270,503) 200,344 414,217 4,296,636

279,916 279,916

(204,347) (204,347)

(16,633) - (16,633)
- (625,229) (625,229)

3,935,865 (474,850) 200,344 68,904 3,730,263
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HZE2022F 12 A31 HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022

e Revenue 14,218,937 12,958,692 10,044,313 15,843,947
THERR Cost of sales (9,687,291)  (9,512,770)  (7,799,717)  (10,626,336)
EV Gross profit 4,531,646 3,445,922 2,244,596 5,217,611
Hip AR Eb Uz &8 Other income and other net gains

and losses 119,209 138,523 136,207 182,028
DHEREERY Distribution and selling expenses (358,726) (366,263) (353,683) (336,451)
THREMEY Administrative and other expenses (782,735) (668,112) (356,845) (913,264)
BARE-HHBARIMNKE  Ganon deemed disposal of a

subsidiary - - 40,850 -
HE-BHBARNERR Loss on disposal of a subsidiary - - - (27,377)
MERFEEKA Research and development costs (177,360) (329,242) (590,471) (838,893)
N Share of results of associates - - 4,505 20,291
BAFETABEZEMEE  Fairvalue change on financial

ATEES asset at fair value through profit

or loss (“FVTPL") - - (3,978) 21,870
BEKAK Finance costs (97,135) (100,528) (104,560) (81,606)
BRBLATRA Profit before taxation 3,234,899 2,120,300 1,016,621 3,244,209
Fri&fibx Income tax expense (800,200 (378,019) (113,765) (562,664)
REERA Profit for the year 2,434,699 1,742,281 902,856 2,681,545

282 BE£EARAFT SB--FFR

2022

2022

ARBTR
RMB'000

20,027,988
(13,513,617)

6,514,371

229,006
(498,767)
(993,740)

1,212,290

(1,310,535)
25,401

(37,669)

(15,302)
5,125,055
(948,938)

4,176,117
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HZE2022F 12 A31ALEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2022

20225
2022
ARETR
RMB'000
Hih2H s Other comprehensive income
TEEMHEZERMIER - Item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:
BATEFAE2EYEZ  Fairvalue changes on equity
BERTANDTEEE instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (52,902)  (1,119,292) (279,531) (234,098) (5,830)
FRE2ERELE Total comprehensive income for
the year 2,381,797 622,989 623,325 2,447 447 4,170,287

THRFEREER2ERE  Total comprehensive income for

@5 the year attributable to:
— ARAEA A — Owners of the Company 2,076,196 343,682 492,636 1,840,745 3,855,539
— R R R — Non-controlling interests 305,601 279,307 130,689 606,702 320,578
2,381,797 622,989 623,325 2,447,447 BUERIEN
BEASE Total Assets 16,523,851 14,931,339 17,121,859 21,601,226 [ WLEiLLETL)
BERR Total Liabilities (7,131,652)  (5,975,716)  (6,591,347)  (5,962,603) E(F 4 ILv/)
ADAHA AEERERE Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 8,336,606 7,880,019 8,542,306 13,123,581 BRLFLERNILE]
IR RS Non-controlling interests 1,055,593 1075604 1988206 2,515,042 ESVEAKFLL
12 A31 BEESH Balance at 31 December 9,392,199 8,955,623 10,530,512 15,638,623 B bHLEN A/
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AMRER

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

TERAREERTEERBE

REILRE
I
REREMHEXE

ERTELEEME
BB

ERE 185

BEHL

1PE261E2621 %

#941t

www.dongyuechem.com

=
HITES

REREE (EEFRTHBE)
HELE

THREE (BH)

RS (BB FEEIFE)
RNEHAE (R20224F6 21 Hitt)
RELE
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Registered office

Vistra (Cayman) Limited
P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way
802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in
the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Room 2621, 26/F, Tower 1
Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road
Admiralty

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors
Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. Wang Weidong (President)

Mr. ZHANG Zhefeng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. ZHANG Bishu (passed away on 21 June 2022)

Mr. ZHANG Jian
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BYFHTES
TRE%E

1B S
BEBLE
DEWE
EEELt
RERR
BELE
JEELt
BREEY

TRESRE(TE)
BEELLE
BEREE

FHESE
19 3 ek (2 )

TRERE
RERFKE

REZRS
RERSE(EE)

TRESE
BEELE

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
Mr. MA Zhizhong

Company secretary
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Authorized representatives

Mr. FU Kwan
Ms. CHUNG Tak Lai

Audit committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong
Mr. MA Zhizhong

Remuneration committee

Mr. YANG Xiaoyong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

Nomination committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. YANG Xiaoyong

Dongyue Group Limited Annual Report 2022

285



NEEF

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SREAEAR
SRR (E/E)

TFHREE
SRINE S (R202246 H21 Hi#rtt)

BEREEEES

TRERE(FE)
BEREBEEE

RBF SRR

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

ERERODBEETTRE

HEBHFERLARAR
EEcEE

ERBE 165
BREBFALITE
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Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Weidong
Mr. ZHANG Bishu (passed away on 21 June 2022)

Risk Management Committee

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. YANG Xiaoyung
Mr. MA Zhizhong

Principal share registrar and transfer office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Admiralty, Hong Kong
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FEAEREBAT

REERBITROABR A

BaXZIT
FELERS
SEmEA &
B34 55

PETERITEROABRAA]

BaXIT
REILRE
MEmE e
SRAEEE 7 5%

RERERITEODABRAA]

BATIT
RELERA
SIEME S &
RiA
FROAE 10158

FERITRR (D BB A A
EAEEZIT

FEILERSA
SEmEA &

HIFE B 48 5%

REXARITRNDBERABIESG T

FELEE
SSEmEA &
FEEF O AR 2299 5%

Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC

China Everbright Bank Company Limited Huantai Branch
2299 Suo Zhen Zhongxin Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC
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Investor relations consultant

Investor Connect Advisory
Room 128, 4/F

9 Queen Central Road
Central

Hong Kong

Auditors

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong

Stock code
189
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